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MNarrative Report
Message From John Campion, the West Mercia Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC)

As | reflect on the last year, it's easy to forget just how much COVID continued to impact it. Only
in February did we see an end to legal restrictions around the pandemic. However, as we have
adapted fo a life with the virus, | have been pleased to return to some of my normal duties as
PCC. This includes getting out and meeting with the public, in person, so | can hear peaple's
views and concerns. This part of my role is key. | cannol make the decisions | do without
consuling with communities, and ensuring their voice is reflected in my considerations.
Ultimately, resulting in a police Force that communities can trust and have confidence in.

Far the 2021/22 financial year | set a balanced budget, ensuring that West Mercia Police was
living within its means, whilst delivering my priorities set out in my Safer West Mercia Plan. |
approved a council tax increase of 6.66%, which, along with an uplift in funding from the
Government settlement, has allowed for an additional £8m of resources. This was spent on
frontline policing and improving the infrastructure to support those officers, which you have said
is a priority. This investment included meeting the target of recruiting the additional 93 police
officers which were promised by the Government. Over 400 additional police officers have been
recruited to West Mercia since 2016. These additional officers allow resources to be targeted
towards key areas of concern for communities. Increased investment has also been allocated to
crime prevention initiatives and projects that support victims of crime, supporting the delivery of
key elements of my Plan.

The overall financial position for the year was a net underspend of £7.717m against a total
budget of £245.038m. This has provided an opportunity to direct the underspend to ensuring
that we keep the organisation on a stable financial footing, ultimately by reducing borrowing.
However, going forward | want to ensure that the investment decisions | make are being
delivered and every penny is being utilised for the benefit of the public.

Over the last 12 months | have continued to hear loud and clear that visibility and accessibility of
police officers is key, | understand that road safety remains a concem and the threat of violence
against women and gils has become ever more prevalent following the murder of Sarah
Everard. Whilst it's just a small part of a much bigger piece of work, | have been proud to work
with partners to secure funding for a number of measures and improvements to public spaces.
Alongside this project, | have secured an additional £3m for victim services and crime
prevention initiatives. The area of prevention has long been a focus of mine, as we look to a
world where crime can be tackled at the root cause to prevent harm being caused.

As we look to the coming year, and those after, | am committed to seeing improvements around
the confidence in West Mercia Police, and the service the public receives. | want to see that the
introduction of the Local Policing Community Charter delivers on its promise to make officers
maore visible and accessible to communities,

v

John Campion, West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner
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Section 1. Strategy

The primary function of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is to secure the
maintenance of an efficient and effective police Force and to hold the Chief Constable to
account for the exercise of operational policing duties. The PCC sets out his strategic direction
in the Police and Crime Plan, which sets the overarching objectives for the Force in light of the
national Strategic Policing Requirement, local public consultation and risk assessments. The
PCC plan is developed in consultation with the Chief Constable.

The Strategic Policing Requirement is under review but at present the national threals remain
and are identified as:

Terrorism;

Serious and organised crime;

Cyber security;

Threats to public order that cannot be tackled by one Force alone;

Civil emergencies requiring an aggregate response (such as COVID-19); and
Child sexual abuse.

& & @& & & @

A critical element of Home Secretary’s strategic prionty for there to be a relentless focus on
cutting crime are the new Mational Crime and Policing Measures, which set out the
Government's key national priorities on crime. These measures fall under the following
headings:

Reduce murder and other homicides;

Reduce serious violence;

Disrupt drugs supply and county lines,

Reduce neighbourhood crime;

Tackle cyber crime;

Improve satisfaction among viclims — with a particular focus on vietims of domestic abuse

The current Police and Crime Plan, called the Safer West Mercia Plan 2021 - 2025, has been
published following the re-election of John Campion in May 2021, The Plan is built on the same
overarching objectives as the previous plan and has regard to the national priorities set out
above, as well as from consultation with the public of West Mercia. The four overarching
objectives in the Safer West Mercia Plan are:

Putting victims first;

Building a more secure West Mercia,
Reforming West Mercia and
Reassuring communities

A full copy of the Plan can be found on the PCC's waebsite.

The PCC supports many of the priorities and commitments identified in the plan directly through
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. The PCC provides funding through
commissioning activity, grant schemes and extensive community engagement work, which
includes working particularly closely with the local Community Safety Parinerships,
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The Safer West Mercia Plan provides the overarching vision for the development of the
operaling model used by the Force to prevent and reduce crime, particularly those priorities
reflected in the national and local plans. A suite of performance metrics to monitor progress
against the commilments in the Safer West Mercia Plan have been agreed with the Force.

In September 2021 a new Chief Constable, Pippa Mills was appointed following the retirement
of Anthony Bangham. The Chief Constable has set her strategic direction which reflects the
priorities highlighted above as well as the Force's approach to preventing and tackling crime.
The vision, values and policing priorities for West Mercia are shown in Diagram 1 below, which
sets out how our values and code of ethics support the vision to protect people from harm.

Diagram 1.
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Diagram 2 shows the detail behind the policing priorities for West Mercia Police, in its ‘Plan on a
Page'. This links in with the overall vision of protecting people from harm, and the approach that
will be taken to deliver on that vision by keeping communities safe, delivering excellent service
and being a great place to work. The policing priorities are set and led by the Chief Officer team
across West Mercia.
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Diagram 2.
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The continuing vision of West Mercia Police is to 'Protect People from Harm'. Achieving the
vision relies on our workforce; police officers, police community support officers, police staff,
special conslables and volunteers.

The workforce is key to the delivery of effective policing, an analysis of which is shown al table
1. A Home Affairs Committee report highlighted the under representation of Black and Minority
Ethnic (BME) people in police Forces in England & Wales. The Force seeks o take positive
action to ensure that our Force better represents the communities we police.

Table 1. Workforce Analysis

Female

s
o

West Mercia

BME

]

Male

| Pelice Officers ! 2 - 65.80
| PCS0s | 211 2.80 51.70 48.30 |
| Police Staff | 1.819 2.70 64.40 35,60
{Total L | 4,317 | 2.80 49.77| 5023 |
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Section 2 — Governance

The PCC is responsible for ensuring his business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, and properly accounted for. The PCC
has a duly under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure confinuous
improvement in the way functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy;,
efficiency and effectivenass.

In discharging this owverall responsibility, the PCC is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the govemance of his office’s affairs and facilitating the exercise of its
functions, which includes ensuring a sound system of internal control is maintained through the
year and that arrangements are in place for the management of risk. Separate PCC and Force
strategic risk registers are held and reviewed regularly to manage risk, with mitigations identified
and taken where necessary. In exercising this responsibility, the PCC places reliance on the
Chief Constable to support the governance and risk management processes.

The Corporate Governance Framework sets oul the parametars for decision making, including
the delegations, consents, financial limits for specific malters and for contracts. The West
Mercia Governance Board has been established to govern Wesl Mercia Police and the Office of
the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Board ensures that there is the right vision, mission,
objectives, culture and sirategy to achieve the organisations’ purposes with robust processes for
formulating, implementing and monitoring these and ensuring that the right resources are in
place.

Daily policing is directed by the Chief Constable, which is informed by the Police and Crime
Plan and the Strategic Assessment. The latter is an assessment of the highest risks and harms
at national and local level. The Control Strategy is set in response to the threats identified in the
Strategic Assessment. It is a framework used by operational officers for decision making and
allocating resources.

Diagram 3 shows the Conlrol Strategy that is in place.

Diagram 3.
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The Chief Constable controls specific actions through various policies and procedures, the
behaviours of the workforce and culture of the Force are shaped by the values sel out above
and the national Code of Ethics. The main decision making meeting for the Force is the
Executive Board, which meets monthly and is chaired by the Chief Constable. The Board
receives regular reports on operational performance and the financial position.

The PCC is required to formally review the governance arrangements annually, the results of
which are contained in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). The PCC has a Joint AGS
with the Chief Constable, which is published alongside the Accounts. It provides a delailed
explanation of both the PCC’s and Chief Constables governance framework and demonsirates
how it is designed to help deliver the objectives set out in the Police and Crime Plan and
manage risk.

The Police and Crime Panel (PCP), comprised of locally elected councillors and 2
independently appointed members, scrutinises the actions and decisions of the PCC, including
the Police and Crime Plan, the budget and the precept. The panel meets formally in open
session throughout the year, to undertake its role. Whilst establishing openness in the conduct
of police business the intention is that the PCP supports the PCC in the effeclive exercise of his
functions. Further details on the role, responsibility and powers of the PCP can be found on
Worcestershire County Council's website.

Alongside providing strategic direction and oversight to the activities of the Force, the PCC
hosts the Youth Justice Service (Y.JS) on behalf of the responsible authorities across the West
Mercia. The cost of running the YJS (including the net pensions liability) are disclosed in the
PCC's Financial Statements. Governance and decision making is made via a Management
Board made up of representatives from the responsible authorities.

The PCC is supportive of greater collaboration across emergency services to deliver efficiencies
and improved service delivery, in line with the principles outlined in the Policing and Crime Act
2017. On the 187 May 2022 the government launched its white paper on reforming Fire and
Rescue Service, which includes proposed changes to the Governance of these organisation.
The PCC will be reviewing the proposals and working with Fire and Rescue Authorities lo
identify what future role the PCC may have and how to enable closer collaboration between
amergency services.

Section 3 — Achievements in 2021/22

During the financial year there has been many positive outcomes from the budget investment
made, including:

« The Local Policing Community Charter was launched in March 2021, a document that
outlines the Force's ongoing commitment to improving local policing and the concerns of
communities, The Charter sets out six key themes: visibility and accessibility of
neighbourhood policing teams; responding to our communities; prevention; vulnerability,
relationships; and partnerships;

+« The addition of 91 exira police officer posts in the 2021/22 budget has helped meet the
challenges of increasing demand and the changing nature of crime giving greater visibility,
capacity and resiliance. This took the total uplift since the PCC's election in 2016 to almost
400,
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= Major investments have been made in modemising West Mercia Police, enabling it to be a
more effective and efficient digital organisation. Much of this work continues behind the
scenes, improving the infrastructure and systems that police rely on daily to carry out thair
vital work. This is part of a long term plan lo enable the Force to provide even better
senices 1o local communities;

s Over 1,000 frontline officers and staff received specialist domestic abuse training, with the
training being mandatory for student officers;

« The Digital Forensics Transformation, whilst in the early phase of the three year
programme, has already delivered 50% of the ‘on-scene’ team which includes a focus on
child abuse and child sexual exploitation. The project delivers improved services for victims
and communities;

= The PCC submitted successful bids for additional funds to central government to expand
key services for support to victims of crime and to invest in prevention and intervention
schemaes o tackle perpetrators, as a result of this over £3m was secured,

Section 4 - Policing Performance

The PCC, in conjunction with the Force, has identified a suite of performance metrics to monitor
progress against the commitments in the Safer West Mercia Plan, including the National
Priorities for Policing. Existing performance products, including the West Mercia Police
Quarterly Performance Report will be used to report against the agreed metrics.

In complying with regulations issued in 2021" the Police and Crime Commissioner is required to
provide a statement on the contribution of West Mercia Police to achieving improvements
against the national policing priorities. This statement is published on the PCC's website and
subject to review in line with requirements set out in the regulations.

The Force performance framework uses a reporting hierarchy to monitor performance across
the whole organisation al gold (strategic), silver (service) and bronze {operational) levels. The
Force produces a number of performance products in support of the framework and
performance is reviewed as part of the quarterly Force Delivery Group (FDG) meeting.

As an integral part of the peformance framework day to day performance is monitored through
the performance dashboard on the Force intranet, which is updated daily across a range of
crime areas. The information provided by the dashboard is used to take corrective action to
address emerging issues and adverse trends.

It is acknowledged that Wast Mercia do not always get it right and that the actions of a few can
let down the vast majorty of hard working and dedicated people that work to protect people
from harm. However, we seek lo ensure that high standards of conduct are enforced, the
Professional Standards Team seek to proactively address issues and respond to concerns that
are raised with them and to ensure that we learn from our experiences. The PCC and his office
also hold the Chief Constable to account and any arising issues may also be investigated and
reported through these channels.

! The Elected Local Palicing Badies [Specified Information) (Amendment) Order 2021

T
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Table 6 is a summary of Force performance for 2021/22 against the various categories of crime.
The COVID pandemic had a considerable impact on crime trends from the end of March 2020
when the first lockdown period began. Significant reductions in crime were seen across 2020/21
for the majority of crime types, with greatest reductions being recorded during periods of
national lockdown. Patterns and volumes of offending subsequently increased in 2021/22 as
COVID restrictions were eased.

Given the unprecedented impact of the pandemic on crime recording, it has become standard
practice to use 2019/20 crime volumes as the baseline for comparison to understand longer
term trends.

Table 6. Policing performance 2021/22

Crime Type 2021/22 202002 2019720 % Change 2019/20 to 2021722
Homicide 19 18 | 12 58%
Viglence With Injury 11,043 | 8906 | 11,135 0%
Violence Without Injury | 27,5 | 22527 | 23314 16%
Rape 1461 [ 1,165 1,228 19% |
Othar Sexunl Offences 2575 | 1,950 2165 | 10%
Business Robbary 54 28 ) B |
Personal Robbery 497 | 447 503 16% |
Burglary - Residential {dweliing onty) 2,047 | 1,868 2718 -25%
| Burglary - Business & Community 2496 | 2778 3863 | -35%
Vehicle Offences 4406 | 3398 5280 7% |
Theft from Parsan | az8| 312 728 -41%
Bicycie Theft 618 | 838 824 -26%
Shoplifiing 6072 | 4960 7611 -20%
All Dther Theft Offences. 6,818 | 5588 T.8970 -13% |
Criminal Damage & Arson = 8746 | 7.BOD 0,595 5%
| Drug Offences 2152 2725 2290 5% |
Possession of Weapons B33 BO7 849 A%
Public Order Offences B0 | 5114 | 5408 | 45%
Misc. Crimes Against Society 1,539 | 1457 1,374 12% |
| Total Recorded Crime B7,063 | 72,695 | 87,117 =

Total incidents recorded by the Force in 2021/22 decreased by 15%, and incidents of anti-social
behaviour decreased by 9% compared to 2019/20. Of all crime types, traditional acquisitive
offences have seen the steepest decline in recording compared to 2019/20.

Theft from person offences declined by 41%, shoplifting offences declined by 20%, vehicle
offenices declined by 17%, and ‘other' theft offences declined by 13%. Notable reductions in
recording have also been seen for high harm acquisitive offences which impact on communities
including a 35% reduction in business & communily burglaries, a 25% reduction in residential
burglaries and a 15% reduction in total robbery offences.

Whilst volumes of viclence with injury offences have remained stable, there has been an
increase in homicide offences. Analysis undertaken by West Mercia Police suggests there are 3
key homicide drivers: domestic abuse, mental health and serious & organised crime. These
major and complex crimes have a significant impact on the organisation in terms of capacity and
resources.

Further exceptions to falling crime volumes in 2021/22 include viclence without injury; sexual
offences and public order offences. The latest data from the Office of National Statistics (ONS)

L]
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confirms that increases in these offence types have been recorded by police Forces regionally
and nationally. Following a reduction in recording in 2020/21, the volume of domestic abuse
offences has returned to the levels seen previously,

Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) provides
an independent inspection programme and assessment of the Force's performance. The Force
inspection programme is known as PEEL (Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy). The
latest West Mercia PEEL report was issued in April 2022 looking at performance during
2021/22. HMICFRS graded West Mercia Police's performance across eight areas of policing
and found the Force was 'good’ in one area, ‘adequate’ in four arsas and ‘requires
improvemant' in three areas.

Diagram 4 — HMICFRS 2021/22 PEEL assessment

improvement
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The Repert commended West Mercia for an innovative approach lo early intervention and
prevention of crime and anti-social behaviour across our counties of Herefordshire, Shropshire
and Worcestershire. West Mercia Police has invested in all its operational policing areas, and
improvements are evident in aspects such as community policing and the management of
offenders and suspects. Bul there are still improvements needed.

HMICFRS’s assessment was that West Mercia needs to do more to improve supervision of
investigations and the quality and consistency of updating victims. Improvement work focusing
on the standard of investigations and providing a belter service to victims through improved and
meaningful contact is well underway as part of Operation Reset. The budget for 2022/23
provides additional funding to ensure that the investigation department has the resources that it
needs.

The report did recognise that emergency calls are answered promptly but more can be done to
ensure each victim is provided appropriate advice. The budget for 2022/23 includes resources
for a new vulnerability desk in the Operations Communications Centre. This will identify and
support the most vulnerable people coming into contact with police, at the earliest possible
opportunity.

The technology that the Force operates with and use of data held needs improvement, and that
was recognised by the Inspectorate. West Mercia are two years into a four year investment

B
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programme to modernise our digital service and the way that we use data to keep the public
safe. A pilot to test the use of Microsoft 365 trial is due to start in the summer of 2022.

Full details of the HMICFRS inspections, along with the response from the PCC can be found
on the PCC's Website.

Section 5 - Financial Performance
Revenue Qutturn

The PCC is responsible for setting the annual budget within which the Chief Constable is
expected to operate and against which financial performance is measured. The annual budget
is funded mainly through government grants and the precept. The expenditure that can be
charged against the budgel is determined on a statutory basis.

By contrast the Accounts includes income and expenditure that are measured and reported in
accordance with proper accounting practice and conventions as set out, chiefly, in The Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code). A
reconciliation between the figures used to produce the outtum, explained in the following
paragraphs and those contained in the Accounts is provided in Note 1.

During 2021/22 there has been a return to business as usual practices as COVID-19 restrictions
have been slowly rolled back over the course of the financial year. West Mercia set a budget for
the financial year to include the impact of changes to working praclices as a result of COVID-19.
However there has been other external factors which have had financial implications on Wesl
Mercia, including from Brexit, global supply chain issues and rising demand for energy,
exacerbated by the Ukraine Crisis. In 2021/22 the principal impact has been on the ability to
recruit staff in a competitive employment market and to receive all goods ordered, particularly in
respect of fleet purchases. We are working closely with supply chains to ensure we ¢an access
goods as quickly as possible. Cost inflation pressures started to impact towards the end of the
financial year, but are a greater risk to the 2022/23 budgets.

Table 2. Funding 2021/22

Where the Money Came From Revised Actual
Budget £m
£Em
| Central Government Funding 126.227 126.227
' Lecally Raised Funding — Precept (Council Tax) 118.812 118.716

Total Funding (excluding resarves) 245.039 244,943

Funding (from) / to Reserves m

Total Funding (including resarves) 245,462 244,330

The PCC agreed a 2021/22 net revenue budget of £245.462m which includes the use of
£0.423m of reserves. The budget is supported through the council tax precepl charge on
Council Tax Payers of £240.19 (Band D equivalent) which is an increase of 6.66% on the
2020/21 charge.

10
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Table 3 provides an analysis of the West Mercia Police budget and the outlurn based on the
expenditure incurred:

Table 3. The PCC and Chief Constable Outturn for year ended 31 March 2022

West Mercia Police

Budgat
£m

Budget

Adjustments
£m

Revised
Budget
i

Actual
£m

Varlanoe
£m

Palice officers' pay 125.811 (0.284) 125.527 | 124.957 0.570
Palica afficers’ avertime 2.3 0.582 2473 3.563 (0, 850)
Police staff pay 62,144 5.305 67440 69.216 (1.767)
Palica staff overtimea 0566 .129 0.695 0. 756 (0.061)
PCS0 pay T.430 0.000 7,430 7.158 0,272
Police pensions 1776 0,000 3776 31302 0.574
Other Employee Expenses 2.025 (0.021) 2004 1942 0,062
Framises B.846 0.148 8.59094 a122 {0.128)
Transport 4,135 0.0 4,229 4234 {0.005)
Supplies & Senvices 33.459 0.686 3145 |  26.507 7.638
Third Party Paymenis 16,118 10.560) 15.568 17707 (2.149)
Capital Financing 5.210 0000 5210 8.024 2. 814)
Expenditure 27.911 6.079 277.990 | 276.688 1.302
Income (27.073) (5.455) (32.528)] (36.575) 4,047
Mat Expenditure 244,838 0.624 245.462 240,113 5.349
External Fu nding (245.038) 0.000 (245.033)| (244.943) (0.085)
Reserves utilised (0. 301 {0.824) y0.423) 0.613 {1.038)
Qutturn 0.000 0.000 0.000 {4.217) 4217
Budget Revised
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Variance
£m Em £m Em Em

Office of the PCC (17400 13.027
Chief Constable 228,660 2.364 231.024 227.08B5 3.928
L o A 244,838 0.624 | 245462 | 240113 | 5349
Funding & Reserves {244.838) (0.624)| (245482} (244.330)  (1.132)
Outturn 0.0 0.0 0.04 (4.217) 4,217

West Mercia's net expenditure in 2021/22 was £240.113m, and included a net contribution to
reserves of £0.613m. Included in the reported outturn is a one-off contribution to capital of
£3.5m. At the year end the Outturn Report (reported to West Mercia Governance Board on the
17/05/22) showed that there was a £7.717m underspend. This meant thal there was an
additional opportunity to reduce the cost of debt in future years. This contribution to capital
funding will reduce both the debt held and the cost of servicing that debt by £510k in 2022/23
and as an ongoing revenue saving over the next 10 years, This revenue saving can be invested
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back in policing services, After accounting for this as part of the Capital Financing expenditure
above, the resulting underspend of £4.217m has been transferred lo reserves. Capital
expenditure of £0.737m has been funded from reserves (as sel out in Table 5 below) resulting
in a net increases in reserves of £4.093m. The full movements on reserves are shown in Noles
1 and 8 to the Accounts and balances held in Table 6 below.

Tha main causes of the variances to budget are as follows:

Police Officer Pay = Underspend of £0.570m

« The underspend of £0.570m represents a 0.5% variance against a budget of £125.527m.
Whilst this small variance is welcome, there is further work to be done to ensure that
police officer budgets are in the appropriate division to reflect deployment.

Police Officer overtime — Overspend of £0.890m

« Overtime has exceeded the budget due to specific major operations, specifically
providing resources to Police the COP26 event, of which additional income can be
claimed to offset the majority of the costs. The workload requirements of officers such as
from football matches are faclors that caused the budget pressures in year.

Police Staff Pay — Overspend of £1.767m

« Due to the continuation of hosted services for Warwickshire into the 2021/22 financial
year there was additional cost of employing staff to service this contract, offsel by
additional income received.

« In the public contact centre there was an overspend of £0.613m due to a low umover.

« There was savings to offset this from the Change and Transformation programme of
£1.075m as challenges in the employment market has meant that there were vacant
posts within the team.

Supplies and Services — Underspend of £7.638m

» A considerable investment has been made in ICT to improve the aging infrastructure,
however there has been £3.5m of savings against the budget of £18m as cosls
associated with supporting and replacing the Network infrastructure, Hardware Support &
Maintenance and Software purchases in the year have not been realised.

« In Seplember 2021 West Mercia agreed to deliver a hosted ICT service to Warwickshire
Palice. Uncertainty around what service levels would be required has led to an
underspend of £593k as not all predicted costs were incurred.

Third Party Payments — Overspend of £2.149m

« Due to the continuation of hosted services for Warwickshire into the 2021/22 financial
year there was additional cost of contracts for suppliers of licences etc to service this
contract, offset by additional income received.

« £0.737m of the overspend was due to not being able to meet savings targels which were
acknowledged to be unachievable during the year.

Capital Financing - Overspend of £2.814m

+« The £3.5m contribution to capital which was made at the end of the financial year
resulted in an overspend on capital financing, this was offset by savings from a lower
than expected capital outturn.

12
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Income — Over-recovery of £4,047m

The OPCC Commissioning team was able lo bid and access and an additional £1.916m
af grants and funding during 2021/22 above the budget. This income was passed onto
partners lo support victims of crime and in schemes lo prevent crime for OCCurring.

As reported above there was additional income received in the year offsetting additional
costs reported above. Principally from the continuation of provision of services to
Warwickshire Police which was not expected to have continued when the budget was
sel.

Capital Outturn

In addition to the spending on day-to-day activities, the PCC incurs expenditure on buildings,
information technology, vehicles and other major items of specialist equipment which have a
long-term useful life. This type of spend is known as capital expenditure.

Table 4 shows an analysis of capital expenditure incurred of £10.860m. There is a significant
underspend of £16.255m from the revised budget of £27.115m.

Table 4. Capital Programme Outturn 2021/22

Revised
Approved

Budget Actual Variance

Programme Capital Expenditure for the year
Extates B.503 2,737 H.76E

IcT

| Change & Transformation 13.183 | 5,963 7.220

Transport 1.905 0.771 1134 |

Diher eg plant and equipmeant

Total Expenditure 16.255

The main reasons for the underspend are as follows:

Estales

£1.963m relating to the Firearms Range project that has been returned back to options
appraisal / business case stage;

£2.000m on the Northern Hub Estates project a potential land purchase was not required;
£0.501m on Redditch Police Station as delivery timeline has been delayed with the
project now started and included in 2022/23 programme.

Change and Transformation

The main reason for the underspend has been a lack of resourcing available to deliver
projects during 2021/22, The issues in the ability to recruit project managers has resulted
in a budget saving of £0.800m;

The proposal is that many projects that had been planned to be delivered will now be
carmied forward inte 2022/23 programme. This includes:
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£0.550m on Data & Integration,
£0.922m on Tech Modemisation;
£0.600m on the HR and Leaming Management System project;
o £0.585m in relation to Digital Forensics transformation; and
o £0.400m in relation to the rollout of Emergency Services Network being delayed.
- There was also an underspend of £0.700m in respect of the In Car Media project which
was changed in scope and the project finished in the year.

o Qo 0

ICT
- A large underspend of £1.016m has occurred on ICT Replacement projects of mobile
phones and laptops for the Digital Services Transformation. The project will be delivered
in 2022/23 particularly with the role out of the Office 365 pilot project.
Transport

. Issues with the global supply issues with new cars, means that deliver of ordered
vehicles has been slow. Orders made in 2021/22 are taking 6 — 12 months to be fulfilled
50 costs will not be incurred until 2022/23.

Table 5. Funding of Capital Programme

Hewvised
Programme Capital Funding for the year APE::L:T: Actual Varianes
Em £m
Capital Receipis 0.570 0.204 0.366
| Capital Grants :' 0.500 0.352 0,108
Revenue Contribution l;-u:r l.’..:-a;'.dal E‘:FE‘I'IELEI'_E . -EICH:ID 3.653 3 5533
I External Fundimng . . IZ!I:HZIEI o8 0.042) I
Cantribution from reserves 0.517 0.737 - (0.220) |
Borrowing 25,528 | 5.826 19,702

Total Funding 27115 10.860

Capital expenditure has been funded through a range of sources principally £5.826m funded
through borrowing, which is the principal source of financing available to the PCC to fund the
capital programme. Borrowing levels are governed by the prudential code which determines
whether borrowing is affordable. The PCC has taken the opportunity to ulilise £3.5m of the
outtum resources available for an in-year Revenue Contribution to Capital to fund the capital
programme. This has reduced the requirement to borrow and has saved ongoing revenue costs
to service the debt interest and repayment. The remaining programme has been delivered using
a combination of planned use of reserves, and small contributions from Capital Grants and
Capital receipts which have been generated during the year,

Balance Sheet Position

Cash balances are invested in line with the Treasury Management Strategy, the priority being to
protect our investiments ahead of making a return. Due to the high level of internal borrowing
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(£21.0m), as al 31 March 2022 the PCC had only £3.5m invested short-term and during
2021/22 achieved an average retum of 0.076%.

The PCC's borrowing has reduced by £6.5m during the year. This reduction is because slippage
on the capital programme and the underspend on the revenue budget resulted in a more
favourable cashflow position during the year than expected, The temporary loan of £10m held
as at 31 March 2021 was repaid in July 2021 and replaced by another temporary loan of only
£5m in December 2021; no new long-term PWLE borrowing was required. Principal of £1.5m on
PWLB loans was repaid when it matured during the year and was notl replaced with new
borrowing. It is expected that new PWLB loans will be required in 2022/23 to finance the capital
programme.

West Mercia Reserves Position

The reserves held by the West Mercia PCC at the 31 March 2022 stand at £18.345m. Reserves
are an important part of the PCC strategy to deliver the objectives set out in the Police and
Crime Plan and the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Note 9 in the Accounts provides an
analysis of the reserves at the 31 March 2022 and shows the movement since 31 March 2021.

During the year there was a net movement in reserves of £0.546m which were utilised to fund
one off projects, the most significant spend was £0.910m invested in road safety, including the
new average speed cameras in operation on the A449. There was also £0.384m spent on one
off commissioning projects with pariners to reduce waiting lists and provide diversionary
activities for children at risk of falling into crime. As part of the 2022/23 budget setting an
additional £0.992m was approved to be added to reserves, based on the projected outturn, with
a further £3.717m approved after the year end when outturn was confirmed. This has resulted in
resenve balances being replenished as at the 31/03/22,

Table & below shows how West Mercia PCC's reserves are planned to be used during the
period up to 31 March 2023.
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Table 6 - West Mercia Reserves

Closing Approved Currant
Balance Transfers A ailable
Balancea
31032022 2022123 3132023
| General reserve 7.500 0.000 7.500
E e —r s | alic izl
Budget Equalisation resane 2.028 (0.967 ]. 1.061
Major Inve&ﬁgﬁﬁgﬂzs&n‘& . 2,594 [2594} 0.000
Infrastructure reserve .' 1.398 fﬂé?i’_} 1.026
Roads Safety reserve 0675  0.000 0.675
YJS | o3 0.000 0377
Commissioning Resarves o 1896 (0.973) 1.023
| Legal and insurance elaims reserve 1.445 | 0000  1.445
Council Tax Defict Grant reserve | 0.332 0.000 0.332 |

e 8.3 (4.906)  13.439

The requirement for reserves has been based on known future costs and an assessment of risk
of future budget pressures, particularly the Major Investigation reserve to fund the investigation
into maternity deaths at Shropshire & Telford Hospital NHS Trust. Approval has been given to
spend up to the available reserve if required. There has also been an assessment of risk facing
West Mercia and reserves required to mitigate that risk, including a self insurance fund to offset
claims made against West Mercia and a budget equalisation reserve which mitigates delays in
achieving transformational change efficiency targets. Whilst there is currently proposals to utilise
£4.906m of reserves, it is expected that further proposals will be made during the year to the
PCC for his approval to spend on one-off projecis.

The balance on General Reserves is now £7.500m. The assessment of the Treasurer is that
this is adequate to meet the risks faced by West Mercia in the next 12 months and over the
MTFP. The 2022/23 Budget and MTFP Report contains the Treasurer's annual review of the
adequacy of reserves and a reserves strategy over the MTFP period. This has been updated by
a 2021/22 Reserves Statement approved in May 2022, The reserves held will ensure that West
Mercia has the resources available to support the PCC in achieving his objectives, whilst
ensuring resilience to cope with unexpected financial burdens which may occur.

Pensions Liabilities

In accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, the cost of employment and
post-employment liabilities is shown in the Group’s Accounts. The Group maintains a negative
pensions reserve to match the estimated liability in relation to Police Officers, Police Staff and
Police Community Support Officers’ retirement benefits, which at the 31 March 2022 is
£2,9056m (PCC element of £9.0m). However, in considering the impact that this has on the
financial position of the PCC it must be remembered that:

s Police Staff (including ¥JS employees) and Police Community Support Officers are entitled
to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is a funded scheme. The
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liability will be funded by future planned increases in both the employee and employer
contributions;

« The Police Pension Scheme, under the current arrangements, is funded partly by police
officer and employer contributions. If there is insufficient money in the Pension Fund Account
to meet all expendilure commitments in any particular year the Home Office will fund the
deficit;

= The Paolice Pension Scheme and LGPS have been subject to reform and both are now
career average (CARE) schemes. Therefore the future benefit structures, as well as the lavel
of contributions, will change.

Further information about the IAS 19 liability can be found under Note 36, and information about
the Police Pensions Fund Account can be found on page 105.

Section 6. Value for Money

Both the PCC and Chief Constable have a duty to provide efficient and effective policing at an
affordable cost. A key area for ensuring this is effective govemance and oversight. Financial
management arrangements are in place to ensure robust spending decisions are made by
Budget Holders. Oversight of the total budget by West Mercia Governance Board ensures that
there is comprehensive overview of financial performance. These are supported by Force
Delivery Group, Change and Transformation Board and Estates Board to ensure that key
projects are delivering improved effectiveness, efficiency and economy based on business
cases.

The PCC and Force have faced significant financial challenges, despite this a sustainable
financial position has been achieved. The Force has demonstrated a record of delivering
savings over the past 5 years and the PCC has established a sustained level of reserves 1o
manage financial risks, all in the context of the COVID-19 cost pressures, emerging global
economic issues, and the withdrawal from the Stralegic Alliance with Warwickshire Police. In
2021/22 West Mercia moved to a hosted service contract of the remaining provision of services
to Warwickshire covering ICT, and Forensics, with services due to end by April 2023,

Key areas of investment have been in transformation across ICT with the focus on digital
services and forensics. There is a need to update and deliver a modem, flexible and robust ICT
infrastructure to support new and compliant information and communication technologies that
will accommodate the new ways of working within West Mercia Police. This transformation
programme is a multi-year investment programme and further opportunities to deliver more
efficiencies will be realised over the medium term.

Throughout 2021/22, the Change and Transformation Board, attended by chief officers,
programme managers and representatives from across the Foerce and PCC, meet monthly to
review progress and agree priorities and actions on the key transformation project areas. It
oversees the delivery of appropriate outcomes to achieve strategic objectives and to monitor
benefits realisation. The benefits realised from the transformation programme in terms of
efficiency and the generation of savings are being monitored as the work develops, as they form
a significant proportion of the financial savings targets within the Medium Term Financial Plan
and are critical to the future financial sustainability and efficiency of the Farce.
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The Estates Service has been redesigned following the decision of Worcestershire County
Council to withdraw from a joint operation: Place Partnership Limited. The PCC has taken
control of the Estates Service bringing the service in house from Apnl 2021, This decision was
taken to develop and implement a more responsive, efficient and effective estates service for
the Police and Fire and Rescue Services. A revised Estates Strategy has been approved during
2021/22 and prioritisation of key projects such as the Joint Redditch Fire and Police Station and
ensuring that the Firearms Training Unit is fit for purpose have been commenced. Alongside this
is the work being underlaken lo ensure that all the estate is fit for purpose and running
efficiently. This has commenced with an assessment of the full updated condition of the eslale.

Section 7 - The Medium Term Financial Plan

Setling the budget and precepl proposal is one of the key responsibilities of the West Mercia
PCC under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and one of the most important
decisions that he has to make.

In setting the 2022/23 budget the PCC has regard to a wide range of factors including:

» Priorities within the Safer West Mercia Plan;

« National targets and objectives including the officer uplift programme and slrategic
policing requirement,

+ The outcome of public consultation;

« Plans and policies of other partner agencies relating to community safety and crime
reduction;

« The major investigation info allegations of manslaughter and corporate manslaughter at
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospitals NHS Trust

The PCC agreed a 2022/23 net revenue budget of £260.485m which includes reserves
movement of £1.073m resulting in a budget requirement of £259.412m. The budget is funded
by
- £145.382m of government funding, which has increased by £7.181m compared to
2021122,
- £113.584m from the Council Tax through the precept, which increased by 3.94% in
2022/23

- £0.312m contribution from a predicted surplus on Collection Fund Balances.

The PCC has driven reform within West Mercia. He has prioritised the best use of the funds
available to him and focused on implementing efficiency programmes and productivity gains.
Progress continues lo be made during 2022/23, albeit in the shadow of the challenges
presented by COVID19, to ensure West Mercia Police can deliver the best possible service and
value to the public.

The PCC continues to set a balanced budget and the Force is living within its means, with
rezaerves focused on being used on non-recurring expenditure. This financial discipling is
important as it brings stability and places West Mercia Police in a strong position to deal with
financial challenges in 2022/23 and beyond. These will include budget pressures through
increased price and pay inflation, and the ongoing costs of transforming and modernising
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palicing. This budgel continues the PCC's commitment of strong financial stewardship on behalf
of the public of West Mercia ensuring every penny counts in policing.

The largest single additional investment in this budget is on an additional 55 officers in Local
Investigations, 40 of which are to direclly increase the capacily of the team and to reinforce
police investigations at a cost of £1.043m in 2022/23. This investment is intended to ensure that
specialist resources maintain and retain ownership of more local invesligations, ensuring the
best possible service to victims of crime and freeing up Safer Neighbourhood Teams to spend
more time on the most visible, accessible community palicing that the public value so much.

Keay to the PCCs vision includes

- The PCC's 2022/23 budgel includes the provision to increase West Mercia's
establishment by an additional 125 officers, which will take the establishment up to 2,456
police officers. This represents the highest number of officers the Force has seen since
2009 and is very close to the highest level seen on record in West Mercia.

- \Violence against women and girls has been highlighted nationally in a number of
harrowing recent examples. Whilst it is clear that more work needs to be done in this
area of crime, it is a societal issue and not down to one organisation or body to solve.

- With a focus on reducing harm on our roads this budget supports the ongoing
cormmitment from the PCC, whe added a further 19 roads policing officers in 2021/22,
with further resources to directly tackle speeding in communities. Additional money for
this work is provisionally allocated with final confirmation subject to business case from
West Mercia Police and approval by the PCC.

- A fit for purpose West Mercia police estate. West Mercia's estates service has been
successiully remadelled and moved back to an in-house provision within the Office of the
PCC. This budgetl reflects that, with further significant capital investment in police
estates, both in 2022/23 and beyond. Plans for a new joint Police & Fire station in
Redditch are well developed with expectation that it will be open in April 2024, Plans ara
also in development around a new Northern Hub.

- Investing in Digital Police Services will continue following on from other multi-million
pound investments by the PCC in recent years, in 2022/23 capital transformational ICT
projects of £15.4m and revenue Digital Services programmes of £21.0m will be funded.
This ensures continued delivery of the programme which commenced in 2020/21 as part
of the PCC's ongoing commitment to reform and modernising the service.

Section 8 - Environmental Scanning

A Strategic Assessment has been undertaken for 2022/23 which develops a view of the current
policing environment. This includes the threat from crime and the changing situation in relation
to macro issues such as the political and financial state and how they might impact on our
communities and how we police. The Force will remain mindful of these in setting its strategy to
ensure it is able to provide effective policing services in the medium term. As set out in Diagram
4 the current assessment has a focus on Prevention moving to a more primary and secondary
prevention approach in tackling crime. Taking a public health approach by working closely with
partners to target the known risk factors for crime in increasing driving police activity.
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Section 9 - The Statement of Accounts

It is the purpose of the statement of accounls (the Accounts), consisting of the financial
statements and notes to the accounts, to demonstrate that the Group, consisting of the PCC
and the Chief Constable has accounted for public money properly and been economical,
efficient and effective in the use of that public money. To betler understand the financial
statements it is important to understand the arrangements that govern the PCC and Chief
Constable and the relationship between them.

The treatment of transactions (income and expenditure) and balances (assets, liabilities and
reserves) in the PCC's and Chief Constable's Accounts under the Group arrangement is
explained in Note 3, 'Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies’. The PCC and Chief
Constable are classified as a group arrangement under accounting standards, the Chief
Constable being a subsidiary of the PCC. The specific accounting treatment takes into account
the substance of the arrangements for goveming the two entities and recognises the formal
stage 2 transfer of responsibilities from the PCC to the Chief Constable that tock place on 1
April 2014,

A summary of these arrangements was set oul earlier in this report. The Accounts reflect
current legislation and local operating arrangements, where legislation takes precedent over the
Code or where the Group position differs from that of the PCC this is explained in the Accounts
and the notes. The following is an explanation of the contents of the Accounts and the main
financial statements, their purpose and relationship between them.

They comprise.

« The Statement of Accounting Policies, which sets out the accounting policies adopted
by the Group and the PCC and explains the basis on which the financial transactions are
presented;

« The Statement of Responsibilities for the Accounts, which sets out the responsibilities
of both the PCC and the responsible Chief Finance Officer for the preparation of the
Accounts;

« Auditor's Report gives the auditor's opinion of the financial statements and of the
Group's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources,

« The Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) is a summary of the
income and expenditure received and used to provide services during the year and
shows how the PCC has funded the cost of net expenditure incurred at the request of the
Chief Constable by an intra-group transfer. The surplus or deficit on the provision of
services line flows into the MIRS to be transferred into the balance sheet as explained
below;

« The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the Group and the PCC. A further analysis and explanation of
the purpose for which these unusable reserves are held can be found at Note 8. The
Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
praviding the Group's services, more details of which are shown in the CIES. This is
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different to the statutory amounts that can be charged against the police fund and
taxalion, whereas the net increase before transfers to earmarked reserves is the sum
after adjustment for the entries required to comply with accounting standards, Note 7
provides detailed analysis of the adjusiments contained in the MIRS:

« The Balance Sheet, which shows the value as at the 31 March 2022 of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the Group and PCC. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the usable and unusable reserves, which hold the transfers from the CIES,
which have moved through the MIRS;

* The Cash Flow Statement, which summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising
from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes;

» Notes to the Accounts, these comprise a detailed analysis of the summarised financial
information in the Core Financial Statements, including the Expenditure and Funding
Analysis (Note 1);

= Police Officer Pension Fund Account - This identifies the payments in and out of the
Police Officers Pension Fund Account for the year:

= The Annual Governance Statement — This section describes how the PCC conducts
business in accordance with proper standards and presents the findings from the annual
review of the effectiveness of systems of intemal control. The Annual Govermnance
Slatement does not form par of the Accounts but is included here for reporting purposes.

The Group and PCC Accounts should be read alongside the Chief Constable's Accounts, which
can be found on the PCC's website.
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Statement of Accounting Policies for the Group and the PCC

i.  General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group's and the PCC's transactions for the
2021/22 financial year and its position at the year-end. The accounting policies are the
specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Group and the
PCC when preparing and presenting the financial statements. The Group and the PCC are
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit
Requlations 2015, which must be prepared in accordance with proper accounting praclices.
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2021/22 supported by Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation
of certain categories of non-cument assets and financial instruments. The principal
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the year. The Statement of
Accounts have been prepared on the basis that the Group and the PCC is a going concem.

ii. Changes in Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events and conditions in the Group's financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as
if the new policy had always been applied. No changes have been made to the Group’s
accounting policies in 2021/22.

iii. Income and Cost Recognition and Intra-group Adjustment

The PCC is responsible for the Police Fund into which all income is received including the
main funding streams of Police Grant, Revenue Support Grant and Council Tax as well as
income from charges and from which all costs are met. The Police Fund is held in a single
bank account: the Chief Constable does not have a separate bank account into which
money can be received or from which payments can be made.

The Chief Constable’s Accounts show the cost of undenaking day to day operational
policing under the direction and control of the Chief Constable. Expenditure shown in the
CIES include the salaries of police officers, PCS0s and police staff as well as the cosl of
purchases. In addition, a charge is shown for the Chief Constable's use of assets, which
are strategically controlled by the PCC. The capital charge is equal to depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets plus any charge for
impairment through obsolescence or physical damage. To fund the operational
expenditure, the Chiel Constable’s Accounts show income by way of funding or financial
guarantee provided by the PCC to the Chief Constable. This treatment forms the basis of
the intra-group adjustment between the Accounts of the PCC and the Chief Constable.
However, because the Chief Constable does not have a bank account there is no actual
transfer of cash between the PCC and the Chief Constable.
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The cosl of post employment benefits accrued by serving and ex-police officers and police
staff and the cost of accrued absences is also shown in the Chief Constable's Accounts.

iv. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

« Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision
of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the
service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract:

*  Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap
betwaen the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet;

* Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by police
officers, police staff and PCS0s) are recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are made;

¢ Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract;

*» Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has nol been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debls may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected:

*  Manual accruals of revenue or expenditure are not made where the value of the item
is less than £1,000.

v. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments
that mature in no more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

vi. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current
assels during the year:
. Depreciation atiributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

»  Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off.
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«  Amortisation of intangible non-current assels attributable to the service.

The Group is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement egual to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Group in accordance with statutory
guidance, Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the Police Fund Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision), by
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustiment Account in the MIRS for the
difference between the two. Further information can be found in the Treasury Management
Strategy available on the PCC's website.

vii. Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, resl days,
time off in liew, paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees
and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render
service to the Group. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitltements (or any form of
leave, £.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary
rates applicable at the start of the following accounting year, being the period in which the
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the MIRS so that holiday benefits are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs, The
accumulated cost is carried to the Chief Constable's Balance Sheet where it is held as a
liability and is matched by an unusable reserve.

Termination Benefits
This policy only applies to members of police staff, including PCS0s.

Termination benefits are amounts payable to employees as a result of a decision by the
PCC or the Chief Constable to terminate their employment before the normal retirement
date or an employee’'s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an
accruals basis to the Cost of Services in the CIES at the earlier of when the employer can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the employer recognises costs for a
restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the Police Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the nofional debits and credits for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
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Post-Employment Benefits

Police officers and police staff, including PCS0Os have the option of belonging to one of two
separate pension schemes relevant to them:

Police Pension Schame (PPS) for Police Officers.
. Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) for Police Staff administered by
Worcestershire County Council.

Both schemes provide index-linked defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums
and pensions) and are determined by the individuals' pensionable pay and pensionable
service.

The LGPS and the PPS are accounted for as defined benefits schemes as follows:

= the liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Group are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of
the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefils earned to date
by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates,
etc, and projections of anticipated eamings for current employees.

* International Accounting Standard (1AS) 19 requires the nominal discount rate to be
sel by reference to market yields on high quality corporate bonds or where there is no
deep market in such bonds then by reference to government bonds.

« the PPS liabilities are discounted using the nominal discount rate based on
govemment bond yield of appropriate duration plus an additional margin and the
LGPS liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate
based on corporate bond yields at 31 March 2022,

«  the discount rates used by the actuaries and other principal assumptions are set out in
MNote 36.

« the assels of the LGPS fund atiributable to the Group are included in the Balance
Sheat at their fair value:
= quoled securities — current bid price

= unquoted securities — professional estimate
«  unitised securities — current bid price
s  property — market value
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
»  Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service eamed
in the current year — allocated in the CIES to the senvices for which the employees
worked.

« Past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions
whose effect relates to years of service eamed in earlier years — debited to the
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Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CIES as part of Non Distributed
Costs.

s+ Net interest on the net defined benefit liability i.e. net interest expense for the
Group — the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that anses
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line of the CIES - this is calculated by applying the discount rate used 1o
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability at the end of the period — taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit

payments,

» Re-measurements comprising:
- the return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

- actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

« Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer's contributions to
the pension fund in settlerment of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Police Fund Balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Group to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the MIRS this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve o
remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the Police Fund of being required to account for
refirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are eamed by
amployees.

A difference between the two schemes is that the PPS is an unfunded, defined benefit, final
salary scheme, whereas the LGPS is a funded, defined benefit scheme. As the PPS is
unfunded there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities and cash
has to be generated o meet the actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. This
is further explained in the Notes to the Police Pension Fund Account (pg 106).

It should be noted that the Group has not exercised powers o make discretionary awards
of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. The approach set out in the joint
Government Actuary's Department (GAD)-CIPFA paper "Assessment of Pension Liabilities
Disclosures” as realised in the GAD model has been followed in order to salisfy the
disclosure requirements of the Code,

The Group has powers to make awards to Police Officers who have ceased to be mambers
of the police Force and are permanently disabled as a result of an injury received without
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his/her own default in the execution of histher duty. These payments are made in
accordance with the Police (Injury Benefit) Regulations 20086.

vili. Fair Value Measurement

The Group measure some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assefs and
investment properties and some of its financial instruments fair value at each reporting
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either;

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
b} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Group measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Group takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

ix. Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest payable are based on the carrving
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash payments over
the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.
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For the straightiorward borrowings that the Group has, this means thal the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued
interest); and interest charged to the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to
the loan agreement.

The Group has not entered into the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing.
Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

s Amortised cost - these are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
CIES for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For mast of the financial assets held
by the Group, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the
CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement;

« fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) — these are recognised on the Balance Sheet
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value, Fair value gains and
losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services, The techniques for fair value measuraments are set out in Accounting Policy
vili. Any gains or losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES;
and

+ fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — not applicable for the
Group.

x. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donalions are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable
assurance that:

« the Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

= the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the CIES until conditions
attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations thal
specify thal the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the assel
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified, the grant conditions must be adhered to and specific outputs, or fulure economic
benefits or service polential delivered, otherwise the grant sum, must be returned to the
transferar.
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Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (altributable revenue grants and all
capital grants) in the CIES.

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund
Balance in the MIRS. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it
is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted
to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure,

xi. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised
when it is expecled that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the
intangible asset to the Group.

Internally generated assels are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the Group will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it
can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred
during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). Expenditure
on the development of websiles is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended lo promote or advertise the Group's services.

Intangible assels are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only re-valued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active market,
The depreciable amount of all intangible assets is amortised over their useful lives to the
Cost of Services in the CIES. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the Cost
of Services in the CIES. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an
intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted
to have an impact on the Police Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed oul of the Police Fund Balance in the MIRS and posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xii. Inventories and Long-Term Contracts
Inventories are required to be included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or current

replacement value. Inventories are valued at actual cost price. They are included on the
Balance Sheet as part of Deblors and other current assets as the amount is immaterial.
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xiii. Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to eamn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way lo facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based
on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at
arm'’s length, that is, the significant observable inputs (Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy).
Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at
the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and
losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and resull in a gain for the General Fund Balance, However,
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to
have an impact on the Police Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the Police Fund Balance in the MIRS and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account
and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xiv. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the PCC and / or Chief Constable
in conjunction with other ventures or organisations that involve the use of the assets and
resources of the ventures rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Group
recognises on its Balance Sheet the assels (Property, ICT and Vehicles) that it controls or
its share thereof. Joint assets give rise to benefits of the joint ventures. The Group also
recognises the liabilities that it incurs. The CIES is debited and credited with the
expenditure it incurs and the share of costs incurred or income earned through the joint
pperation.

The alliance with Warwickshire Police was a jointly controlled operation. The alliance was
primarily a joint venture for operational purposes where each party drew on the pooled
resources to deliver services. Assels created or developed as an integral part of the
alliance were also shared. The formal alliance with Warwickshire Police ended in 2021 and
was replaced by 5.22 collaborative agreements to provide some residual services.

A full explanation of the treatment of transactions and balances under the alliance has been
explained fully in Note 14 to the Accounts ‘Pocled Budgets and Joint Operations’.

®¥v. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from
the lessor to the lessee. The Group has reviewed its contracts register and has determined
that it has no other finance leasing arrangements apart from the joint facility in Bromsgrove
{Note 19(i) to the Accounts). All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification,
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Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease bul convey a right to use an
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Group as Lessee (Operating Lease)

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the
services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made
on a straight-ine basis from the commencement of the lease term over the life of the lease;
even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.q. there is a rent free period at the
inception of the lease).

The Group as Lessor (Operating Lease)

Where the Group grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
eguipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES. Credits are made on a straight-line basis
from the commencement of the lease term over the life of the lease, even if this does not
maich the palten of payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the
lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease lerm on
the same basis as rental income.

The Group as Lessor (Finance Lease)

Where the PCC grants a finance lease over a property, the relevant asset is written out of
the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount
of the asset in the Balance Sheet (Property, Plant and Equipment) is written off to the Other
Operaling Expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain,
representing the PCC's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES
as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. nelted off against the carrying value of the asset
at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-lerm debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

+ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease debtor (together with any premiums received); and

+ finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expendilure
line in the CIES).

The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not pemmilted by statute to increase the
General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium
has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the capital receipts
reserve in the MIRS. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by
the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts in the MIRS. When the future rentals are
received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write
down the lease debtor, At this point the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the
Capital Receipts Reserve, The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council
tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for
capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account
from the General Fund Balance in the MIRS,
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xvi. Segmental Analysis

Income and Expenditure is reported in the CIES on the basis of the Group's organisational
structure. This requirement arose from CIPFA's “Telling the Story” review thal revised the
presentation of Public Sector financial statements so that the CIES reflects the way that
organisation's operate and manage services. The Group monitors and manages its
financial performance on the basis of three segments to reflect its distinct service areas.
These three segments are: Policing Services, Police and Crime Commissioner and Youth
Justice Service. The costs of overheads and support services are charged to each segment
on the same basis as they are reporled in the financial performance reports. That is, the
costs fall in the segment that is responsible for the support service and that directly
manitors and manages thal service.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) emanated from the Telling the Story review
and brings together local authority performance reported on the basis of expenditure
measured under proper accounting practices (including depreciation and the value of
pension benefits eamed by the employees) with statutorily defined charges to the Police
Fund. The EFA reconciles the net expenditure chargeable to council tax to the CIES,
analysed by service segment and thereby provides a direct link between the CIES and the
budget ie the Police Fund.

xvii. Prior Year Adjustments

Prior year adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to comrect
a material error. Changes are applied retrospectively (unless otherwise stated) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

xviii.Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE).

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of PPE is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefils or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assel's potential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

. the purchase price;
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. any cosls allributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for il to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
managemaeant.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current value; the
Group has not acquired any asset via an exchange. The Group did not receive any donated
during the year,

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

Assets Under Construction — historical cost;
Operational property — Current value, determined as the amount that would be
paid for the asset in its existing use (Existing Use Value — EUV);

. Where non-property assets that have short useful lives and / or low values,
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assels included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the
year end, but as a minimum every five years. Desktop reviews of certain properties not
farmally valued during the current year are carried out annually to ensure that this holds
true as at the Balance Sheet date; following this review, management detarmined that the
carrying amounts of Operational Assets were not materially different from their current
value. Valuations are carried out by qualified valuers, employed in the Office of the Paolice
and Crime Commissioner's Estates team, the most recent being carried out as at 31
January 2022, The valuers provided the PCC with assurance that there had been no
material changes in the valuations between the valuation date and 31 March 2022. The
basis of valuation used is sel out below as recommended by CIPFA and in line with the
Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and guidance notes of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve lo recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited
to the CIES where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to the Cost of
Services.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for;

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is wrilten down against that balance
{up to the amount of the accumulated gains); or

. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the Cost
of Services in the CIES.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only,
the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

The PCC is holding plots of land around the Hindlip site which are important to sacuring the
ongoing operalional use of the site by prohibiting access and controliing its use: for
example the church and farm land. These are not operational as such but neither is it right
to classify them as heritage assets or investment assets, even where a small amount of
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income is generated on the farm land, which is coincidental to its main purpose. The value
of these plots of land is included in the Balance Sheet as part of the value of the Hindlip
Land and Buildings.

Componentisation

Where a building is above the Group's materiality then it will be considered for
componentisation.

The value of each component is considered in relation to the value of the asset. As a rule
significant expenditure amounting to greater than 25% of the total cost will be considered
for componentisation.

Expenditure on Improvements amounting to less than £250k will not be considered for
componentisation.

Components of bulldings and the life of each component are:

. Structure 60 years

. Mechanical and electrical 15 years

. Roof — pitch 60 years

. Roof — flat 20 years
Impairment

Assels are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the assel in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance
{up to the amount of the accumulated gains),

. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the Cost of
Services in the CIES.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Cost of
Services in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss and adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all PPE assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. Exception is made for assets without a
determinable finite useful life, i.e. freehold land and assets that are not yel available for use
such as assels under construction.
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Deprecialion is calculated on the siraighl-line method over:

. buildings — straight line allocation over the useful life of the properly as
estimated by the valuer;
. plant, furniture and equipment {including ICT) - 5 years;

. vehicles — 3 to 7 years (3 years — high-mileage, response vehicles; 5 years —
general use vehicles; 7 years - vans),
Mo depreciation is charged for the financial year in which an assel is acquired. A full year's
depreciation charge is made for the year of asset disposal.

Where an asset has major components and the cost is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assels and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account,

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an assel will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified
as an Assel Held for Sale. The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and
then carried at the lower of this amount and current value less costs to sell. Where there is
a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in cumrent CIES. Gains in current value are recognised only up
to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before they were classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for
Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. Assets that are to
be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an assel is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether PPE or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from
disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss
on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).
Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred
to the Capital Adjustment Account.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Police Fund Balance
in the MIRS,
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De Minimis

The Group has agreed a de minimis level of £10,000 for the acquisition, renewal or
replacement of buildings, plant and machinery or other equipment to count as prescribed
capital expenditure.

xix. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable esfimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
For instance, the Group may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a setlement of the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Cost of Services in the CIES in the year that
the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate as at
the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision caried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made); the provision is reversed and
credited back to the Cost of Services.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Group settles the obligation.

A contingent liability or a contingent asset arises where an evenl has taken place that gives
the Group a possible obligation or asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet bul disclosed in Note 29 to the Accounts.

xx. Reserves

The Group sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or o cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the Police Fund
Balance in the MIRS. Whean expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is
charged to the Cost of Services in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the CIES. The reserve is then appropriated back into the Police
Fund Balance in the MIRS so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the
expenditure.
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xxi. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the CIES in the year. Where the PCC has determined to meel the
cost of this expenditure from exisling capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the
MIRS from the General Fund Balance to the CAA then reverses out the amounts charged
so that there is no impact on the level of council tax. Notes 21 and 23 explain the REFCUS
incurred by the PCC during the year.

xxii. Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

xxiii. Council Tax

The council tax income included in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
(CIES) is the Group's share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations
determine the amount of council tax that must be included in the Groups general fund.
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the CIES and the amount
required be regulation to be credited to the general fund is taken to the collection fund
adjustment account and included as a reconciling item in the movement in reserves
statement.

The group recognises ils share of the council tax debtor and creditor balances and
impairment allowances in its balance sheet. The Group also recognises:

= A creditor in its balance sheet for cash received from the billing authority in
advance of the Police and Crime Commissioner receiving the cash from the
Council tax debtor, or:

= A debtor in its balance sheet for its attributable share of net cash collected from
council tax debtors by the billing authority but not paid over to it at the balance
sheet date.
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Statement of Responsibilities

Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia (the PCC)

The PCC is required lo:

» make arrangements for the proper administration of the PCC's financial affairs and to
ensure that one of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.
In this organisation that officer is the Treasurer to the Commissioner;

« manage the PCC's affairs to secure economic, efficient and effeclive use of resources
and safeguard the PCC's assels;

« approve the Statement of Accounts.

| accept the above responsibilities and approve these Statement of Accounts for 2021/22.

John Campion c"‘}(ﬁﬁ« éﬁ

Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia Date: 33 L f{w& [_;13}{)_;5

Responsibilities of the Treasurer to the Commissioner

The Treasurer to the Commissioner is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of
Accounts for the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia and Group in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Praclice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Treasurer to the Commissioner has:

« selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
« made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
« complied with the Code.

The Treasurer has also:
¢ kepl proper accounting records which were up to date;
= taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The unaudited Statement of Accounts for the Police and Crime Commissioner for West
Mercia and Group were issued on 7" July 2022 by authority of the Treasurer to the
Commissioner.

| certify that the Statement of Accounts represents a true and fair view of the financial
position of the PCC and the Group at the accounting date and of the income and expenditure

/?Pif.l'i.llarr:h 2022,

Treasurer to the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia
Date: E'?K,l:,;lllrz-j
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Independent auditor's report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on fnancial statements

Wa have audited the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner far Wast Mercia (tha ‘Police and Crime
Commissioner’) and its subsidiary the Chief Constable {the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the
Comprehensiva Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the Group, the Comprehensive Incoms and Expendiura
Statement (CIES) for the PCC, the Movemnen in Resanses Statament (MIRS) for the Group, the Movement in Reserves
Statement (MIRS) for the PCC, the Balanca Sheets for the Group and the PCC, the Cash Flow Statements for the Group
and tha PCC and notes 1o the financial staterments, mcluding 8 summary of significant accounting policies, and include the
police pansion fund financial statements compriging the Police Pension Fund Account and Notes 1o the Police Pension Fund
Account. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in their preparation ks applicable law and the
CIPFALASAAC Code of praclice on local sshority accounting in the United Kingdam 2021522,

In aur apinion, the financial slatemants:

= give atrue and fair view of the financisl position of the group and of the Police and Crime

Commissioner as at 31 March 2022 and of the group's expenditure and Income and the Polize and Crime
Commissloner's expeanditure and income for the year then ended;

+ have bean properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practios on bocal authority accounting in
the: United Kingdom 2021/22; and

= have been propared in accordanca with the requiremants of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014,
Basls for apinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UH) (15As (UK)) and appcabla law, 85
required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) {the Code of Audit Practice™} approved by the Compérolier and Auwdior
Genaral. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's responsibilties for the audit of the
financial statemants’ section of our repar. We are independant of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the group in
accordance with the athical requirerments that are relevant ko our swdit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, W
believe thal the audit evidence we have obtaned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis Tor owr opinion.

Conclusions relating to geing concern

We aret responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Treasurar o the Commissioner's use of the going concem
basis of accounting and, based on the audit svidence obtained, whethar & material wneartainty exists related to events or
conditicns that may cast significant doubt on the Police and Crime Commissioner and group's ability to continue a3 & going
concem, If we conclude that 8 matenial uncerainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report 1o the reiated
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify the auditor's opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audil avidenca obtained up to the date of oer raport. Howaver, Tuture events or conditions may
cause the Polica and Crime Commissioner and the group to coase to continua 85 a going concam,

In gur evaluation of the Treasurer to the Commissioner's conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within
the CIPFALASAAC Code of practice on local authadty accounting in the United Kingdom 2021522 that the Police and Crime
Commissioner and group's financial statamants shall be prapared on a going concem basis, wa considerad the inherent
risks associated with the continuation of sendces provided by the Police and Crime Commissioner and the group. In doing
50 wa had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial staslements and regularity of public sector
bodias in the United Kingdom {Revised 2020} on the application of 134 (LK) 570 Geing Concern to public sector entities, We
assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Polica and Crime Commissiones and group and the
Police and Crima Commissioner and group's disckosuras ovar the going concarm period.

Based on the work we have performad, we have not idenlified any mataral uncartainties relaling 1o evants or conditions
that, individually or collactively, may cast significant doubt on the Pofica and Crime Commissioner’'s and the group's abiity to
conbmee a5 & going concem B a pencd of at least twealve months oo whien the financial stataments are authonisad for

S SAME,

In auditing the financial stalements, we have concluded that the Treasurer to the Commissionar's use of the going concsm
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
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The responsibiliies of the Treasurer to the Commissionar with respect to going concem are described in the
‘Responsibilities of the Polics and Crirne Commissionar and the Treasurer o the Commissionisr for the financial statemeants’
saction of this repa.

Crther infermation

The Treasurer o the Commissioner is responsibhe for the atfwer information. The other information comprises the information
incheded in fhe Statement of Accounts, other than the Police and Crimé Commissioner and group financial siatemants and
our awditor's raport theraan. Our opinien on the financial stalements does not cover the ofher informalion and, except 1o the
eutent othersdise explicitly stated in owr report, we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

i conmection with our gudit of the financial statements, our responsibllity i 1o read the other information and, in daing $o,
congidar whlher e athar information ks matesally inconsistent with the financial sialemants of our knowledge of the Police
and Crime Commissiones and the group obiained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matesially misstated. Ifwa identify
such materal inconsistencies or apparent matedal misstatements, we ane required o delermine whather there is a material
misstatemant in the financial statements or 8 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a malerial misstatament of this othar information, we are requined 1o feporn that fact.

VW'a hava nathing to repart in (his regard,
Dther information we are required to report on by exceplion under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audt Practice published by the National Audit Office in Apet 2020 on behall of the

Compiroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whather the

Annual Govemnanca Staterment does nol cormply with the “delivering good govemance in Local Govemnraen] Frameswork 2016
Edtion’ publshed by CIPFA and SOLACE or is mislaading or inconsisbant with the information of which we ara awara from
o audit, We ane not mauired o consider whather the Annual Gowernance Statemant addrasses all fsks and controds or
that risks are satisfactonly addressad by inermal controks.

Wi have nothing to repor n thes regand.
Opinion an other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our epinion, Based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the fnancial statements and our knowladge of the
Palice and Crime Commissionar, tha other information published togather with the financial statements in the Statemant of
Accounts, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistant with the financial staterments,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Lincer the Code of Audit Practice, wa ang megquined to report B you (i

«  wa lssue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of,
or at the conclusion of the audit; or

« wa make 8 writhen recomimandation to the Police and Crima Commissianar under saclion 24 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; o

» wa make an application to the cour for & declaration that an item of accown is contrary o kw under Section 28 of the
Local Audit and Accountabilily Act 2014 in the coursa of, or at the conclusion of the aedil; o

» e issue an advisory nolice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 n the caurse of, or al the
conclusion af the audit or

+  wa make an application for judiclal review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course
af, of at the conclusion of the audit

W hawve nothing to repor in respact of the abowve matlers,

Responsibilities of the Police and Crima Commissionar and the Treasurer to the Commissioner for the financial
statements

As gxplaingd maee Tully in the Statemeant of Responsibiiiies, the Police and Crirme Commissionss |2 raquired to make
amrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and (o sacure thal one of its officers has the responsibility
Tar the administzation of those afeirs. That officer is e Treasurer 1o the Commissioner. The Treasuner to the
Commissionar is responsible kor the preparation of the Statament of Accounts, which includes the finencial stalamants, in
sccordance with proper practices as sel oul in the CIPFALLASAAC Coda of practica on local autharity acoounting in the
Linited Kingdom
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2021722, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal contral as the Treasurer to the
Commissioner delermines is necassary to enabile the preparation of financisl staterments that ane free from mataral
missiatamant, whather due ko frasd or esmor

In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer to the Commissioner i responsible for assessing the Police and Crima
Commissioner's and the groug’s ability 1o continue as a golng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers rolated to going
concam and using the gong concarmn basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the senieas
provided by the Police and Crime Commissionar and the group will no longer be provided.

The Paolice and Crime Commissionar s Those Chadged with Governance. Those charged with OVEMEBNCE B8 rasponsgibie
for aversesing the fmancisl reparting process

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statments as a whole sre free frem material
misstatement, whather due to frawd or emmor, and to issue an auditor's repor that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assuranca, bul is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs (LK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exdsts. Misstatements can arse from fraud or error and are cansiderad
rlerial if, individually or @ the aggregate, they could reasanably be axpactad to influence the seonomic decisions of users
takan on the basis of these financial statements.

A lurther description of our responsibilifies for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting

Council's wabsste at: waw.fre org ukiayditorsresponsibiliies. This description forms parl of our auditor's report.

Explanation as to what exent the audit was considered capahle of detecting iregularities, including frawd

Irregularitias, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and ragulations. Wea design procedures in B with
our responsibilties, oullined above, to detect material misstatements in raspect of irregularities, including fraud. Owdng 1o the
inherent limiations of an audit, there (8 an unavoidable risk that materal misstatements in tha financial staternants rrany oot
be detected, even though the audil is propady planned and performed in accordance with tha [SAs (L),

The extenl 1o which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularties, including fraed is detailed below:

-

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable 1o the Police and Crime
Comréssioner and the group and determined that the mos! significant ,which are directly relevant to specific assartions
in the financial staterments, ane those related to the reporting frameworks (ntemational accounting standards as
interpreted and adapted by the CIPFALASAAC Code of practice cn local autharity accounting in the United Kingdom
2021722, The Local Audit and Accountabiity Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Governenent
Act 2003 and the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011), Wi also identified the following additional
regulatory framewarks in respect of the palice pension fund; the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, The Polics Pension
Fund Regulations 2007, The Police Pensions Regulations 2006 and the Police Pensions Regulations 2015,

Wa enquired of senior officers and the Police and Crime Commissionar, conceming the Police and Crima Commigsionar
and group's pollcles and procedunes relating to;
= Ihir identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations:

- Iha detaction and response to the risks of fraud: and
- The estabishment of internal controls to mitigate fsks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and reguiations.

Wea enguired of senlor afficers and the Police and Crime Commissioner, whether they were sware of any instances af
non-compiance with laws and reguiations or whether they had any knowledga of actual, suspected or allaged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibiity of the Police and Crime Commissioner and group's financial statements to matarial
misstatement, including how fraud might ooour, by evaluating officars’ incentives and opportunities for manipulation of
tha financial stalerents, This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls, We deterrmined Bl
tha princEpal risks were in relation ko:

= large and unusual journal entries posted during the vear and post year end; and

= 1he significant accounting estimates in the inancial statemants, including those related to the valuation of praperly,
plant and equipment and (ha s pensions lisbility.

e audit procedures inwvalved:

= evaluation of the design effectivensss of contrals that the Treasurer ta the Commissioner has in place to pravent
and deted fraud:

~  journal eniry testing, with & Focus on large and unusasal journal entries posted during the year and post year end;
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- challanging assumplions and judgements made by managemsnt in its significant accounting estimates in respec
of land and Building valuations and the net defined beneafil pension kabdity valuation; and

assessing the extant of complance wilh the redevant laws and regulations as part of our grocedures on the ralated
financial statemant ibem,

+  These sudit procedures ware designed to provide reasonable sssurance that the financial statemants were free from
fraud or error, The risk of nol detecting a material misstaternent due to frawd Is higher than the risk of not detecting one
rasulling fram arror and detacting Emegularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that
rasull fram errar, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealmant, forgery or infentional misrepresentations. Also,
the furthar remowed non-cormpliance with laws and regulations is from events and ransactons reflected in the financis
statements, the less Bely we would bacome awana of it

= The team communications in respect of potential nen-compliance with relevant laws and regulations, including the
potential for fraud in revenue and expendilure recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related 1o land and
BusktEng valuations, the nat defined pension liabdty valuation and expanditure accruals,

«  (wr assassment of the appropriatenass of the collactive compatence and capabilities of the Police and Crime
Commizsioner and group's engagement leam inclsded consideration of the engagement Leanm's.

—  umderstanding af, and practical experience with audit engagements al & similar netura and complesity fhraugh
approprale iraining and paricipation

knowdedge of the police sectar

—  understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Police and Crime Commissionar and group
including:

the provisions of the applicable legislation [ guidance iaseed by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE
- lha applicable stalutory provisions,
In assessing the potential risks of matenial misstatement, we obtained an understanding ol

~ e Police and Crime Commissionar and group's operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and
its services and of s objectives and strategies to understand the classes of iransactions, account balances,
expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in rsks of materal misstatament.

~  the Police and Crime Comnissionar and group's conirol environment, incuding the poficies and procedures
implemanted by the Police and Crime Commissioner and group 1o ensure compliance with the requirements of the
finarczal reporting frameswork,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - the Police and Crime
Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in

its use of resources

Matier on which we are réquired Lo report by axception — tha Police and Crire Commissioner’s armangements for secunng
economy, efficency and effectivenass in ils use of resources

Undar the Code of Audil Practica, we are requined to repor 1o yau i, In our opinion, we have not been able fo satsly
oursalves that the Police and Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for sacuring aconomy, efficiency and
efectivenass in its use of resources Tor the yaar ended 31 March 2022,

We have nothing to repor in respect of the above mather,

Responsibilities af the Police and Crima Commissionar
The Police and Crime Commissionsr (s responsible for putling in place proper arangements for securing economy,

efficiency and effectiveness in 8 use of resources, o ensure propar stewardship and govamance, and o review
regulardy the adequacy and effectivenass of these arrangemants.
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Auddor's responsibilies for the review of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s amangements for securing econamy,
efficiency and effectivanass in il uze of resources

We are required under Section 2001 )] of the Local Audit and Accountabdily Acl 2014 to be satisfied that the Police and
Crima Commissioner has made proper arangements for securing aconomy, efficiency and effectivenass in its use of
resources, We are not requined to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Polica and Crirme
Commissioner's arangements for securing economy, efficency and effecliveness in its use of resources are operating
affactively.

W have undertaken our réview in accordance with the Code af Audil Practice, having regard 1o the guidanca issuad by the
Complroller and Auditor General in December 2021, This guidance sets oul the arrangements that fall within the scope of
‘proper arrangaments”. When reparting on these amangemants, the Code of Audit Practice requires audilars to structure
thair commantary on arrangements under threa spacified reporting critaria;

*  Financial sustainability: how the Police and Crime Commissioner plans and manages its resources io snsure it can
coninas to deliver ils services,

= Governancec how the Police and Crime Commissioner ansures that it makes informed dacisions and peoperly
manages its risks; and

*  Improving econcmy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Police and Crime Commissioner uses information abaut
its cosls and perdormance to improve the way il manages and dalivers ils services,

We have documented our undersianding of the arrangemants the Polica and Crime Commissioner has in place for each al
these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to suppart our risk assessment and cEdTrsenlany in oar
Auditor's Annual Report. In undertaking owr work, we have considered whather there is evidence to suggest thad there ane
significant waaknasses in arangerments.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Audit certificate

Wae cerdify that we have completed the audi for the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Marcla for
the year anded 31 March 2022 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the
Code ol Audit Praciics,

Lza of our regori

Thi% report is made sclely to the Palice and Crime Commissioner, as a bady, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Auds
and Accountabiity Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibiliies of Auditors and Audited
Bodses published by Public Sacior Audit Appaintments Limited. Our sudit work has been undartaken 5o that we might siale
i the Police and Crime Commissioner those mathers we ane required o stabe to the Police and Crima Commissioner in an
auditor's report and for no ather purposse. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do nol accept or Bssume responstbility 1o
anyond other than the Police and Crime Commissioner as a body, for our audil wark, for this report, or for the opinions we
hawe fammad.

Jacksan Murray

Jackson BMurray, Key Audit Pariner for and on behall of Grant Tharnion UK
LLP, Local Auditar

Bresbod
22 March 2023
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the
Group

This Statement shows the consolidated Group accounting cost and funding in the year of
providing services presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting praclices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Group raises taxation to cover expenditure in
accordance with requlations; this is different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and in the MIRS.

2020/21 | 2020/21 : 2021/22  2021/22 2021/22
Gross Gross | 2020021 Met = Gross Gross Het
xpenditure | Income | Expenditure £ Expenditure  Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

266,510 | (26,614) (28,559) |

259,896 | Policing Services 200,728

271,169

| Police and Crime
Commissionar

Youth Justica Sanace

18,480 {3,282) 15,208 20,143 (4,949) 15,194

2732 | (2,697 | 35 2751 | (2,809) |

Met Cost of Palicing
Sardices

307,722 | (32,593) 275,139

1,668 current assets (Mote 25) (37) _
59,177 | Financing and investment net expenditure {Note 11) 58 5?8
(263,217) | Taxation and non-spacific grant income (Mote 12) (286,239)

reivt vl Deficit on Provision of Services

452 {Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant &

Equipment Assets (Note 9 (i) (638)
Ra-measurement of the net defined benafit liability
220177 | Femeas | (56,645)

229,629 | Other Comprehensive (Income) & Expenditure (57,284)

i L[ Total Comprehensive (Income) & Expenditure
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for

the PCC

This Statement shows the accounting cost and funding in the year of providing services
presented in accordance with generally accepled accounting practices, rather than the amount
to be funded from taxation. The PCC raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
requlations; this is different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the MIRS. The CIES includes the intra-group transfer,
whereby the PCC provides resources to meel the cost of day to day policing provided by the

Chief Constable.

Gross Gross
Expenditure | Income

2020121 | 2020/21 |

2020/21 Net

Expenditure

£000 £000

£000

2021722 2021722
Gross | Gross
Expenditure  Income
£000 £000

(26,970)

S5

Palicing Services
Palice and Crime
Commissianer
Youth Justice Servica
Cost of Policing
Servicoes
Funding to the Chief
Carnglabha for financial 10 2E5 970

FESOURCRS Consurmead |

6,788 | (36,573)

20,143 (4, 849)|

(2,809) |

2,751 |

1
29318 | (@1045) (11727
251,131 i} 251,131
280,449 | (41,045) 239,404

Met Cost of Policing Services 285,633 (44.331)

1,688

Other operating expenditure - Loss on disposal of non-
current assats (MNafe 25)

687
(252,498)

Financing and investment rTlEII_-E:l!pEI'IIjﬂl;JI'E {Note 11)
Taxation and non-specific grant income Mofe 12) |

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

452

raz

1,174

10,455

{Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Proparty, Plant & |
Equipment Assets (Nate & (1))

| Re-measurement of the net defined benefit Bability
{Note 36)

-

2021/22

MNet
Expenditure
E£000
{29 B04)

15,194

(58)

(14,668)

255,970

241,302

(37)

Other Gnmprth-l-lﬁlw {Income)} & E:rpandimru_

Total Comprehensive (Income) & Expenditure
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Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) for the Group

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Group,
analysed into Usable Reserves (ie those that can be applied lo fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or {Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the
true economic cost of providing the Group's services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different to the statutory amounts
charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setling purposes. The Net
(Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves are undertaken
by the Group.

nappdlied

L]
L]
-
[ =
i
=@
)
(+4

Receipls

Reserve

Capital
ranis

E3d
E000 £000 £000 £000 E£000

Opening Balance at 1 April 2020 | 14,990 0 0 14,990 | (2,564,694) (2,549,704)

| Movement in reserves during 202021 | | L2

| Total Comprehensive Income and : 41
| Expendiare 1 (72,787) 0 0| (72,787) (229,629) (302, &

.'
G
u

Restated

Adjustmants nclme;\ accounting basis and

F T i}
funding basis under reguiations - : ?E'MQ | . I]- ?£,ﬂ4Ed (72.049)
Met Increasel|{Decrease) before transfers ' | 3 416
to Earmarked Reserves . :ﬂ'mj 0 . a (T38) (301,678)| (202416)
| Transfers tolfrom Earmarked Reserves g | 0 0l 0 0 0 0|
Increasef{Decrease) in Year (T3B) 0 (301,678)| (302,416)

Balance at 31 March 2021 Carried
Forward

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total Comprehensive Income and i | T
Expenditure 8 L it 0 0| (68.807) o7284)  (1323)

14,252 i 1] 14,252 | (2,866,372) (2,852,120)

.l!'.deJiﬁlll'l'IBrl'l:'.:i I'.:-Bt-wt!ﬁr'l al::cl:!-;.iming basis and 7 62,700 0 a 62,700 EEE,TI:II::I]' 0
funding basis under regulations i = G | T
Net Increasel{Decreasa) before transfers | o 1.323
to Earmarked Reserves ! 2k i 3 | _l:r e (5 }i i, I
Transfers toffrom Earmarked Reserves | 8 | i} i 0 0| a 1]
Increase/{Decrease) In Year 4,083 [ (5.418) (1,323)

Balance at 31 March 2022 Carried
Forward

18,345 | (2.871,788) (2,853.443)

*Re-stated 2020/21 unusable reserve balance — please see note 37
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Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) for the PCC

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the PCC,
analysed into Usable Reserves (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the
true economic cost of providing the PCC's services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different to the statutory amounls
charged lo the General Fund Balance for councl tax sefting purposes. The Net
(Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves are undertaken

by the PCC.

Total

Furnd
Rasarves

Police

Capital
RE calpls

i)

&
=
=
2
]

v

Granis
Unapplied

£000

Redordad

—

E£000

5 Raestated
Unusable
Reservies

Restated
Resarves

Total
Group

: .PEm'rlng Balance at 1 April 2020 | 14,990 0 | 0 14990 | 35980 | 50,970

|| li'rwamant in reserves during 2020/21
Total Comprehensive Income and e

| mﬁu; ; F {9,281) 0 0 (9.281) (1,174)| (10,455
Adjustments between accounting basis - '
and funding basis under regulations O i : il ==t :
MNet Increase before transfers to I '

| Earmarked Reserves !?Eﬂil 0 0 (738)| (9,717)| ([10,455)

| Transfers toffrom Earmarked Reserves | 8 0| 4] 0 0 | i]

Inc:raannf{l.'ln-::maﬂ} in Year
Balance at 31 March 2021 Carriad

Forward

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

(9,717)
26,263

(10,455)
40,515

Total Comprahensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments J:umwn&n am:-u-.lmg basis
| and funding basis under regulations

6,796

(2, T03)

Met Increase before transfers to
Earmarked Reserves

Tranﬁfers ml‘rmm EEIﬂ'I‘I.:tI'hE'd Reserves
Inﬂrﬁluﬂ:ninrnn} In Year
Balance at 31 March 2022 Carriad

Farward

4,093

6,796

(2, 703)

1,678

2,703

4,381

18,345

*Re-stated 2020/21 unusable reserve balance - please see note 37
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Balance Sheets for the Group and the PCC

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheat date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Group and the PCC. The net assets of the Group and the PCC (assels less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Group and the PCC. Reserves are reported
in twa categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the
Group and the PCC may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example, the Capital Receipts Reserve
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is
those that the Group and the PCC are not able to use to provide services. This calegory of
reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example, the Revaluation
Reserva) where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold;
and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the MIRS in the line ‘Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

~ Restated Restated
Tha PCC The Group Tha PCC The Group
as at as al as at as al
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2021 2022 2022
EDOD EDQD E000 £000
83,083 83,093 | Property, Plant & Equipment 21 88,535 | 88,535
345 345 | Investment Property 22 277 277
6,806 B.A%6 | Intangible Assets 23 6,162 | 6,162
3522 3,522 | Long Term Dablors aAT6
93,856 93,856 | Long Term Assets
i] 0 | Assets Held for Sala 25 L] 0
o 19,655 i:aTis Term Dabtors and olher current 26 12648 S
4871 9,871 | Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 3,485 3,485
i 0 Intra-Group Dablor
22,282 29,526 | Current Assets
(11,637) (11,637} | Short Term Borrowing a | (6.629) | (6,629)
(16,294) (31,877) | Short Term Creditors 28 | (16,323) | (32,919)
= 0 (361) | Previsions 29 0 0
{2,312) 0 | Intra-Group Creditor 10 (1,040 0
(30,943) (43,975) | Current Liabilities
{34,141) (34,141) | Long Term Borrowing 30 (32,614) {32.614)
(9.144) | (2895991 | pADULY REaing 1o Defined Banafi 36 (8,454) {2,805,618)
(1,371) {1,371) | Revenue Granis Receipts in Advanca 13 (1.211) (1,211)
k- (24) (24) | Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (20) {20)
(44,880) | (2,931,527 | Long Term Liabilities (42, 804) 53]
40,515 |  (2,852,120) | Net Assets / (Liabilities) 48,989
14,352 14,252 | Usable Reserves B 18,345 | 18,345
26,263 | (2,866,372) | Unusable Reserves
40,515 | (2,852,120) | Total Reserves

*Re-stated 2020/21 Opening Balanca Sheet — please see note 37
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Einancial Statements

The unaudited Statement of Accounts were issued on 7™ July 2022,

Treasurer to the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia_

Cash Flow Statements for the Group and the PCC

This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the PCC
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the PCC generates and uses cash and
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The
amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which
the operations of the PCC are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients
of services provided by the PCC and Chief Constable. Investing activities represent the extent 1o
which cash outflows have been made for resources, which are intended to contribute to future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on
future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the PCC.

The PCC | The Group Motes The PCC | The Group
2020021 2020021 2021/22 2021/22
£000 E000 EQ0O £000
| Net {surplus) ar deficit on tha provisien of | |
9,281 72,787 | gervices 1 (6,796) 58,607
Adjustrments 1o net (surplus) or deficit on tha
(7.883) (71389} provision of sendces for non-cash movements 343 (2,558) (67,959
Adjustments for items included in the nat
(surplus) or defict on the provision of services
1,390 1.3%0 | that are investing and financing activities e 488 498
2,748 2,788 | Net cash flows frem Operating Activities {8.854) (&,854)
11,911 11,911 | Investing Activities 34 8,705 8,705
(15727)|  (15,727) | Financing Activities 35 6535 | 6535
Net increa in cash
CE I oo i ey 6,386 6,386
Cash and cash equivalants at the baginning of
(8,843) (8243) | .o enorting period 27 (9,871) (9,874)

{9.871)

19,871)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the reporting period
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The following notes contain information which is in addition to that contained in the main
financial statements, and is intended to provide a fuller explanation and description of specific
figures to aid the reader's understanding of the Statement of Accouns.

1. Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA)

This Statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources
(government grants and council tax) by PCCs in comparison with those resources consumed
or eamed by PCCs in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows
how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes beitween the PCC's service
areas. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices
is presented more fully in the CIES.

The Group
2021122
Mt 2021122
Expenditure Adjustments
Chargeable to the batween the 2021722
Police Fund Funding and Met Expénditurs
Balances Accounting Basis inthe CIES
£000 £000 £000
| Palicing 227,801 43,268 271,169
| Police and Crime Commissioner 14,530 | 664 | 15,104 |
| Youth Justice Service [5&_}. ] {58
| Net Cost of Policing Services : 242,373 43,932 | 286,305
Other income and expenditure (246, 466) 18,768 (227,698) |
{Surplus) or deficit on provision of | ?
i (4,093) 62,700 58,60 |
Opening Police Fund at 31 March 2021 . (14,252)
Less Deficit on Police Fund in Year {4, 0F53)

Closing Police Fund at 31 March 2022 (18,34 5)
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2020721
Nat 2020/21
Expenditura Adjustmeants
Chargeable to the between the 2020721
Police Fund Funding and HNet Expenditure
Balances Accounting Basis in the CIES
£000
__I?_c;n!-:nng 218,127 40, '.-'-;.fr 259 846
F-"nll-:'.-l? and I.'Jnn'm: Cammissioner 14,8930 ETFI | 15,208
Youth Justice Service 35 0 35
Net Gnnt of Policing Services 234,002 Mnp4r| 275138
U'1hE|r income and FI[_!-EﬂdIlLL n {213 54 31,002 {202,35..?)-
tsur'plus} or deficit on prmiu.iurl n.f = B .
Opening Paolice Fund at 31 March 2020 (14,990}
Less Deficit on Police Fund in Year ?33"

Closing Police Fund at 31 March 2021

The PCC

2021/22
Het 2021/22
Expenditura Adjustments
Chargeable to the between the 2021122
Police Fund Funding and Met Expenditure
Balances Accounting Basis in the CIES
£000 £000
___Fig_l_c:mg Emm-::ea (=7, 254] r2,510) :?EI B04)
Pﬂllcﬂ and {.-I'Ir'l"l'D Dﬂ-ehmlasmner 141 53"..1 B&d I 15,194 |
| Youth Justice Ee:r'ﬂt::: 58| 0 | (58)
Net Cost of Palicing Services (12,822) (1,846) |  (14,868)
Funding ta lhe Chief Constable for financial - .
resources consumed 253,135 775 255,570
Other income and expenditure (246,466) (1,632) | (248 038)
(Surplus) or deficit on pravisien of e
Services {4,083) (2,703) (6,796)
Cpaning Police Fund at 31 March 2021 {14,252}
Less Diehcit on Palice Fund in Year (4,0593)

Clasing Police Fund at 31 March 2022

i(18,345)

i1
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20i20/21
Meat 2020721
Expenditure Adjustments
Chargeable to the between the 2020/21
Paolice Fund Funding and MNet Expanditure
Balances Accounling Basis In the CIES
£000
Faolicing Services B ¢zr5. DD?!_ o (968) ! (26, E?G] 1
Police and Crime Commissianer 14,930 278 | 15.208 |
":"n:,ﬂth .JL!‘I.IH':-F' S-F-nrlt.e | 35 0 N ?.\E
Ha-t Costof Fulmlng Services | {11,037}  {es0) | {11,727)
Funding to the Chied Gunslabl»{- for financial 945,129 6002 251 131
I'ES-G'.II'EES consumed 1 o . -
(}th&r income and ex pe nditure (233 ? -1-} 3,231 (230,123)
{ﬁurpluu} or deficit on provision of 738 8,543 9,281
Sarvices gt
Opaning Palice Fund at 31 March 2020 |:1£!,E?E_II;II_]_
Less Deficit on Police Fund in Year 738

Cloging Police Fund at 31 March 2021 (14,252)

1({a) Note to the EFA

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

The Group

; _ MNetChange -
-
Adjustments from Police Fund to -.;r """FF" - Paonsions .ﬁl:lr'l 4:;n"|l1:t" Adjustments .deui[l“l"r'l.{i
arrive at the CIES amounts "m{‘“.i Adjustments |u;~ i I'.' (note iv) 3
{modte i) (note il) (ke TH)
E £00a £0600 E000 E000
Palicing Services (1,200) 45,018 ! (535) {15) 43,268
Palice and Crime Commisskanar Iy 4 0 | ad | 664
[ Yauth J!L*.=.1ica Serica i §] 0 0 o |
Net Gost of Services (1.200)| 45882 (535) (15)| 43932
Cither incorrse and expanditure from the (408) 20,500 535 (1,849) 168 TBA
Funding Analysis | : ' ;

Differance between Pollice Fund

surplus or deficit and CIES surplus or {1.608) 66,272 i(1,964) 62,700
deficit
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2020721

Adjusimenis

Adjustments from Palice Fund to
arrive at the CIES amounts

Policing Services

Police and Crime Commissionar

Youth Jllaﬁﬂeﬁe_nﬂ{'-c

el Cosl of Servicas

for Capital
Purpasas
[Pt i)

E£0:040
5,520 |

0

0

{(Aher incorme and expanditure from the
Funding Analyais

Differenca bateaan Police Fund
surplus or deficit and CIES surplus or

deficit

The PCC

2021122

Adjustments from

Pﬂ”'l:'} F'.”lu to arrive Flurp,n-i.:_.a [(nota

at the CIES amounts

Policing Services

.!."-'n.l.l::e anr‘j Crima

Commissioner

Youth Justice Service

Mat Cost of Senvcas

Funding to the Chief
Constable

Other iIncama and
axpalura from the
Fusndding Analysis

Differance bobwasn

Police Fund surplus or
daficit and CIES surplus

ar deficit

o E{hm?n Financing and
ar tha sk it

Pensions g I"I'II::';FI

Adjustments : P ||.|.:

{note i) !

£000 ED0O

i (486)

278 0

0 0

34,765 | (458)

27 947 | AB6

Oikver
Adjustments
{mote iv)

£000

1,248

a
a |
1,248 I

1,884

3,132

{1,608)

53

Total
Adjusimanta

E 00
40,7649
278

72,049

Adjustmients  Met Change for | Financing and Othe
for Capital tha Pensions Investmment Adius "fh"r Tatal
Adjusiments Adjustmenis qu-'m:'-'.ﬂ.ii Adjustmenis
i {nota ii) (ol i) (note iv)
£000 E000 £000
[1,245) ] 257 (1,522) (25100
] B34 i | 0 G
0 0 ] o | 0|
{1,245) B4 257 (1,522} {1,848
45 0 {792) 1,522 e
(A08) 190 535 {1,945 (1,632)
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20020121
Adjustments Met Change for  Financing and Othar
Adjustments from for Capital the Penzions Invesimant Adiatrsands Tolal
Police Fund to arrive  Purposes (note Adjustments Adjustmants ' Juﬁnh-'.- ru'l Adjustmants
at the CIES amounts il {nate if) (note i)
EQOO E£004 E0D0 E000 £000
! Palicing Samnvices (356) . 0 241 | (B53) (S6E)
| Potice and Crime [ ] - ,
i 0 278
Commissioner 2 | _Efﬂ- | : | _
Youth Justice Service 0 i i] a ]
| Net Cost of Servicos (358) 278 241 (853) {690)
Funding to the Chisf 6,002
| Constable 5,876 0 LEet] EE_ —

| Other income and
| expemdiure from the GRS 176 485 1,884 3,231
Fumsfiing Analysis |

Difference batweaen
Palice Fund surplus ar

defickt and CIES surpius
ar deficit

Note (i) Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column adds in depreciation and revaluation gains and losses in the services line. MRP
and other revenue contributions to capital expenditure are deducted because they are nol
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Other income and expenditure is adjusted for capital disposals of assels with a transfer of the
income on disposal and the amounts written off for those assets; an adjustment is also made
to recognise capital grant income.

Note (ii) Net Change for Pensions Adjustments

This column reflects the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition
of 1AS519 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

« For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by
the Group as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and
past sarvice costs;

« For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined
benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Note (iii) Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure Adjustments — this column
adjusts for investment income and borrowing costs that are charged to the Police Fund but are
not included in the Net Costs of Policing Services.

Note (iv) Other Adjustments — this column reflects variations in the amount chargeable for
Council Tax under Statute and the Code; and timing differences relating to accruing for

a4
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compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year (absorbed by the Accumulated
Absences Account). Also included is £1.522m (£0.853m in 2020/21) in respect of the training
costs funded by the government from the Apprenticeship Levy.

1{b) Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The Group

2020021

E£000

2021/22
£000

125,024 | Police officers pay 128,821
' 73812 | Police staff pay = ' 77130
3.588 | Police pensions ' 3,202 |
2,748 | Other Employee Expenses 3,464
?2.4_55' Pensions currant cost of service B B 84,820
(38,774) | Cost of pensions based on cash flows (39.053) |
1,248 Accumulated absences - ?ET
53.4_51 Other sarvice expenditure 5?,5?1}_
i._ﬁa ] Non distributed costs B16
8,096 | Depreciation, Amortisation, Revaluation Loss and REFCUS (see glossary) 6,768 |
727 | Interest payable 792 |
it _EB.E:'-EE_ -r':.h;-.t interest an lm_-ﬁ.ét_dgfrng.genéﬁt fiahility - 57,475
1,688 | Losson dlspﬁl af non-curment asgals ; ﬁ
368,813 | Total Expenditure R 1 381,252
(17,1 45]; Fees, :Eharg&s and other service income (17.243)
- :1?]- Invesiment progerly income, net of revaluation movemant - ?
(25} | Interest and investment income o (34)
:1'"?-'1] '. Finance Lease income (170)
[1'30.:42!533 Imcome from council tax | {108,786)
_[15'.'2423 Government grants and contributions (198,527}
(296,026) | Total Income Al - (322,745)

Daficit on the Provision of services

58,607
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The PCC
2020021 2021022
£000 £000
3,520 Police staff pay 8,057
B4 Other Empl-:]'_.'eé Expensas - 135
B Pensions current ;:n's't-:':ur sErvice 1,421
(526) | Costof pensions based on cash flows 772)
17,340 | Other service expenditure 17,038
0 | HMon distibuted costs 15
" 727 | Interest payable 702 |
176 | Matinterest an the net defined benefit liability 190
1,688 | Loss on disposal of non-curmrent assets - (37)
"0 | Capital Charge between PCC and Chief Constable - net o
251 ,13;5 Funding to the Erﬁa'ﬁnnsmbﬂé for financial resources consumed 255,970
274,944 | Total Expenditure e 279,809 |
(17,148} Fees, charges and other service income (17.243)
.-{.1 T] Iml*E.slmanl properly |r|1:~|:|m-|:1 net of re.uaiuaﬁun movernant o 15 |
.:[2-5]. Interest and investment income — (34)
-i:-ﬁ'.d] Finnﬁ;Leasa Incormea (170}
(100,421:]]- Incomne from counail ax [163?[6]
"~ (356) | Capital Charge batween PCC and Chief Constable - net (1,245)
(147 523)  Govemnmment grants and contributions [iEEIH
(265,663) | Total Income ~ (286,605)

Deficit on the Provision of services

2, Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Code requires the Group to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting
change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by
the Code for the relevant financial year. The annual IFRS improvement programme notes four
changed standards:

« IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) — amendment relates to foreign operations of
acquired subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS;

» |AS 37 (Onerous contracts) - clarifies the intention of the standard;

« |IFRS 16 (Leases) — amendment removes a misleading example that is not
referenced in the Code material,
« |AS 41 (Agriculture) — one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected lo
apply to local authorities in limited circumstances.

Mone of the above are expected to have a material impact on the Accounts of the Group.
The implementation of IFRS 16 — Leases for Public Sector Accounts has again been
deferred, until 1 April 2024, and it is currently not possible to provide an estimate of the
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impact this may have. Both the 2022/23 and the 2023/24 Codes will allow for early adoption
of IFRS 16 should an Authority consider that it is able to do so as of 1 April 2022 or 2023, but
there are currently no plans for West Mercia to do this.

3. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared using the accounting policies set out in the eardier
section, however the PCC is required lo exercise judgement and make estimates and
assumptions, based on a range of factors including experience or expert valuation, which
affects the application of these policies and the value of transactions and balances reported in
the financial statements. This is often the case where there are complex transactions or
uncertainty about future events and/or figures are not readily available from another source.
The estimates and assumptions are kept under review and revisions, where appropriate, are
recognised in the period in which they are made. The critical judgements that have a matarial
impact on the Accounts are as follows;

PCC and Chief Constable group relationship

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 came into effect on 22 November 2012,
creafing two corporation soles: The Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia (PCC)
and the Chief Constable of West Mercia Police (CC).

The allocation of transactions and balances between the PCC and the CC affects the values
reported in the two entiies’ Accounts. The allocation of transactions and balances is a
judgement in light of the legislation, accounting standards and the substance of the local
arrangements thal are in place rather than the legal form underpinning the arrangements.

The approach taken to the accounts is that;

= Revenue expenditure directly relaling to those budgets delegated to the CC for the
provision of policing services is predominantly included within their Accounts:

+ The CC's accounts have been charged with the expense associated with 1AS19 pensions
and accumulated staff absences as well as the current value of non-current assets
consumed during the year and the CC's Balance Sheet containg the net liabilities
associated with these items offset by unusable reserves as required by the Code of
Practice;

«  An intra-group transfer has been made between the CC’s and the PCC's CIES offsetting
the above expenses;

=  Within the Group accounts, where material, a distinction is made between the
transactions and balances of the Group and the PCC:

*  The Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet contains employment-related debtors, creditors and
provisions logether with all material inventories.

Section 22a Collaborative Agreements with Warwickshire Police

S22a Collaborative Agreements were agreed between West Mercia Police and Warwickshire
Police for four services to be provided to or shared with Warwickshire that commenced in
2020/21. A cost sharing mechanism was agreed at 31.8% of cost, plus any direct overheads
incurred. The agreement for hosting Forensics and Transactional Services ended in September
2021 and October 2021 respectively, although the agreement in respect of File Storage

ar
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continued for the whole of 2021/22. The agreement in respect of ICT services continued as a
shared service until October 2021 and then a hosted service arrangement was agreed until
April 2023, although notice has since been served by Warwickshire Police and all ICT senices
will cease to be provided to them in June 2022, Further information can be found in Note 14 to
the Accounts.

Post employment benefits (pension liability)

Estimation of the pension liability depends on a number of complex judgements and
assumptions relating to the discount rate, the future value of the assets and liabilities of the
Police Pension Schemes (PPS) and Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the rate of
increase in pay, changes in relirement ages and mortality rates. Two actuaries are engaged to
provide the PCC and the Chief Constable with expert advice about the assumptions to be
applied to the pension schemes.

The assumptions used to value the pension assets and liabilities are reviewed annually when
the actuaries prepare the figures for inclusion in the Accounts. They will vary year on year
based on experience and changes to the pension schemes e.g. scheme profiles and the most
appropriate inflation index. A variance in the assumptions compared to reality can produce
material changes to the assets and liabilities of the pension schemes. The acluary produces
sensitivity analysis to show the impact of a plus or minus 1% variation in key assumptions.
The impact of these changes is dampened by the fact thal only employer contributions, the
cost of ill health retirements and injury awards are charged against the General Fund. The
impact on the employer’s contributions is smoothed over time by the valuation of the schemes,
which is undertaken every three years.

West Mercia Police's share of PPL's Local Government Pension Scheme assets and liabilities
were previously incorporated into the Accounts and shown separately in the tables in Note 36.
As at 1 April 2022, the actuaries have now included these legacy PPL assets and liabilities into
the Chief Constable's LGPS assets and liabilities and are shown as equal and opposite
*business combination” entries in the tables in Note 36. Although the new Estales team are
part of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and their associated current pensions
costs are shown in the PCC's Accounts, as the PPL pensions’ assets and liabilities relate to
legacy benefits, a judgement has been made to include these in the Chief Constable's
Accounts.

Cost of Service — Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)

As explained in the Accounting Policies, income and expendilure is categorised into three
segmeants: Policing Services, Police and Crime Commissioner and Youth Justice Services, as
this is how the organisation monitors and manages its financial performance. Support senvice
costs are reported as part of the services where they are monitored and managed.

The Net Cost of Policing Services has increased by £11.116m compared to 2020/21, mainly
due to fluctuations between years relating to the valuations of property assets and pensions
costs, as well as reflecling the increased government funding for the recruitment of additional
police officers, as explained in the Narrative Statement.
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4.  Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation and
uncertainty

The Accounts contain estimated figures that are based on judgements and assumptions made
by the PCC about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. However, because balances
cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from those that
have been estimated. The items in the Group’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which
there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment

The basis of estimating the value of assets is referred to in the previous section. Assets are
depreciated over their Useful Economic Lives (UEL), which is determined by external valuers,
based on judgements, which include assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance
that will be incurred on individual assets. These estimales are important for example, if the
UEL is reduced, depreciation charged to the CIES would increase and the carrying value of the
asset would fall. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings would
increase by £0.030m for every year that useful lives were reduced.

The external valuers again commentad as follows in their 2021/22 valuation report:

“The pandemic and the measures taken to tackle COVID-19 continue to affect economies and
real estate markets globally. Nevertheless, as at the valuation date property markets are
mostly functioning again, with transaction volumes and other relevant evidence returing to
levels where an adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which to base opinions of
value. Accordingly, and for the avoidance of doubt, our valuation is not reported as baing
subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as defined by VPS 2 and VPGA 10 of the RICS
Valuation — Global Standards.”

The Net Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 March 2022 is £E82.5m (E77.1m
as al 31 March 2021). West Mercia valued £429m of property in 21/22, should this value
increase or decrease by 1% it would have an impact of +/- £429k. New capital spend has been
partly offset by reductions in asset valuations and depreciation.

Post Employment Benefits (Pension Liability)

The basis of estimating the net liability to pay pension benefits to police officers and police staff
is referred to in the previous section. This estimate depends on a number of complex
judgements and assumptions around the discount rates used to calculate the pension
liabilities. Any changes could have a material impact on the total liability of the pension funds.
The acluaries provide illustrations of variations in assumptions to help the PCC and Chief
Constable understand the potential impact of changes in mortality rates, retirement ages and
expected returns on fund assets ete. The actuaries provide the Group with advice and
illustrations of the potential impact of the changes in assumptions and these are set out at the
end of Note 36.

Employee benefits

With the exception of leave built up through flexible working hours the majority of the hours
required to calculate the accrued annual leave and toil are taken directly from the HR and Duty
Management system. The flexi hours are calculated by extrapolating from a survey of police
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staff. A cost is applied o the hours to calculate the employee benefit accrual using average
salary cost per rank based on the data held in the payroll. This is the mosi significant estimate
used to affect the accruals.

Provisions
The Group and Chief Constable held no provisions as at 31 March 2022.

Further information regarding Provisions can be found in Note 29.

5. Material items of income and expenditure

The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability in the Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure section of the CIES is a gain of £56.6m, compared to a loss of £229.2m in
2020/21. The change is due to relatively small changes in the assumptions and rates used by
the actuaries for calculating inflation, salary increases, and discounting scheme liabilities.
Owerall, the Pensions Liability held on the Balance Sheet, has increased by E9.6m o
£2.905.6m at 31 March 2022. Further information regarding the Pensions Liabilities can be
found in Note 36.

6. Ewvents after the Reporting Period

The unaudited Statement of Accounts were issued by the Treasurer to the PCC on 7" July
2022. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.
7. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Group in the year in accordance with proper accounting

practice to resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Group
to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Usable Rescrves
Falice Capital Capital
Fund Racaipts Grants
Balance Heserve Unapplied

2021122 OO0 E000 EQoa
Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amadnids by which income and axpendiine included in the GIES am
diffarant frem revaniue for the year calowlaied in sccordance with stafuiony

re TR

Pensions Costs (Iransfarred 1o or from Fenslons Resernea) {66,272) 4] 1]
Council tax {transfars to or from Collscton Fund) 1,948 a 1]
Haoliday pay (transferred o the Accumulaied Absances Resaeree) 15 0 iy
Reversal of entres included In the Suplus or Defict on the Provision of {6,858 o o

Services in relation ko capial expendilure (hesa dems charged to e CAA)
| Tolal Adjustments fo Revenus Resources {74,166) o 0
:ﬁ:ﬂmﬂ-mmmlﬂdmhlm .

-
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Transfar of non-curment asset sale procesds fram revenue o thas Capatal
Recsipls Rasene

Siatutory provisicn for the repaymsent of debt (transfer from the CARY

Capital expendiben: fnanced from revenue balances (transfer to the CAM)

Tatal Adiustments belwesn Ravenue and Capifal Resoices

Adjustments to Capital Resources

_:"'n;l;llu:.ulin:ln of capital recaipts o finance capital espendituneg
Application of capital grants to inance capiltal expenditura
Cash payments In relation bo deferred capital recefpls
Tatal Adustmants o Capifal Resowras

Total Adjustmenis - Group

| Lass: Chisf Constable oty adjusirmamls

| Pensions Costs

Hielikay peay

Total Adjustments — PCC

2020021

5,418

{15)
2,103
Paolica

Fund
Balance

El0

55 [50) i
3,578 0 i
4 390 0 0 |
8027 {58) i

0 | 204 o |

439 I (4] 0

o {145) 0

439 55 o

15..'-'.':"DEI:| (1] o

Usable Reserves
Caphtal
Racaipis
Reserva

E£000

Capiltal
Granis
Unapplied

00

| Adjustmants to the Revenue Resources

Amowunis by which income and sxpendifuvre ncluded in the CIES ane

different from revenus for the year caleialed i accordance with siafutory

ruirgmants: e =5
Pensions Cosls (transberred b or from Pensions Resana) (62,7 12) 1] Q
Council tax (transfers to or from Collection Fumsd) {1.884) _I:I L]
_14r:|_l_il:'|E_|:.-'_ D.EI.!;I:HI'IF-EII.'IETEI'I'Ed 1o the Accumuiated Absences Reserse) (1. 248) o | i
Reversal of entnes included in tha Eurp‘-ur; -::r Da;f;u;-;-;ha Prowvision of .- ]

Sanvices in melation 1o capital expandituse (these lems changad to the CAK) (10.171) 0 0
Total Adjusiments fo Revenis Rescurces t_?ﬁ.mﬁ}- L 0 0 |
Adjustmaents between Revenue and Capital Resources ¥ = |
Lﬂsl:ﬁ; ul_;;ﬂ];-:;urren. assal sale proceads from revenue o the Cagial 161 (361) a |
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the CAA) 2,335 ‘ i) i
Cagsital expendiluwie financed from revenee balances (iransfer to tha CAA) 241 . a EI_
Tolal Adiustmanis betwean Ravenue and Capital ﬁ':mmu 2947 (361 . 1]
Adjustments to ‘-'Z-‘_H_'.lrhl Rosourcas =

| Application of capital receipts o finance capital axpenditure o 5; 0

Application of capital grants to finance capial expendibune 1,029 0 ]

| Cash pa.',.rrﬂﬂl'-ll:;-il:--l.';l;;t;l_tﬂ_dararred capital r&mp-':;.-.- R 0 -;14;; . III_
Total Adjustments to Capilal Resources 1,020 T

Total Adjustments - Group
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Lags! Chial Cansiable anly adustimants

Pensions Costs

Haliday pay

Total Adjustments - PCC

8. Usable Reserves

The PCC holds all of the Group's reserves. This note sets oul the amounts set aside from the
Police Fund Balances into earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure
plans and the amounts used from earmarked reserves to meet Police Fund expenditure in

2021/22.

“Balance | Transfers | Transfers Balance at 31 BRICL L] Transfers Balance ai M
at 1 April out in | March 2021 out in  March 2022
PCC and Group 2020 | 2020021 | 2020121 | 202122 2021/22
Resorves a £000_ £000 _E£000 | EQOD £000 £000 £000
Police Fund Reserve | (3,587) 2236 1] {7,351) a52 {501) {7,500}
Earmarked Reserves
Budget Equalisation i e
Resere 0 o 0 o a {2,028) {2,028)
Kajor Investigation (1] 599 (2. 450) {1,851) 0 (T43) [2,594)
Investmeant in [ a)
Infrastructure (1,083) | 1203 (890) 770) | 750 (1,378) (1,398)
| Road Safaty {1,775) 571 17) (1,221) 910 (364)
| YIS (353) 34 0 (319) o | 158) (377)
| PCC Initiatives (1,535) | 352 (225} {1,408) 385 {973) {1,996)
: Legal & Insuranca : i1 445}
s 7 (657) 214 {557} {BO2) [1,445)
Coundl Tax s
Collection Fund | o a (332) (332)
' Total Earmarked aiae
Capital Recei
| s o 0 505 (505)
i Capital Grants
| Resane J v 0
Tosl eite (14990) | 5714 | (4076) |  (14:252) (7.051)  (18,345)

Capital receipts and capital grants have been used to fund capital expenditure in 2021/22.
Capital receipts received and used are shown above for transparency purpose although they
are not shown in the MIRS as they were fully used in the year they were received (see also
Note 20).

The purposes of the Earmarked Reserves are as follows:

+ General Reserve has been created to meet unexpected, unusual and one-off avents;

62



Tha Group and Palice and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia Statement of Accounis 2021722

Motes to the Financial Statements S

9.

Budget Equalisation Reserve has been created to manage risk around the timescales
for delivery of the transformation and change programme and to provide flexibility in
establishing strategies to manage future expected cost pressures from the level of fulure
core grant funding;

Investment in Infrastructure Reserve is held to support delivery of the Capital
Programme and specific Estates projects;

Major Investigation has been created to support the Force's work on a specific
operation;

PCC Initiatives Reserve is held to support the delivery of certain PCC initiatives;

Legal & Insurance claims is held 1o address specific nisks identified:

Road Safety Reserve is the reserves held by the Safer Roads Parinership to be invested
into road safety;

YJS is the balance of the income and expenditure relating to the Youth Justice Service.
Council Tax Collection Fund Reserve holds the Council Tax Reduction Grant (Local
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme) payable to Forces to smooth the impact of a reduction in
Council Tax collection rates during 2020/21 due to COVID-19; this was not required to be
used in 2021/22 as the distribution from the Collection Fund surplus was more than
expected. There is still a significant amount of uncertainty relating to the impact of the
spreading of the council tax deficit over 3 years and the future collection fund settlement:
the Reserve will be carried forward to offset this risk.

Unusable reserves

The Pensions Reserve and Accumulated Absences Reserves are held by the Chief Constable
and all other unusable reserves are held by the PCC. Unusable reserves are consolidated in
the Group Accounts. The unusable reserves can be summarised as follows:

Restated Restated PCC Group

PCC Group 31 March 31 March

31 March 31 March 2022 2022

2021 2021 E000 £000

£000 £000

(15.473) {15473) | Revaluation Reserve (15,992) {15,992)

(16.996) (16,996) | Capital Adjustment Account (18,869) {18,869)
{3,450) (3450) | Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (3,305) (3,305) |
512 512 Collection Fund Adjustment Account (1,437) (1,437 |

9,144 2895991 | Pension Reserve 8,959 2,905,618

] 5,788 Accumulated Absences Account ] 5,773

(26,283) 2,866,372 Total Group Llnul_l_Hu Reserves (30,644) 2,871,788

(i) Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Group arising from increases in the
value of its PPE and Intangible Assets. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated

gains are:

» re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost:
= used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or

&3
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« disposed of and the gains are realisad.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains ansing before thal date are consolidated into the
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

Restated 2020/21 = 2021122
E00D EQOD £000 £000
(16.130) Eruup and PCC Balance as at 1 April {1547 3)
(1,385) | Upward revaluation of assets

Dawmward revaluation of assets and impairment kbosses nol
charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Pravision of Services

IEl.Irpll..ﬂ or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
452 | not pested to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services (Other Comprahensive Income and Expenditurs)

Differance between fair value depreciation and historical cost
depracialion

1

114 | Accumulated gama on assols sold or scrapped
205 | Amaunt written off to the Eapnal Adjustment ﬁ.ccuunt

| (15,473) | Group and PCC Balance as at 31 March

(ii) Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumplion of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from
the Revaluation Reserve to convert current value figures to an historical cost basis). The
Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the PCC as finance for the costs of
acquisition, construction and enhancement. The Account also contains revaluation gains
accumulated on PPE before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created
to hold such gains.

2020/21 | 2021/22
£000 £000
{22,852) | Group and PCC Balance as at 1 April (16,996)
. Reversal of lems relating o capital expenditura debibed or '
credited o the CIES:
7137 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-cumrent 6734
#5015
| {356) Heuaiua’r&un 14}3*-'.&5 {gains) on FPE [i EE{I]
| 1.224 .ﬁ.mnmsauﬂn r:nf intangibde asseals 1,160
1 936 .ﬁ.rnnunl:a af nu:un-m.lrrent assels wrtlen off on disposal a5 99
' part of the gainioss on disposal to the CIES
0 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 14
i Daonated Assets 0
0 941 Met written out amount of the cost of non-current & E70
: assets consumead in the year 1
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Capital inancing applied in the year;
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve 1o finance new capital
(505) gxpendilure (204)
Capital grants and contributions crediled to the CIES that
11,029) hawve baan F.||'_'I|II|IE|:| to capital r'nanmng ! 1439)
0 Application of grants o capital financing from the Capital | a
Grants Unapplied Account
e Stalutory provision for the financing of capital investment
oY) charged against the General Fund {3:579)
_ _l!E_E_ ln_ ﬂﬂl’-"lt-ﬂl Ewpﬂn:f_!t_ura funded from Reserves {737}
| {158) Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (3,653)
| o
25 Movements in the marketl value of Investment Properies '
debited or craditad 1o tha CIES 68
(16,996) | Group and PCC Balance as at 31 March =

(iif} Pensions Reserve

Payments for the cost of post employment benefits and the associated liability are shown in
the Chief Constable’s Accounts, except for the element that relates specifically to the PCC's
employees. The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefils in
accordance with statutory provisions. The Group Accounts for post employment benefits in the
CIES as the benefits are eamed by employees accruing years of service, updating the
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any
resources sel aside lo meet the cosls. However, statutory arrangements require benefils
eamed to be financed as the Group makes employers confributions to pension funds or
eventually pays any pensions for which he is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shorifall in the benefits eamed by past and
current employees and the resources the Group has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits are due
to be paid and that the Group can continue to meet the liability in the Chief Constable's
Accounts, The liability is made up as follows:

(iv) Collection Fund Adjustment Account

B9

PCC Group FCC Group
2020021 2020121 2021122 2021122
£000 E000 £000 E00D
7,968 2,604,102 | Balance as at 1 April 9,144 2,895,991
Re-measurement of the net defined banafit liability |
722 228177 (Other ﬂumprehensl'-rf- lnmme and Em&nﬁltum] (1,038) 196.543)
Rewersal of items rehallng to retirement benefils
880 132,205 | debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 1,626 143,611
Provision of Eer'.nr:es. il'l l:he CIES
Employer's penmrrs mnmhi,n‘mmg and diract
(526) {59482 payments to pensioners payable in the year {772) (77.339)
9,144 2,895991 | Balance as at 31 March
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The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition
of council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the
slalutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the Police Fund from the Collection
Fund.

2020121
£000

{(1,372) | Group and PCC Balance as at 1 April
Amount by which council tax income cradited to the Comprehensive Income

1,884 | and Expenditure Statement s different from council tax income calculated for {1,848)
by ','E.ar in a-:_:mrdﬁrma with statutary requiremaeants

512 Eruup an:l PCC Balance as at 31 March

(v) Accumulated Absences Account

The cost of employment benefits and the associated Accumulated Absences liability is shown
in the Chief Consiable’'s Accounts. The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the
differences that would otherwise arise on the Police Fund Balance from accruing for
compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. time off in lieu carmied forward at
31 March 2022. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the Police Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

202021 202122
£000 £000 £000 £000
4,540 | Group and Chief Constable Balance as at 1 April 5,788
-[4 5-4[;; | Cancellation of accrual made at the end of the precading year {5,788)
| 5 ?'El.ﬂ Amount accrued at the end of the current year 5773
' Amount h:..' which officer remuneration charged to the CIES an
1,248 | an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in (15] |
the year in accordance with statutory requirements
5,788 | Group and PCC Balance as at 31 March

(vi) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets bul for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under slatulory
arrangements, the Group does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipls. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. The balance
relates to the Finance Lease arrangement with Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority amounting
to £3.247m (see Notes 19 (i) and 24) and to the disposal of the West Mercia Police share of
the Central Counties’ Air Operations Unit helicopter in the sum of £0.058 (Note 14).

2020/21 N 2021/22
£000 £000
(3,594) | Balance as at 1 April {3,450)

144 | Transfer to the Capital Receipts Resarve upon receipl of cash
(3,450) | Balance as at 31 March

L]
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10.  Intra-Group funding arrangements between the PCC and the Chief Constable
The treatment of transactions and balances within the Group Accounts is set out in Note 3.

The Intra-Group funding arrangement is eliminated on consolidation of the Group Accounts, a
treatment adopled for any transactions between the PCC and Chief Constable. The guarantae
from the PCC in respect of the resources consumed by the Chief Constable in 2021/22
amounts to £256.0m (£251.1m in 2020/21). This is included within the Net Cost of Policing
Services in the CIES, in line with current best practice for the preparation of Police Accounts.

The PCC's Balance Sheet includes an Intra-Group Creditor of £1.04m (Creditor of £2.3m in
2020/21) being the net balance of funding not settled between the PCC and Chief Constable
as at the 31 March; this relates mainly to the balance of Deblors and Creditors shown in each
of the single-entity accounts as at this date.

The calculation of the Intra-Group funding is set out in the following table:

202021 W
| F000 =1

286,866 | Chief Constable’s Cost of Services 00,973

58490 | Interest on the net defined benefi fability B 57,785

1 {30 Fi EI} Homa Offica granl tawards the cost of I.'.Etil'&l'l"lﬂl'll |:3]" 3&53

228455 | Re-measurement of the net defined benefil liability (55,606)

543,0 ﬂl‘ﬂ Resources consumed Yo o 265 76T

Items removed through the MIRS
| (290,713) | Movementin pensions liability . | (@812
{1,2-4I-H-E| | Movement in accumulated absences liability -
251439 | Total resources consumed for the year by the Chief Constable and funded
131 | bythepcc

11. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

=

i)

PCC Group
2020121 2020421 PCC Group
2021022 2021722
| £000 £000 £000 £000
727 727 Interest payable 7oz Taz
(25) {25) | Interest recaivabla {34) (34}
{174} (174} | Other interest receivable — Finance Lease Income {1709 (170)
Inmma and expeandifure in relation to m\l&ﬁ!mﬁm
(17) (17} properties and changes in their fair valee 15 15
| s | Tow
176 58666 | Metimerest on the net defined benafit lability 180 57975 |
B8T 58,177 | Total for the PCClGroup
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12. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

£000

13. Grant Income

2020121 2020021 2021/24 2021/22
E000 £000 £000
{Wl}.ﬂﬂ] Eumnil lax precepts {108,786)
(12092)| |Poiice Grant (77.029) |
| (46,550) Ex- m:u; Formula Funding (48, 1:9&]
(9,200) | Local Emnull Tax Suppart Grant 1:1D_T"E-é]
(2,775 {:uuncu Tax Fref'z.-ﬂ_amm (2.775) |
(332 Lm:al Income Tax Guarantee Grant 85
{286) E:apltat Grants (195
(733) Cagital Contributions (243) .
(132,078) | Total Non-specific Grant Income (140,068)
(232 498) |Taxation lnd Hm-ﬂpantﬂ:: Grant Income - PCC (248,854)
(30,719) ;F:rn:z;n_b?rﬁm grant lowards the cost of retirement (57,385)
(263.217) Ewn and Non=-Specific Grant Income = The (286,239)

The PCC and Group credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the CIES in

2021/22:
2021 | e 2021122
E0OD £000
(232,498) | Credited to Taxation and Noan Specific Grant Income - PCG, as per Mote 12 (248,854)
(30,714) Hama Office Grant towards the cost of refirement benefits in Chiel Constable
Accounts
(263,217) | Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income - Group (286,239
E Credited to Services
0 | Home Office Special Grant for Special Operation (3,740)
~ (1,975) | Speed Awareness Contributions (2,690}
"~ (2.640) | Victim Support Services (2,419)
iE.'H;]-_ ' Police Pensians Specific Grant to support the increase in am::.nllnyar contributions (2,112)
ta 31% from 1 April 2019
(2,841) m?ﬂpéjﬁ;;?sgi;mgmmnm Grant {specific grant 1o fund additional police officers in (1,898)
(853) | Apprenticeship Levy Grant for Training Costs 1.522)
I 0 | OPCC Additional Grant Funding fram HO and MoJ (1,480)
(1,215) | Youth Justice Board — Effective Praciice Grant ©(1,326)
"~ (511) | DBS Vetting Service Fees N (522
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(B8} | Saler Streets Grant _I:EEJ_
(89) | Emargency Services Hetwu-rk . _[_SE]J_

(205) | Proceeds of Crime Contributions (214)
~ (165) | National Cyber Specialist Pragram (192)
(2.528) | COVID Grants - see note below (75)
{43) | Communications Capabilities Developmant Programmse (44)
0 | McCloud Remedy Funding Grant (Police Pensions) (26)
0 | DLUHC - Local Audit Fees Grant = | (21)
(23) | AUP Armed Uplift - (1)
(17) | One Public Estate Grant | (4)
{(17) | Other minar gralits {2}
(75) | MOD Covenant Fund 0
(49) | Palice Care UK Mental Health — adjustment to 2020121 accrual 6
{15,446) | Total Credited to Services — PCC and Group

The Group received a number of grants from government in 2020/21 to support policing during
the COVID pandemic, totalling £2.704m, with £0.176m carried forward to 2021/22 (total of
£2.528m credited to services in 2020/21). The residual balance from 2020/21 was credited to
services in 2021/22 (as above) and also used to fund capital spend on mobile devices in
2021/22 (included within capital grants in Note 12 above).

The Group received a revenue grant in 2016/17 related to the introduction of the Emergency
Services Network, the replacement of the national airwave radio system amounting to £0.841m
and received further grant of £0.226m in 2021/22. Although the grant initially related to the
2017118 financial year, as there has only been minimal relevant spend relating to the
Emergency Services Network since then, (£0.071m in 2018/19, £0.066m in 2019/20, £0.089m
in 2020721, and £0.320m (shown above), plus £0.084m (£0.066m in 2021/22, £0.016m in
2020021 and £0.002m in 2019/20) to fund related capital expenditure) the balance of £0.437m
is still being recognised as a receipt in advance.

The Group received £0.774m in 2020/21 from Redditch Borough Council as a pre-payment of
demaolition costs for Redditch Police Station under the terms of the sale and lease back
agreement entered into on 31 March 2021. This will be recognised as a receipt in advance
until 2022/23 when the property will be vacated and then demolished by the Group before the
end of the lease period (31 March 2023).

14. Pooled budgets and joint operations
Hosted and Shared Services with Warwickshire Police during 2020/21 and 2021/22

Two S22a Collaborative Agreements were agreed between West Mercia Police and
Warwickshire Police in 2020021 for four services that were provided to or shared with
Warwickshire during 2020/21 and the first half of 2021/22. A revised cost sharing mechanism
was also agreed, with costs being recharged to Warwickshire at 31.7% in 2020/21, amended to
31.8% in 2021/22, The services covered by the s22a agreements were Forensics,
Transactional Services / Business Operations Centre, File Storage (all three hosted), and ICT
(shared). The hosted service to Warwickshire for Transactional Services ceased from 1
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October 2021 and the service for Forensics ceased from 1 September 2021, although there
was some residual Forensics “pipeline” work still being provided to Warwickshire up to 31
March 2022 amounting to £0.011m.

Under these arrangements the costs of the hosted services provided by Wesl Mercia to
Warwickshire were shown in full in West Mercia's accounts with the appropriate recharge to
Warwickshire shown as income to West Mercia, as set out below. The recharges consist of
Direct Costs (Stafi Pay, Transport and Supplies & Services), plus an agreed overhead for
premises and other costs, charged as a percentage of pay. Where applicable direct overheads
are also added, eq external costs from the payroll provider for running Warwickshire's payroll.

Warwickshire Police directly incurred £0.3m (2020/21: £1.4m) of costs in respect of Forensics,
mainly relating to pay costs for members of staff employed by Warwickshire, howaver the
figures shown in the Accounts and in the table below are the gross expenditure and income of
the Forensics service.

Transg- File
Hosted Services 2021/22 actional Storage Forensics
E0DD E£000

Direct Costs of Services:

Overheads (including Vehiclas for File Slorage
Team and Faransics)

Total Costs for Service: 148 1t 3,648

Recharge to Warwickshire @ 31.8%: 365 ¢ 766 {1,160}
Recharge of Direct Owarheads:
Net Total Payable by Warks to West Mércia:

Trans- File
Hosted Services 2020021 actional Storage Foransics
EQDD £000 EODO

Direct Costs of Services:

~ Overheads (including Vehicles for File Storage
Team and Forensics)

Total Costs for Service: 2,264 ag 10,054

Recharge to Warwickshire & 31.7%: (T29) (21) [2,4410) {3,200]

Recharge of Direct Owerheads: m

MNet Total Payable by Warks to West Mercia: EEU 2) (32) (2,440) (3,2T4)

Until October 2021 the costs of the ICT Shared Service arrangement were incurred by both
Forces with the appropriate recharge being made to Warwickshire Police after laking into
account costs incurred directly by Warwickshire and costs that were solely attnbutable to either
Force. This is summarised below:

ICT Sharaed Services 20217122

£000
West Mercia Direct Costs: | 4,797 |

Io
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Direct Overheads {E:-t:ﬂf F'ag,] J 75 i
Overheads -[F'\'ﬂ:'nlsLa @ 4% and General @ %)
Toatal West Marcia Costs:
Recharge to Warwickshire {@ 31.8%: {1,590}

Total Warwickshire Direct Costs: G672

Recharge to West Mercia @ 68.2%:

Adjustment for costs initially charged to one Force bul relating solaly
to the other

mﬂ".-’:. West Mercla Cosls L..hargrid o Warwickshire | 123 |
10:0% Warwickshire Costs Charged to West Mercia {(168)
Met Total Payable by Warks to West Mercia:

After October 2021 a Hosted service arrangement was in place for ICT services provided by
West Mercia to Warwickshire, Costs amounting to £1.684m were paid by Warwickshire under
this arrangement to cover the Hosted Service charges until January 2022 (£0.635m), plus set-
up costs (£0.224m), overheads (£0.100m), and the costs of providing certain applications to

March 2022 (£0.725m).

ICT Shared Services 2020021

E£000 E000
West Mercia Total Costs of ICT 14,609 '
Less: West Mercia Clnly Casts: (757) - -
West Mercia Direct Costs: | 13.852 -
Direct Overheads (Staff Pay): | 144 |
Overheads (Premises & 4% and General @ 2%} | 268 | :

Total West Mercia Costs:
Recharge to Warwickshire @ 31.7%:

Wamw:ks.hum Taotal Costs of ICT
Less: Warwickshire E‘Inlg,.l Costs:
Total Warwickshire Direct Costs:

Recharge to West Mercia @ 68.3%:

Adjustmant for costs infially charged to one Forose but
relatin-g r-.nﬁely o the other

m':'-'":- WPst Mercla Cosls Ehﬂrgrzﬂ to Warwickshire | 42 |

1I]ﬂ‘” Wanm-:ﬂs-hlre Costs Ghargud lo West Mercia ' (166) (124)
Met Total Payable by Warks to Waest Mercia: {3,123)

Place Partnership Limited

Place Parinership Limited {PPL) was a single asset management company co-owned by West
Mercia Police, Warwickshire Police, Worcestershire County Council and Hereford & Waorcester
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Fire Authority thal commenced business on 1 September 2015. Each party had equal shares
and equal voting rights.

As stated in Note 6, in March 2020 Worcestershire County Council gave notice of ils intention
to exit PPL effective from 1# April 2021. The remaining partners agreed lo dissolve PPL and il
ceased trading 31¥ March 2021; Wesl Mercia Police has now crealed an in-house Eslates
team to manage the functions that were being delivered by PPL. Papers have now been filed at
Companies House placing PPL into a solvent liquidation and a small balance will be payable to
the former Pariners with West Mercia's share amounting to an estimated £0.021m.

PPL was classified as a Joint Operation, because there was joint control and the aclivity of the
arrangement was primarily to provide services to the parties within the parties’ boundaries. In
2020/21, the operating coslts for West Mercia Police were £7.887m and this is reflected in the
CIES in that year as part of the PCC's Service line. PPL was not fully consolidated into West
Mercia Police’s Accounts as a Joint Operation, because there was no material difference to the
costs already reflacted.

Wast Mercia Police's share of PPL's Local Government Pension Scheme assels and liabilities
as at 31 March 2021 (£15.343m, being 37.7% of £40.698m) were incorporated into the
Accounts and shown separately in the tables in Note 36. As at 1 April 2022, the actuaries have
now included these legacy PPL assels and liabilities into the Chief Constable’'s LGPS assels
and liabilities and are shown as equal and opposite "business combination™ entries in the
tables in Note 36. In assessing this position the acluaries took into account the guarantee that
was in place between the pariners and PPL to ensure that PPL's pension position was fully
funded at inception and cessation.

West Midlands Regional Organised Crime Unit

The West Midlands Regional Organised Crime Unit (WMROCU) is a collaboration between the
police Forces of Staffordshire, Warwickshire, West Midlands and West Mercia to fight
organised crime across the region. The collaboration is agreed between the PCCs for the
Forces with the operational activity under the direction of the Chief Constables.

The aim of WMROCU is to reduce the impact and increase the disruplion of serious and
organised crime within the region and beyond. West Midlands Police acts as the lead Force for
this joint arrangement and provides the financial management service for this unit.

The unit is funded in part by Force contributions and also by granis from the Home Office and
the National Cyber Security Programme (NCSP). The revenue account for this unil covers all
operating costs. The details are as follows:

2020121
2021122
£000 EQ00
{14,721} | Contribution from West Midlands Palice (14.500)
| (4,001} | Contribution fram West Mercia Palice {3,970)
(3,887} | Contribution from Staffordshire Police {3.857)
i (1,944) | Contribution from Warwickshire Palice {1,928)
! (2399)| WMROCUGramt o (2.398)
(140) | National Cyber Security Programme funding (365)
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(178) | Regional Asset Recovery Team grant (224)
(482) | ROCU Reserves  (1,158) |
{1,086) | Undercover Online Operatives {(UCOL) Funding {1,086)
i (112) | Threat Assessment Team (ROCTA) Funding ' (122)
(258) | Dlsruphun Team Funding (155}
{250) Dark Web FUr-H:Ilng (250
(34) | Operational Security {OPSY) Income (67) |
(28,500) | Total funding provided to the WMROCU (30,089)
| 1,066 Regional Asset Recovery Team (RART) 1,172
" 187 | RART — ACE team 237
738 | Reglonal Cyber Crime Unit 827
B 320 | Regional Fraud Team B | 388
852 | Regional Prisons Intelligence Unit 1,211
63 | Operational Security (OPSY) 71
61 | Regional Government Agency Intelligence Network (GAIN) == 62
1,440 | Command Team ' 1,400
5679 | Regional Confidential Unit 5,660
0 | Posts created from underspend . 93
TES TIDU = Technical Inmlﬁgenm 841
252 | Enabling Services 312
5197 | Serous and Organised Crime Unit (SOCU) 4,760
7.531 | Regional Surveillance Unit (FSU) 7.710
112 | Threat Assessment Team (ROCTA) ETTH
385 | Disruption Team 160
249 | Dark Web B 250
3,649 Other Regional Operations 3,808
B53 Additional Contribution io Reserves 202
29,500 | Total Expenditure
(1] Total Net Expenditure

National Police Air Service (NPAS)

NPAS was set up by the Home Office with effect from 2 October 2012 with administration of
the service being provided by the Chief Constable of West Yorkshire. NPAS does not
constitute a jointly controlled operation and so the PCC only accounts for the expense of
payments to NPAS amounting to in £0.612m 2021/22, (£0.670m in 2020/21) and not for a
share of the assets or liabilities.

As part of the transfer arrangements, the PCC receives an annual payment from NPAS to
reflact the value of the assels transferred from West Mercia on inception of NPAS. NPAS's
liability to the PCC is shown in the PCC’s balance sheet as a long term debtor of £0.014m and
a short term debtor of £0.044m, representing the discounted value of future expected cash
flows in 2022/23 and subsequent years, The discount rate applied to future cash flows is
based on Treasury rales contained in the Green Book. Future payments from NPAS will be
offset against these debtors and an annual interest amount credited to the CIES.
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15. Exit Packages

In order to make savings as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan it has been necessary to
review how police services are delivered. As a result a number of exit packages have been
approved and paid during 2021722,

Exit packages include charges by the LGPS in respect of benefits paid before normal
retirement age. There were no compromise agreements covering the 2021/22 exit packages.
The number of exit packages with total cost per band is set out in the table:

Humber of Exit Packages Total cost of Exit Packages in
Exit Package cost band (including each band
special payments) 2021722 202122
£000
£0 - £20,000 5 2 52 12
e20001 - cio0n | I B
| £40,001 - £60,000 1 2 49 106
| £60,001 - £60,000 af 2 0 152 |
| £80,001 - £100,000 1] 0 A4 o
| £100,001 - £150,000 I 0 126 0
| £150,001 + 2 0 366 0
| Total

16. Officers' Remuneration

Regulation 7(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 sets oul the information to be
disclosed to increase transparency and accountability in Local Government for reporting
remuneration of senior employees and senior police officers. Remuneration includes all sums
paid to or receivable by an employee and expense allowance chargeable to tax, including non-
cash benefits in kind. The relevant remuneration information is as follows:

Senior Officer and Relevant Police Officer Emoluments:

o] b ]
s 8 w @8 £33 @ . 5
¢ & g & Y- = B =
8 2 §! Ssg 58 B3
22 3 &85 E£3& 5 Tl
"I @ w3 oS " o o
o = [&]
5 z
Chief Constabla — 84,440 | 0 ] 36,611 0| 0| 26176 147,227 |
Pippa Mills = Mobe 1 0 | 0 0 0 I'_ a I 0 0 -
| Chief Constable - 71,818 0 4] 3,851 | 1,962 Q [ H2263 88,4934
Anthomy Bangham — —t — o g e
Nats 1 156,101 o 0 9,422 4,281 0| 48081 216885
\ ! i : = L | |
Deputy Chie! 128,264 o] o0 4746 | 3701 0| aogorz| 177783
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Constable 1 - Note 2 127,950 0 6855 | 3,700 0| 39865| 178170
Asst Chiaf Constable 119,220 0 5.027 0| 0| 35958 | 162,105
1—Nate 3 80,057 0 6,772 i o| zree| 124,747
Asst Chisl Constable 5,630 o 0 202 0| 1748 7577
2 - Hote 4 115,792 o 7,541 4,281 0| asses| 163500
Asst Chiel Constable 0 0 0| 0 0 1] i
3 = Note 5 14,918 o 0 o 0| 4625 18,751
Asst Chéel Con
4 = Note § . 108,972 1,238 i} 0 0| 28442 136853
82,744 1,238 0 0 0| 27776 121,758
Asst Chief Constable '
5 Mot T 7.087 0 502 0 o| 2200 9,798
0 0 0 0 0 D 0
Director of Business 112,404 1] 5,203 ] 18,434 136,041
Services 104,526 0 5,802 0 0| 17142 127470
Direcior of 99,811 0 0 o| t€asa| 116180
Commercial Services 98,796 ] ] 0 16,203 114 5
Palice & Crime 76,500 0 0 0| 12546 80,048
Commissinmnes 76,500 | 0 a 12 546 a9,0de
35,700 0 o 0 B5S5 41,555
Deputy PCC B
48,450 0 o 7.946 56,396
Chief Exacutive 15 the 117,413 1,148 ] 0| 50570 | 15194 | 184,326
lFEG Note & 68,900 1,238 0 0 0 16,384 117,523
I
Traasurer to the PCC W 41,430 o o a0 0 6,752 48,182
1=Nole 56,077 o o o 0| 8,197 65,274
Treasurer to the POC 56834 Q i a i] o078 6,012
2 - Nate 8 0 0 0 o 0 0
Mobaxg:

ralocation expensas,

e

1| Previous Chief Conslable retired on 15 September 2021 and the new Chief Constable started on 17 Septamber
2021 (DCC acted up for 1 day). The new Chief Constable's Banefits in Kind element includes £34,758 ralating to

2 | Comméenced in post on 8 January 2020

Commeanced in post on 15 June 2030,

Aprl 2021,

4 | Commenced in post on 8 July 2018; acted up to DCC from 21 October 2019 to 5 January 2020: loft the Forca 17

I-DI{!

5 | Acted up from Chief Suparintendent o ACC from 21 October 2019 8o 29 December 2019; laft the Force 31 May

e

g Tl!mnum' nmmmﬂ o ACC from 2 March 2020 1o 14 June 2020, and agam from 13 June 2021 10 28 February
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2022,

Cormmenced in mrst Fi Marr:h 2!322‘

Chiaf E:ucecutn.la saft 4 March 2{::?? inant in Lhew of Notice included in 2021722 aalaq.r cost.

9| The prﬁ1.|1|:|4_|5 Treasurar o e l::-;nﬂnussmner in the PCC's office retired on 30 November 2021 and the new
Treasurer acled up into tha role bafore being appaintéd parmandgatly from 5 March 2022,

Senior police officers and police staff receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year
{excluding employer's pension contributions) and including Senior Officers listed above were
paid the following amounts:

Numbaer of Empluwﬂ_” Number of Employees

Group Ll Remuneration Band Group PCC
202021 | 202024 2021/22  2021/22
138 | 0| £50,000-£54,999 157 0
126 2 | £55,000 - £59,999 | 118 7 |
a7 1| £60,000 - £64,999 [ 55 1
13 1| £65,000- £69,999 12 0
5 0 | £70,000 - £74,899 7 0
11 1| £75,000- E?H 999 § __1-
3 o | £80, l][H:I £84,909 8 | 1_
3 0 | £85,000-£89,999 2 | 0
7 | 0| £90,000-£94,999 1| 0
1 0| £95000-£99,999 2 | 0
: 1| £100,000 - £104,999 ol 0|
] 0 0 | £105,000-£109,999 2 0|
2 | 0 | £110,000-£114,999 0| 0|
0 0| £115,000-£119,999 1 0|
1 0 | £120,000 - £124,999 1 0|
o 0| £125000-£129.999 1 0
1 0 | £135,000-£139,999 1 0|
1 0 | E£160,000 - £164,999 _ 0 0
0 0 | £165000 - £169,999 | 1 1
B L ——

17. External Audit Costs

The Group's Proposed External Audit Fee for 2021/22 is £62,118 (£61,818 in 2020/21) in
relation to the Statement of Accounts statutory audit provided by the Group's external auditors,
Grant Thomton. The PCC's share of the audit fee is £40,786 (E40,475 in 2020/21) and the
Chief Constable's share is £21,332 (£21,073 in 2020/21).

The actual amounts charged to the CIES amount to £64,122 for the Group, £48,899 for the
PCC, and £15,223 for the Chief Constable, These figures include an allowance for the audit
fees charged by Granl Thomton for additional work on the 2019/20 Accounts over and above
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that accrued in 2019/20 and for additional work on the 2020/21 Accounls, as well as an
eslimate for 2021/22 (£38,380 for the PCC and £15,438 for the Chief Constable which are
lower than the actual fees that Grant Thomton have subsequently advised). A rebate of £8,050
was received from Public Sector Audit Appointments in respect of audit fees for 2020/21 (PCC:
£5,200, CC: £2,850) and the figures in the CIES are net of this rebate.

Grant Thornton provided no non-audit services during the year (nil in 2019/20).

18. Related Parties

The PCC and the Chief Constable are intrinsically related. The PCC empowers the Chief
Constable through the scheme of consent and provides funding to meet expenditure incurred
by the Chief Constable on behalf of the PCC. A full explanation of this relationship is set out in
MNote 3 to the Accounts,

The Group is required to disclose material transactions with related parties: bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Group or to be controlled or
influenced by the Group. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent
to which the Group might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain or deal freely with the Group.

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Group. It is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Group operates, provides
the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the
transactions that the Group has with other parties {e.g. council 1ax bills). Grants received from
government are set out in Notes 12 and 13.

The PCC has direct contral over the Group's finances, including making crime and disorder
reduction grants and is responsible for setting the Police and Crime Plan. The Chief Constable
retains operational independence and operates within the budget set by the PCC, to deliver
the aims and objectives set out in the Police and Crime Plan. Section 28 of the Police Reform
and Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires that the local authorities covered by the police
area must establish a Police and Crime Panel (PCP) for that area. The PCP scrutinises the
decisions of the PCC, reviews the Police and Crime Plan and has a right of veto over the
precept.

The PCC and Chief Constable participate in various partnerships with a range of public bodies,
previously the most significant of which was the strategic alliance under a Section 22
Agreement with Warwickshire Police, which ceased on 31 March 2020. As set out in Note 14,
two SZ2a Collaborative Agreements were agreed between the two Forces for four services
that continued to be provided to or shared with Warwickshire during 2020/21 and part of
2021/22, resulting in income to West Mercia amounting to £4.1m (2020/21: £6.4m); other
income from Warwickshire for various services provided during the year amounted to £0.7m.

As explained in Note 14, Place Partnership Limited (PPL) was a single asset management
company co-owned by Wesl Mercia Police, Warwickshire Police, Worcestershire County
Council and Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority that commenced business on 1 September
20135, Following Worcestershire County Council giving notice in March 2020 of its intention to
exit PPL effective from 1% April 2021, during 2020/21 the remaining partners agreed to
dissolve PPL and it ceased trading 31* March 2021. Each party held two shares of £1 each
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(held by the PCC). The PCC received no remuneration from PPL. The Deputy PCC has been
a non-Executive Director of PPL from April 2020 and also received no benefit or remuneration.
Papers have now been filed at Companies House placing PPL into a solvent liquidation.

The Deputy PCC is a County Councillor for Worcestershire and a District Councillor in Wyre
Forest, and the PCC's sister is also a District Councillors in Wyre Forest. No personal benefit
is obtained by them from these positions. In 2021/22, the Group incurred spend of £0.398m
(£0.239m in 2020/21) with Worcestershire County Council (rental, room hire, grants and other
items of general expenditure) and £0.129m (£0.163m in 2020/21) with Wyre Forest District
Council {(mainly business rates).

As explained in the Marrative Report, the government launched its white paper on the 18th
May 2022 on reforming Fire and Rescue Services, which includes proposed changes to the
Governance of these organisation. The PCC will be reviewing the proposals and working with
Fire and Rescue Authorities to identify what fulure role the PCC may have and how to enable
closer collaboration between emergency services.

The following table shows the extent of the Force's expenditure and income with other local
authorities, police Forces (excluding Warwickshire Police, shown above),

Expenditure Income
£0040 £000

Local Authorities in the Policing Area
Other Local Authorities

Seconded Police Officars
COither Palice Forces

10,296

There are no other related party transactions for the PCC and Chief Constable other than
those sel out above, which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or
the accompanying notes. All contracts have been entered into in compliance with the Scheme
of Delegation and Financial and Contract Regulations 2021/22. The following table shows the
seven suppliers with which the Group incurred the greatest expenditure in 2021/22:

Expeanditura
£000
West Midlands Police 5127 |
" West Mercia Rape and Sexual Abuse Centre 2,202 |
| Specialist Gﬂmpuief Centres F'L-l::‘- Em
Moonan Services Group - 1,743
Insight (Direct) UK Ltd 1,719 |
Home Office Accounting Officer 1 .EE
Virgin Media Business B 1,571

7h



The Group and Palice and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia Statement of Accounts 2031522

Maotas to the Financial Statements

19. Leases

The cost of operating leasas is shown in the Chief Constable's Accounts to reflect the day-lo-
day direction and contrel the Chief Constable exercises over the resources acquired. However
the PCC holds ultimate responsibility for entering into lease arrangements.

The Group as Lessea

The PCC occupies 19 premises (23 in 2020/21) on an operaling lease basis. The lease
payments due in future years are:

31 March 2021
bis £000 23 i

597 | Naotlater than one year 645
1,942 | Later than one year and not later than five years 2116

1,703 Later than five years 1,410
4242 | Total PCC and Group j

The amount paid in 2021/22 was £0.8m (£0.7m in 2020/21).

The Group as Lessor

(i} Finance Lease

The PCC entered into a partnership with Hereford and Worcester Fire Authority (HEWFA) to
build a joint facility in Bromsgrove. The costs of the build were met fully by Weast Mercia PCC
with HEWFA leasing its part of the building over an initial 30 year term, commencing with effect
from 1 April 2014. This arrangement has been identified as a finance lease and has a
remaining term of 23 years.

The PCC has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments
expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for
H&WFA's part of the property when the lease comes to an end. The minimum lease payments
comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interast in the property acquired by the
lessee (see Note 24) and finance income that will be eamed by the PCC in fulure years whilst
the debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts:

31 March 31 March
2021 2022
00D £000

70 | Current 73
2862 | Mon-currant 2 789
2588 | Uneamed finance income 2418

285 | Unguaranteed residual value of property 3485
5,905 | Gross investment in the lease = 5,665
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The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the
following periods:

Gross Minimum Gross Minimum
Il'li'll'“m‘lil'ﬂ_ Lﬂm Investmant Lease
in the Payments in the Paymanis

Leasa Leasa
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2021 2022 2022
£000 £000 | ! £000 £000
240 240 | Not later than one year 240 240
a60 960 Later than one year and not later than five S60 960

YEArE |
= | !
4,705 4,320 | Later than five years 4,465 | 4,080
5,905 5,520 | Total PCC and Group

(ii) Operating Leases

The PCC leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:

« for the provision of community services such as the Community Hub in Evesham (see
also Mote 22);

= for the tenancy of Hindlip Farm (land anly);

e for the provision of equipment on masts (a change in legislation now means only a
minimal amount can be charged and no income was received for these in 2021/22).

The lease payments receivable in future years are:

31 March 31 March
2021 2022
g0 | 0000 AR £000

64 | Mot later than one year 33
18 Later than one year and not later than five years 133
0| Later than five years ' 0

82| Total PCC and Group R

The amount received in 2021/22 was £0.086m (£0.020m in 2020/21).

20. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
together with the resources used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in
future years, by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Group, the expenditure resulls
in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital
expenditure incurred historically by the Group that has yet to be financed.

B0
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[ 20202 2021/22
E0D0 E000
LA Opening Capital Financing Requirement - PCC and Group 57 865
| Capital investment:
11,045 F‘r::-pcrl; planl: ar;a-é;:p_n'l:n-r ] 10,442
B 1,850 | Intangible assets ] 404
0 Revenue axpenditure f_unl:l_erl from capital under statute S | 14
Sources of finance: - |
{505) | Capital receupis o - | {204)
(1,029) Government g grant'a and ul:her contributions HE— | {430)
Su:ns set EEIdE fmm revenue: == |
{158) Direct revenue ct t:untrlbu!lnns == = | (3,653)
(83) | Contribution from Reserves - ' (737}
_['..?..'5:}5] .hﬁia;m.ﬂewzmh& Provision - | (3 578)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement = PCC and Group

Explanation of movements In the year |

Increase in underlying need to borrow in respect of capital expendifure not
11,220 | financed by other means (and unsupported by government financial 5827
asslstarme:l

(2.335) Decrease in underlying need to borrow in respect of Minimum Revenue
. Provigion for the year

increase/{Decrease) in Capital Financing Reguire ment

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments of £4.6m (£2.0m as at 31 March
2021), relating mainly to spend on Vehicles (£1.4m) and ICT hardware (£1.7m) that had been
ordered during 2021/22 but had not been delivered as at 31 March 2022.

21. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The PCC holds all the Group's PPE. Assels are stralegic in nature and are controlled by the
PCC to achieve strategic oulcomes,

The movements on the balances of the PPE assets are shown in the following tables:

PCC and Group

Movemants
in 2021/22

nd &

uildimgs
Furniture &
Equipmeant

onstruction

L
B

= Surplus
= Azzels

=
=
=
*
'~

| Restated Cost or valuation at 1 Aprll 2021| 62540 | 13412 | 23,274 1,825 6,575 | 107,626
Additions | 1,507 770 | 1923 0| 6242 | 10442
Tra r|5rE|r fram f {to) Assels under B
Caonstruction 421 Q 2,741 ] {3, 184) (22
Tramsfer fram ! {lo) Surplus Assets (71) 0 fy 71 0 a
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Donated Assets 0 0 0 0 0 a
Revaluation increases / |decreases) - o .
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve {1.758) 0 a 335 g (1.363)
Revaluation increases / {decreases)
recogrised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 1,260 i 0 i il 1,260
Provigion of Ser'_uic.es S | ) _ - )
De-recognition — disposals o | (B6E6) 0 0 a {966
De-recognition - danatod 1] ] 0 | 4] ] i
De-recognition — olher ] 0 [317) 0 0 {317)
At 31 March 2022 63,899 | 13,216 | 27,621 2,291 9633 | 116660

Less Accumulated Depreciationand | | T pes® VL
Impairment
At 1 April 2021 (2,218) | (B844) | (13.471) 0 0 | (24,533)
Depreciation charge
Depracialion written oul 1o tha Revalualion
R E‘;Em (120} ] o a 0 (120)
Depreciation written out 1o the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services | (1338) | (1.824) | (3.775) 0 0| (6.735)
Revalualion incraases | (decreases)
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 4,002 0 9 0 0 200z
Transfer (fram) [ ta Assats Hald for Sale 0 i ] i Q 0 I
De-recognition — disposals 0 a45 0 ] 0 845
De-recognition = donated | a 0 0 ] 0 0
De-recognition — other | 0 L] 37 i] 0 a7 |
At 31 March 2022 (1,672) | (9.523) | (16,929) 0 0| (28,124)

Met book value at 31 March 20232

Restated Net book value at 31 March
2021

10,692

Assels created under the alliance arrangements were jointly controlled with only the PCC's
share being held in the Balance Sheet. Where the PCC for Warwickshire's share of these
assets was originally purchased by the PCC for West Mercia, they were donated to the PCC
for Warwickshire. The PCC for Warwickshire then made a grant payment to the PCC
aquivalent to the expenditure incurred. ICT Equipment Assets amounting to £0.106m and ICT
Assets under Construction amounting to £0.610m were trealed in this manner during 2020/21,
with the equivalent amount of assels being donaled to the PCC for Warwickshira. This

arrangement has now ceased,
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PCC and Group
Movements
in 2020721

e
=1}
i
=
=

,.
o
2 Wehicles

Furniture &
Equipmant

Under
onstruction

~
C

i ARERLE

o=
L=

| Restated Cost or valuation at 1 April 20200 65138 | 12,998 | 18967 | 2,075 | 10,468 | 109,647
Additions 370 2,015 4,015 0 4 644 11,044
Transfer from [ (lo) Assels under
Construction & 0 3,134 0 (7,927 i4,787)
Transfer from  (to) Assols Held for Sala 0 ] ¥ 0 1) 0

| Donated Assats {sea Telephony note I | | i

| above) 0 0 0 . 0 0 0

| Revaluation increases / (decreases) | 1 ' .
remgnlhed in tha Revaluation Reserve (1,570) 0 0 _ {23 :I 0 (1,593)
Revaluation increases | (decrapges) ] |
recognised in the Surplus/Deficll on the 356 0 Q 1] 0 356
F'I'D'.:'iEiEII'I of Services
De- -recognition - disposals (1,760) | (1,601) 0| (228 0 | (3586) |
DF- -recognition - donated | 0 0 {2113 0 (G11) | (822) |
Dwe-racognition — other 1] D {2,631) 0 | 0 , (2631 |
Restated At 31 March 2021 62,540 | 13412 | 23274 1,825 6,575 | 107,626

i Lass Accumulated DB;]]"E-I;]-.-H‘H:IIIH am:i : =
Impairment
At 1 April 2020 [2,750) | (B,515) | (12,173) 0 0 | (23,438)
Depreciation charge

- = h :
gzgﬂntnjn written out 1o the Revaluation (1) 0 | o a o (a1}
Deprelzlal.-;-un written out 1o tha 5 : I

| Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services | 11,3671 | (1.840) [ {3,929) o o \136)
Revaluation increases / (decreases) i -
recoqnisad in Lhe- F'.-E'.Ialuatn::-n Rpﬁenre- 1.144 0 0 0 0 1,144
Transfer irmm}.'tc: -ﬁssets Helu:l fior Salt: 0 | o | i 0 0 0
De- rH:ngnnmn = dl‘iﬂﬂﬁﬂh B46 1,511 2,631 0 0 4,988
DE -recagnition — dnnmau:r | ] i 4] 1] 0
DEl r@mgnmnn — athar { 0 0 i ] a |
M 31 March El.'lzi (2,218) | (8,844) | (13,471} 0 0 | [(24,533)
Rastated Net book value at 31 March
Restated Net book value at 31 March

B3



The l|3I'D:I.I|:I and Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia Statement of Accounts 2021722

Mates Lo the Financial Stataments

Revaluations

The PCC camies out a rolling programme that ensures that all Land and Buildings required to
be measurad at current value are revalued at least every five years, with desktop valuations
being carried out more frequently where appropriate. Further information about the
revaluations including the bases used is set oul in Accounting Policy xwviii.

Restated : 2021/22
2020/21 Land and
PCC and buildings
Group
£000 E00D
0 | Carried at current value at 31 March 2022 (GBY at 31 March 2022 £49.907m) 49,907 |
21,536 | Carried at cun&ﬁt value at 31 March 2021 (GBY at 31 March 2022 £13.292m) 12,320 I
34,505 | Carried at current value at 31 March 2020 0|
4,281 - Carried at current valu&_eﬂ 31 March 2019 a I
60,322 Tutal Valuations _ : 62,277

Surplus Assets are defined as properties that are not being used to deliver services, bul that
do not meet the Code's criteria to be classified as either Investment Properties or an Assets
Held for Sale. Surplus Assels are valued at current value and the following table summarises
the valuations of these assels, measured using significant observable inputs (Level 2 of the
current value hierarchy):

2020521 2021722
PCC and PCC and
Group Group
000 £000

{ Camead at curmant valua at 31 March 2022 2.2491

1,825 Camied at cument value at 31 March 2021 1]

1,825 | Total Valuations

Vehicles of £3.693m and Plant Furniture & Equipment of £10.691m are carried at Depreciated
Historic Cost. Assels under Construction of £9.633m are held at Historic Cost.

22. Investment Properties

Rental income of £0.053m from Evesham Customer Contact Centre has been accounted for in
2021/22 (£0.042m in 2020/21) in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the CIES. The tenant has now vacated the property and no new tenant has yet been found.
There are no restrictions on the PCC's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the PCC's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
PCC has no contractual obligations o purchase, construct or develop investment properly or
undertake repairs, maintenance or enhancement. The following table summarises the
movement in the cument value of investment properties owver the year, measured using
significant observable inputs (Level 2 of the current value hierarchy):

EIEmIEr] == e T . 2021122
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£000
370 | Balance at start of the year — PCC and Growp

{251 | Met gainsflosses from cumant value adjustmenis
345 | Balance at end of the year — PCC and Group
23. Intangible Assets

Software is accounted for as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral
part of a particular ICT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item in PPE. All
software is given a finite useful life of 5 years. The camying amount of software assets is
amortised on a straight-line basis. The amontisation charge to revenue expenditure is absorbed
as an overhead across all divisions of service. It is not possible to quantify exactly how much
of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading. Amorlisation costs are charged to
the Met Cost of Services in the CIES.

The movement of Intangible Assels during the year is as follows:

2020021 2024123

Softwara Software
£000 - £000
Balance at start of year = PCC and Group

aBzv

Gross camying amounis

(2.444)

Accumulated amiorsation

1,283

Met carrying amount at start of year

1,850

Additions - purchased

4,787

Additions = transfer from Assats Under Construction

0

| Disposals

(728)

| De-recognition — ather

(1,224)

Amortization for the period

1.160) |

726

De-recognifion depraciation — other

9,838 i Gross carmying amount
{2,942) [ Accumulated amorisation

_ H'“i.[ﬁ,“ carrying amount at end of year

| Comprizing:

8,854

{3,734)

6,896

Balance at and of the year — PCC and Group

24. Long-Term Debtors

This note shows money owed to the Group and PCC for funding and services provided on or
before 31 March 2022 where the money will be received in excess of one year from this date.
The balance mainly relates to the net investment in the Finance Lease in respect of the
partnership with Hereford and Worcester Fire Authority (HEWFA) to build a joint facility in
Bromsgrove (£3.247m), as explained in Note 19 (i) and NPAS’s liability to the PCC in respect
of the disposal of the helicopter as explained in Note 14 (£0.14m - with £0.044m being shown
as a short-term debtor). These two items are matched by balances held as Deferred Capital

a5
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Receipts. A pre-payment of 10 years' rental on leased premises at Pershore was made in
2017 and the balance relating lo the 5 years from 2023/24 onwards is shown as a long-term

debtor (E0.116m).

2020421 2021122
£000 £000
3,620 | Balance at start of year 3,522
25 Pre-payment of rent for Pershore Police Station for 2022723 moved 1o shar (29)
=l ferm debtars |
5 MPAS — Helicopter (correction of duplication of movement 1o short-term (43)
debtors in 2019/20)
(66) | Settlemnents relating to the Finance Lease {70}
{(8) | Other minor additions / {repayments) i4)
3,522 | Total -

25. Assets Held for Sale

An asset rationalisation plan has been developed by the OPCC and assets that potentially
could be disposed of have been identified, however, the implementation of the plan is still at
any early stage and no properties were sold during 2021/22. No asset meets the criteria to be
classified as an asset held for sale in the Accounts as at 31 March 2022. Further to this an
annual impairment review is also carried oul.

The profit of £0.037m on disposal of non-current assets shown in the CIES relates to the profit
on disposal of vehicles during the year.

26. Debtors and other current assets

This note shows money owed to the Group and PCC for funding and services provided on or
before 31 March 2022 where the money has not been received by this date. Further
information regarding Debtors is shown in Notes 30 and 31 — Financial Instruments.
Inventories amounting to £0671m (£0.561m in 2020/21) are now shown as part of
prepayments.

31 March 31 March
2021 2022
E£000 £000

1.311 Trade Receivables
2456 | Prepayments
15,888 | Other Receivables
19,6855 | Group Debtors 3,732
{561) | Less Chief Constable Deblors: Prepaymanis | {671)
{6,683) " Less Chief Gﬂnéﬁﬁe Debtars: Other raceivables (9.1 EJ
12,411 | PCC Debtors m

86
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27. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of the PCC's cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March | ' 31 March
202 2022
£000 = i £000

22 | Cash held by the Group |
398 | Bank curren accounts 1,855
| 8,951 | Short term deposits 1,504

s S

9,871 Total Group and PCC

28. Creditors

This note shows money owed by the Group and PCC for goods and services purchased and
received on or before 31 March 2022 where the money has not been paid by this date. Further
information regarding Creditors is shown in Mote 30 - Financial Instruments.

| 31 March 2020 5
£000
[&,925) Trade Payables
(23,052} | Other Payables
{31,977) Group Creditors
14, 983 Less Chief Constahle -I:'.radim-:-s

| (16,994) | PcC c:}éﬁitnrq_ T

31 March 2021

(4,653) |

(16,323)

29. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Termination Benefits

This provision was established to meet the cosls of voluntary redundancies and early
retirements on the grounds of voluntary redundancy agreed during the 2021/22 financial year
but falling into the following financial year; there are no such cases in 2021/22 and no provision
is required as at 31 March 2022. The balance of £0.361m as at 1 April 2021 included £0.135m
from 2019/20 relating to adjustments to injury pensions in respect of the Evans & Ashcroit
case: these were seltled in April and May 2021 and the provision amount was fully used in
2021/22.

Terminatiaon
Benefits

£000

Balance at 1 April 2021

8y
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| Additional provisions made in 2021722 0 |

| Amaunts used in 2021/22 (361) |

Balance at 31 March 2022 for the Group

and Chie! Constable

Mo other provisions were charged to the CIES in 2021/22 in respect of events or decisions
which are likely to give rise to payments in the future.

Insurance and Legal claims = Contingent Liability

The Group has assessed ils outstanding Insurance and Legal claims and has identified some
higher risk cases that may resull in a settlement amount not covered by insurance. In
accordance with Accounting Policy xix, it has been determined that the probability of an
outflow of resources being required is not great enough to make a provision for these amounts:
a contingent liability is therefore disclosed. In the event that a future payment is required an
earmarked reserve is held under usable reserves (seae Note 8) lo fund any settlements.

30. Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments

The PCC holds simple financial instruments (investments (cash) and borrowings), which is
reflected in the scope of this Note to the Accounts. A new temporary loan amounting to £5m
was laken out with The PCC for South Wales during the year and will be repaid in July 2022.
Mo other borrowing was required due to slippage on the capital programme and an
underspend on the revenue budget.

The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Long Term Current
Financial Assets Investments Dobtors Investments Debtors
 Cash

As at 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 E£000
Fair value through profit or loss ' 0 0 0 0
Amartised cost {previously loans and receivables) 0 3261 3,485 14,875
Fair value through other comprehensive income 0 0 0 L .
Debtors that are mod ﬁnan-cEHI instruments (taxes [ 7ET
and paymaeants in advance) , L ‘ 118 0 8,75

Long Term Current
Financial Assets Investmenis Debtors  Investments Debtors
Restated I Cash
As at 31 March 2021 £000 EQ00 £000 E000
Fair value through profit or loss ' 0 o 0 1
| Amortised cost (previously loans and recaivables) Q 3374 4871 12,944
| Fair value through other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0

&a
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Debtors that are not financial instruments {taxes
and paymeanis in advance)

0 7,119

‘Bromsgrove Finance Lease and NPAS are long term debtors and were omitted from 20/21

Statement of accounts

Lang Term Currant
Financial Liabilities Borrowlngs Creditors  Borrowings Craditors
£000 £000 EO0Q0 E00D
As at 31 March 2022
Fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 Q|
Amortised cost 32,614 6,629 23,866 |

Cn—zuf!'-h:nr:; l:h.ETt:ra nat firancial II'I-E_IZI'lrI'I'lE'-I:IIZE."[LEIEE.
Mational Insurance and prepayments)

0 0 0 | 8,053 |

Current
Borrowings  Creditors
£000 £000

Long Term
Borrowings Creditors
£000 £000

Financial Liabilities

As at 31 March 2021
Fair value through profit or loss a i ] ]

i Amortised cost

i Creditors that are not financial instruments (laxes,
Mational Insurance and prepaymenis)

A 582

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

The interest received on Financial Assets (investments) and interest paid on Financial
Liabilities (borrowings) are as follows:

aurplus or Deficit on
the Provision of

Cther Comprehensive
Incame and

aarvices Expenditure

| 2021122

interest Bavenue: financial assats measured at (34
| amortigedecost | 7 ) U

Interest Expense Payable a2 0
| 2020121
| Interest Revenue; financial assets measured at (25) 0
|_amortised cost !
| Intarast Expansa Payabla 27 | o |

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Financial liabilities, financial assels represented by loans and receivables and long-term
debtors and credilors are carmed in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can
be assessed by calculaling the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the
remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions (other significant
observable inputs - Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy):

a9
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. estimated interest rates at 31 March 2022 of 1.23% for loans from the Public Works
Loans Board (PWLB);

» where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to
approximate to fair value;

« discount rates of between 2.1% and 2.9% for Arlingclose's calculation of fair value of
PWLB loans, based on local authority bonds in issue;

. no early repayment or impairment is recognised,

« where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months the carrying amount is assumed Lo
approximate to fair value,

= asthe Salix loans are interest free the carrying amount is equal to the fair value amount;

« the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount
{equal to the camying amount shown in the table above).

The fair values calculated are as follows:

PCC and Group 31 March 2022 : 31 March 2021

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amaiint amaount
£000 £000 £000  E000
Financial Liahilities - PWLEB 34,028 | 35,001 | 35,600 40,525
Financial Liabilities ~ Short- '
term, temporary bormowing 5,000 10,015 10,000
Financial Liabilitias — Salix 114 163 163

Total Bomowing

Fair values are estimated as the price the lender would receive to sell the loans to another
market participant on 31st March, based on observed market rates for similar transactions. A
calculation of the fair value amount is supplied by the PWLB, using redemption rates, however,
IFRS13 requires a different basis to be used and the fair value figures in the table have been
calculated by the PCC's Treasury Advisers, Arlingclose, using the basis above. The PWLB
calculations were £39.8m (E44.2m as at 31 March 2021).

31. Mature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments

The Group's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks, principally:

« Credit risk: The possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Group;

=  Liquidity risk: The possibility that the Group might not have funds available to meet our
commitments to make payments;

«  Market risk: The possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rates and stock market movements (the Group does not hold any

share aquity).

The Group has adopted CIPFA's Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Praclice

and set treasury management indicators to control financial instrument risks in accordance

with CIPFA’s Prudential Code. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise polential adverse effects on the
a0
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resources available to fund police services. Risk management is carried out by a Treasury
Management Team, under policies approved by the PCC in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy. The PCC provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate nisk, credit risk and the investment of
surplus cash. The Treasury Management Sirategy can be found on the PCC's website.

Credit Risk

The overmiding aim of the Group is to maintain the security of its capital and liquidity of ils
investments over the requirement for an investment retum. The Group will also aim to achieve
the optimum retum on its investments, commensurate with proper levels of security and
liquidity. The risk appetite of the Group is extremely low in order to give overriding and
absolute priority to the security of its investments. The borrowing of monies purely to invest or
lend on and make a return is unlawful and the Group does not engage in such activity.

The principal risks are minimised by the Annual Investment Strategy, which forms part of the
overall Treasury Management Strategy. It is a requirement of the Strategy that cash balances
are invested with banks and building societies with strong short-term credit rating, other local
authorities and the UK Government Debt Management Office.

The Group has stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality of counterparties for inclusion
on the counterparty or lending list. The ‘creditworthiness methodology' used to create the
counterparty list takes account of the ratings and observations published by three ratings
agencies, Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors.

It is recognised that ralings or the ratings of any one agency should not be given undue
weighting or be the sole determinant of the quality of an insfitution and that it is important to
continually assess and monitor the financial sector and economic and political environments in
which the institlutions operate, The assessment will also take account of information that
reflects the opinion of the markets and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.
Other information sources used will include the financial press and share price in order to
establish the most robust scruting process on the suitability of potential investment
counterparties. The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy
counterparties, which will allow investments to spread rather than be concentrated with a
limited range of institutions. The creditworthiness of institutions is monitored on an on-going
basis in conjunction with the PCC's Treasury Advisers, Arlingclose. Should an institution no
longer meet the minimum criteria and be deemed no longer appropriate to invest with then
investments will be moved immediately.

At 31 March 2022 the short- term investment (cash) balances were as follows:

2021422
EOUD E000
T.87 = On call (available immediately) (variable rate) 3,485
1,000 | - Repayable in 1 month {fixed rates) ]

= Repayable in 2 months {fixed rates)
| Total PCC and Group

It is not unheard of for local authorities and public bodies to hold investments that
subsequently the financial institution fails to repay. However, there has been no experience of

m



The Group and Police and Crima Commissioner far West Mercia Statement of Accounts 2021/22

Hates to the Financial Statemants -

default on investment of these cash balances and there is no reason lo suspect that there will
be in the future.

Where it is appropriate o do so customers are assessed, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being sel in accordance
with internal ratings with parameters set by the Group. However, the vasl majority of
transactions do not justify this approach.

Receipts from customers for sales of services and recoupable costs from other public bodies
are a relatively small part of the Group's income (E17.2m in 2021/22). No old, overdue invoices
amounting were written off in 2021/22.

The Group generally allows a 30 day standard credit term for customers such that £0.7m of the
E£1.5m balance outstanding from customers at 31 March 2022 was pasl the point of 30 days
from the date of invoice; this is similar to 2020/21. This past due amount can be analysed as
follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2022
£000 £000

278 | Lass than 3 months 458

58 | 310 6 months 6

55 | 6 10 12 months 6

281 | Over 12 months ' 219

6r2 689

The following table summarises the potential maximum exposure at the year end to credil risks
other than treasury investments and cash-equivalent investmenis,

Balance of deblors ledger at 31 March 2022 1,486 |

Historical experience of default B B

Historical axperience a-djustad_'-[a'r-rriérket canditions at 31 Hﬂ.l-;:h"?'l-:l-?é- 3

Estimated maximurm exposure to default at 31 March 2022 61

Estimated maximum expasure 1o default at 31 March 2021 __ _ 47 _'
Liquidity Risk

The Group has a cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as
needed. If unexpected movements happen the Group has ready access to borrowings from the
PWLB or from other Local Authorities. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise
finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. There is a degree of risk that
borrowing will need to be undertaken at a time of unfavourable interest rates, therefore, the
position is monitored closely.

Borrowing limits for the Group are set in the Prudential Indicators prepared as a requirement of
the CIPFA Prudential Code. Maximum borrowing limits for 2021/22 were set at £90m, due to
the high level of the capital programme in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Long-term
PWLB borrowing has not been taken out in 2021/22 due lo a favourable cash flow position and
slippage on the capital programme. Further external borrowing will be required during 2022/23
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to replace the ESm short-term loan thal matures in July 2022 and to fund the capital
programme. The matunty analysis of the financial liabilities is as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2022
£000 £000
11,637 | Less than one year = Shor-term Borrowing (includes accrued 6,620
intarest of £0.100m at 31 March 2022 {(£0.116 at 31 March 20211
1,528 | Belween ana and bwo years &,5.34
8,535 | Over two and up ba five years 4555
13,078 | Over fiva and up to twenty years 11,575
10,000 | Owver 20 years 10,000
Pl Total Barmowing for the Group | PCC

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
Market Risk

The Group held no fixed rale short-term investments at year end although it did at various
times durning the year, depending on its cash flow position. Over a number of years, in line with
changes to interest rates generally, there has been a significant reduction in interest rates and
therefore a fall in overall investment returns. With the recent increases to the Bank of England
Bank Rate this is now changing and investment retums will be much higher in 2022/23. An
increase in interest rates has the following effect on investments:

= Investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services (CIES) will rise;
. Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of assets will fall,

A decrease in interest rates will have the opposite effect. Generally the nature of shori-term
investments indicates that any difference between the actual value and fair value of the
investiment would be marginal.

The Group holds fixed rate loans, which eliminates the risk of interest rate movement on
borrowing. Borrowings are nol carred at fair value, so nominal gains or losses on fixed rate
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,

The approach lo borrowing for capital projects is to delay borrowing and to temporarily use
working capital balances for as long as possible. The present relative rates of interest for
borrowing and lending mean that it is advantageous to delay long-term borrowing whilst the
overall cash flow is positive. Capital expenditure temporarily funded from working capital up to
31 March 2022 was £20.971m (£12.203m at 31 March 2021) this has increased by £8m, due
to the reduction in external borrowing and the use of a revenue confribution to capital of £3.5m
to partly fund the capital programme during 2021/22.

Working capital balances as at 31 March 2022 are again at their lowest possible level and
some of the capital expenditure in 2022/23 will require external borrowing during the year.
There is a risk that rates may be adverse when and if this borrowing takes place, particularly
with the increases in the Bank Rate. Monitoring medium and long-term borrowing costs versus
the opportunity costs of not investing working capital mitigates this risk. The Treasury
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Management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rates exposure that feeds into
setting the Medium Term Financial Plan and annual budget and is used to update the budget
quarterly during the year. The working capital position and the potential timing of external
borrowing are being monitored closely by the Treasury Management team in consultation with
the Treasurer and the external Treasury advisers, Arlingclose.

It is calculated that if interest rates had been 1% higher for 2021/22 with all other variables
held constant, the financial effect would be:

Increasa in interest payable on fixed rate borrowings 380

Increase in interast receivable on fided rate short tem investmants ' {128)

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on then Provision of Sarvices

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being
reversed,

32. Proceeds of Crime

The Act gives powers to the Police and Customs to seize cash derived from, or intended for
use in crime, and to secure its forfeiture in civil magistrates’ court proceedings. The PCC is
currently holding cash totalling £1.292m.

33. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:-
SHon! 2021122
£000 £000
23 | Interest recaived
(727} | Interest paid

(702) | Total - Group and PCC

The surplus/deficit on the provision of services has been adjusled for the following non-cash
movements:-

PCC Group ' ' FCC Group

2020021 2020121 2021/22 2021022

E000 E000 £0:00 £000

(7,228) (7,228) | Depreciation | (6.854) (6,854)
358 356 | (Downward)/Upward valuations _' 1,260 1,260

— tli.EIE-i]' {1 224; Amaortisation ﬂfll'llal'lgltl-lﬂ assels . {1, 1613‘.1 E‘.‘IEF'Ij]-

__3::1-3_?'_ 2 848 {Incr&as&]-fderrease in revenLe n:radlim . 1,514 (Sa)
L E.EEEI ] {16’93:1 5FI-=.‘JE-EEEJ'I:-E|EEI'E'-BBE:I in revenue detﬂnm 2.355. -1.7"-!§E-
0 173 | Increase/{decrease) in inventories 0 110

[3,083) | 0 | Mavement in Infra-Group Funding . 1,272 0

[ _-(454] [EE 712) | Movement in pension liabdity | {B854) {66,272)
- 0 o '?""J Movement in provisions 0 361
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{25) (25) | Movement in value of Investment Properties (EAE) Ga)
(2,050) (2,050} | Carrying amaunt of non-current assets sold (22) (22)

(7,883) (71,389) | Total — Group and PCC

The surplus/deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that
arae investing and financing activities:-

2020121
_E000

361 | Proceeds -I'.r-::nm the sale of property, plant and equipment 50

1,020 | Capital Grants 439 |
1,380 | Total = Group and PCC

B - nit—

34. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

202021 | 2021/22
£000
13,619 Furchasa of properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets

{361) | Proceeds from the sale of property, plant ﬂl'-ld -ﬁpuipmenl

{1,347} | Other receipts from investing activifies
11,911 | Total — Group and PCC

35. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities

2020121

£000
(15.727) | Cash (receipis) / repayments of short= and long-tarm bormowing 6,535 |
(15,727) | Total — Group and PCC

36. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The costs and liabilities associated with retirement benefils are primarily recorded in the Chief
Constable's Accounts. However, with effect from 1 April 2016, the PCC became responsible
for the Youth Justice Service (YJS) in the West Mercia area. Following the transfer of the YJS
staff to the employment of the PCC, the net pension liability for the PCC single entity became
material and is now disclosed in the PCC's Financial Statements. The notes below show the
PCC's element of the pensions assets and liabilities in a separate column and these now
include the current costs of the former PPL employees who were employed by the PCC with
effect from 1 Aprl 2021. The legacy PPL pensions assets and liabilities are shown as a
“business combination” from 1 April 2021 as part of the Chief Constable’s pensions liability.

Participation in Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment for police officers and other employees the

Group makes conlributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits (pensions).
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a
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commitment o make the payments thal need lo be disclosed at the time thal the employees
eam their future enlittermeant, no matter when the actual financial cost is incurred.

The Group participates in two defined benefit pension schemes:

. the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), for police staff and PCSOs,
administered locally by Worcestershire County Council. This is a funded, defined benefit
scheme, meaning that the Chief Constable and the employees pay contributions into a
fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment
assets. With effect from 1 Aprl 2014, the LGPS became a career average (CARE)
scheme rather than a final salary scheme.

» the Police Pension Scheme 1987 (OPPS), the New Police Pension Scheme 2006 (NFPS)
and the Police Pension Scheme 2015 (PPS) are administered by XPS Pensions Group.
These are unfunded defined benefit final salary schemes, meaning that there are no
investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated
to meet the actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. The disclosures for the
varous Police Pension Schemes, including the Injury Awards Scheme, are consolidated
in the notes below, as the rules of the schemes are not materially different. The income
and expenditure incurred by the police pension schemes and how they are funded is
summarised in the section covering the Paolice Pension Fund Account.

The pension schemes above provide members with index-linked benefits, which are
determined predominantly by the individual's pensionable salary and length of service. As part
of the government's pension reforms, these schemes are undergoing significant changes in
how they are funded and the benefits they offer. However, the purpose of this note is to explain
the financial impact, in accordance with the Code, of the pension schemes on the Accounts.
Details of how the police pension schemes operate can be found on the Home Office website
and details of how the LGPS operates can be found on the Worcestershire County Council
website,

Prior to 1 April 2021, Wesl Mercia's 37.7% share of PPL's LGPS assets and liabilities were
incorporated into the Accounts and were shown separately in the lables below. The actuaries
assessed both the total assets and total liabilities relating to PPL as £40.698m as al 31 March
2021: a net liability of zero. These assets and liabilities have now been shown as a business
combination in the Chief Constable's LGPS liability in the tables below (37.7% of £40.698m
being £15.343m).

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on eary retirement are an unfunded benefit
arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no
scheme assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.

McCloud / Sargeant Ruling - Police Pension Scheme 2015 (CARE schemea) Legal
Challenge

Legal Cases

The Chief Constable, along with other Chief Constables and the Home Office, had a
number of claims in respecl of unlawful discrimination arising from transitional
provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015, The claims against the Police
Pension Scheme (the Aarons case) had previously been stayed behind the
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McCloud/Sargeant judgement, bul a case management was held in Oct 2019, with
the resulting Order including an interim declaration that the claimants are entitied to
be treated as if they had been given full transitional protection and had remained in
their existing scheme after 1 April 2015, Whilst the interim declaration applied only to
claimants, the Government made clear through a Written Ministerial Statement on 25
March 2020 that non-claimants would be trealed in the same way.

On 16 July 2020, HM Treasury issued a consultation regarding transitional
arrangements for public seclor pensions to eliminate discrimination as identified
through the McCloud/Sargeant cases. This consultation introduced a requirement for
members lo have been members of the scheme on or before 31 March 2012 and on
or after 1 April 2015 to be eligible for remedy.

On 4 February 2021, HM Treasury issued their response to the consultation which
confirmed the remedy arrangements sel oul in the consultation, and states that
members would be given a choice as to whether to retain benefits from their legacy
pension scheme, or their new scheme, during the remedy period (2015-2022). This
choice will be deferred for members until retirement. As the findings of the original
Employment Tribunal did not identify that the introduction of the new public sector
pension schemes were discriminatory (rather it was the transitional provisions), the
legacy schemes will be removed from April 2022 to be replaced by the new pension
schemes originally introduced in 2015.

Impact on pension liability

Allowing for all eligible members to accrue benefils from their legacy scheme during
the remedy pericd would lead to an increase in the Police Pension Scheme liabilities.
GAD initially estimated the potential increase in scheme liabilities for the Force to be
approximately E106m of pension scheme liabilities. This increase was reflected in the
IAS 19 disclosure as a past service cost in the 2018/19 accounts. GAD re-calculated
the 2019/20 disclosures in August 2020 in light of the eligibility criteria set out in HM
Treasury's remedy consultation exercise and issued revised figures to the Force after
the drafl Accounts were produced. The revised figures were incorporated into the
Audited Accounts, and resulled in a £26m reduction in the pension liability.

The impact of an increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud/Sargeant
judgement will be measured through the pension waluation process, which
determines employer and employee contribution rates. The next Police Pension
valuation is due to be reported in 2023/24, although this timetable is subject to
change.

The impact of an increase in annual pension payments arising from
McCloud/Sargeant is determined through the Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007.
These require a police authority to maintain a pension fund into which officer and
employer contributions are paid and out of which pension payments to retired officers
are made. If the police pension fund does not have sufficient funds to meet the cost
of pensions in year the amount required to meel the deficit is then paid by the
Secrelary of State to the police authority in the form of a cenlral government top-up
grant.
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Transactions relating to post-employment benefits

The cost of retirement benefits is reported in the Cost of Services when they are earned by
police officers, police staffl and PCS0s, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year,
s0 the real cost of relirement benefits is reversed out of the Police Fund via the Group MIRS.
The following transactions have been made in the Group CIES and the Police Fund via the
MIRS during the year:

2021122 LGRS
(PCC Palica
ale- Pension Group

meant)  Schameas Tatal
EQDD £000 EQ0Q

CIES

Cost of Services: |

- currant senvice costs 20,099 | 1421 62,400 84,820

- pasl service costs and galndoss from settlements 401 15 400 BiG

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

- nel inlarast axpansa 4,325 1490 53,460 57.875

Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the 95 TIE 162 1162 143 614
surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services li 26 5,260 e

e — e ——— S e

Other Post-Employment Benefits charged to the
CIES

| 1
(27.604) | (1,038) | (28,002) | (56,645)

Re-measurament of the net defined benefit Bability and
refum on plan asseats

Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the CIES| (1,879) 587 ae,258 86,966

H!F!E- - I_ B

Reversal af net charges made to the Surplus ar Deficit
an the Provision of Senices for post-employment {25,725) | (1,626) | (116,260) | (143,611)
benefils in accordance with the Code,

Actual amount charged against the Police Fund

Balance for pensions In the year

- employers’ contributions payable to the schemae 10,998 772 B2,778 74,548
benefits paid direct to beneficiares ! 2,790 2,790
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2020721 LGPS LGPS
LGPS (PCC (PPL Police
(CC ele- ele- Pension
element) ment) ment)] Schemes
E000 £000 £000 EQ0D
CIES '.
| Cost of Services:
| curmant senice costs 15,9748 204 327 58,320 72,429
| : b — Rl | ! |
past senice costs and gainfloss from settlements 500 0 0 | 610 1.110

| Financing and Investment Income and Expenditurs

ral infleres] axpenss 4,153 176 {3) 54,340 58 666
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the
surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services Gk = s 10270 Ll
' Other Post-Employment Benefits charged to the
| CIES |
; f liability 2
Re-measurement af the net defined banafit hability and 23,136 792 (143) 205468 | 220177

returm an FI|EI'| assets

Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the CIES| 43,767 1.702 s 315,718 361,382

MIRS

Revarsal of nat charges made to the Surplus or Defici
| on the Provision of Serdoes for post-empéoymeant (20,631) (aan) | (324) | (110,270) | (132,205)
| benefits in accaordance with the Code

i Actual amount charged against the Police Fund
i Balance for pensions in the year

amployars’ contributions payvable to the scheme 10,804 526 175 25,288 | 56,803

!
L | .
i benefits paid direct to beneficiaries 0 0 o 2630 | 2680

Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheets for the PCC and the
group

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arnising from the group's obligation in respect of ils
defined benefit plans is as follows:

222 LGPS Palice
LGPS [CC (PLG Pension

element) element) Schemes
£000 £000 £000
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| Present value of the defined benefil
i chligatian

; Fair value of plan assats 362,672 12,254 0 | 374,926

(S62.250) | [21,213) | (2.6897,081) 3,280,544)

Met liabilities arising from the

defined benefit obligation (199,578) (8.958) (2,697,081) {2,905,618)

2020/21 LGPS LGPS Police
LGPS (CC (PCC (PPL Pansicn

alement) elamant) elemant) Schemes

£000 £000 £000 £000

Present valua af the defined banalit
obligation

{531,264) | (20,082) (15,343) | (2,674,391) |  (3,241,080)

Fair value of plan assats 318,809 10,938 | 15,343 0 345,090

Net liabilities arising from the

3 5 144 JBT4 381 (2,895,090
defined benefit obligation M1459) L } 0 1 breand) ; :I

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation) for
the PCC and the group

20210722 LGFS LGPS Police
LGPS (CC (PCC {PPL Pension
element) element)  element) Schemes
£000 £000 EQ0 £000
i Opening balance at 1 April (531,264) | (20,082) | (15,343) [2,674,391) (3,241,080) |
3 . S - —— AL
| Current sarvice cost (20,999) (1,421) L] (62,4000 | (B4 B20)
Intarest cosl (11.447) (439) ] (53 460) ,[ (B5,346)
Contributions by scheme participants {3,480) (262 0 (10,920) | (14,662)
Re-measuremeant of Tabilities 13,982 504 ] 28,610 43,186
Business Combinations (PPL - see nole (15.343) 4] 15,343 L1 0
above)
Benefits paid 6,702 | 402 0 75,880 82,984 |
Paszt service cosis (3 ] 0 (400 (403)
Curtailments (398) (15 {] 0 (413}
Closing balance 31 March (562 250) [21.213) 0 {2,697, 081) i{3,280,544)
2020721 LGPS LGPS Paollce
LGPS (CC (FCC (FPL Pension Group
element] element) element) Schemes Total
£000 EO0D E000 £000 £0040
Opening balance at 1 April | (435,089) | (16,685) (12,692) [2,416,641) (2,881,107}
| Current service cost {15,878) (804) (327) (55,320) (72,429)
Interast coaf {10,368) (380 {303} (54,3407 {65,391}
Contributions by scheme participants (3,375) (175) {75] _ (10,580) (14, 205)
Re-measurement of lizbilities (75,548) [2.565) {2,104 (206,920) (287,137}
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Benefits paid

Fast service costs

Curtailrmants

Closing balance 31 March

(531,264)

(15,343

70,020

{610}

80,209
(610

]

(2,674,391)

(500) |

{3,241,080)

Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme assets for the PCC and

the group
Reconciliation of fair CC PCC PPL Group cc BCC PPL Group
value of the scheme glement  glament element Total element glgment element Total
assets [LGPS) 2020/21  2020/21  2020/21 2020021 2021722 2024122 2021122 20M/22
£000 £000 £000 £000 E0D0 E000 £000 ENOD
PTG SR 255507 | 8717 | 12,692 | 2
Apnil ¥ 2 2, 7T.006 | 318 8040 10,838 15,343 | 345,090
Intarast income 6,215 M4 306 6,725 7122 245 i} T.371
Re-measurameni
gamiloss: The returm an
plan assets, exciuding the 02,6186 1,853 2,258 RE 72T 13,832 450 1] 14,282
amaunt inclided in the net
interest expansa
Administration expenses {204} {10] (5) (219) {210} (15) 0 {225)
Contributions by employer 10,804 526 175 11,505 10,998 772 i 11,770
Contributions fram
employees into the 3,375 175 75 1625 3,480 262 i 3.742
schama
Businass Combinatians ;
| {PPL - see note above) 0 0 0 Q1 15343 0| (15.343) 0
i A =
. Benefits pakd [9,504) (527} (158) | (10.279) | (6702) [402Z) ] (¥, 104)

Closing balance 31

318,809 10,938 15,343 345,080 362,672 374,926

March

The expected return on scheme assels is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected vields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the
respective markets, The Police Pension Scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities.

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the PCC, the Chief Constable and the
Group has in the long run to pay post-employment retirement benefits. However, statutory
arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the PCC, the Chief
Constable and the Group remains healthy. The deficit on the LGPS will be made good by
increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, (i.e. before payments fall
due) as assessed by the scheme actuary. Finance is only required to be raised to cover police
pensions when the pensions are actually paid.
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The total contributions expected to be made to the LGPS by the Group in the year to 31 March
2023 is £12.1m (PCC: £0.6m). Expected contributions for the Police Pension Schemes by the

Chief Constable in the year o 31 March 2022 are £27.4m.

Reconciliation of the re-measurement of the net defined benefit liabilities for the PCC

and the group

The analysis of the re-measurement of the net defined benefit liabilities for 2021/22 is shown in
the table below. The two actuaries concemed have different approaches in providing their

aclive anal

LGPS (cC  LGPS (PCC

element) elemeant)

2021122 2021722

2021122 EOO0 £000
Changes in financial assumplions | (11,161) {483) |
Changes in demographic 4 745 166} |
assum plicns 14,245 1166) |

Re-measurement of assats {13.622) | (435)

Experience gains and losses | 1,424 | 45

Total re-measurement (27 ,604)

LGPS (CC
alamant)
202021

2020/21 £000
Changes in financial assumptions B4 299
Chan-geﬁ: in demographic 0
| assumplions
| Re-measuremeant of assets (52,412)
Exparience gains and lossas 1B, 751)

{1,039)

LGPS (PCC
@l amant)

2020721

ses and the table below is therafore a composile analysis.

Police
Penslan Group
Schemes Total
E000 £000
133,762) (45 406)
1] 4.411)
0 | (14,087
&G0 T.2249

(28,002)

LGFPS
{PPL
elemeant)
2020521

(56,645)

Palice
Pension
Schemes

Group
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
2798 2 351 280,758 370,246 |

] 4] i) 0

{1.843) {2.253) 0 (56,508)
(233) (247) {75,330) (84,561) |

205,468 229177

Total re=-measurament

LGPS Assats

{1449)

The LGPS assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held

{excluding PPL):

Split of Assals
between
Investment

Group

Taotal

31 March

2021

£000
Equities 280,036 |
Government Bomnds o |
{ther Bonds 204 |

102

categories

0 5,286

Split of Assets

Total BEtwean

31 March Invastment

2022 :‘.‘-':'Il{:{.]-ﬂl"lﬂ ]

£000 b

296,763 79

1| 6,073 ! 2
i 1
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| Property 15,443 | 5 | 20,876 | B
Allematives—-LIK
Infrasiruciure ele

| Cash-Liquidity 0 | 0 0 0

33,974 10 45,948 12

Total Assets

Split of Assets Split of Assets

Total betwean Total betwaen

31 March Investment 31 March Investmeant

2021 categories 2022 categories

% £000 %

_ Equities 9,200 | 85 9,701 79

Govermnment Bonds ] ] a 198 2
Other Bonds . 10 | 0 173

Praperty | S12 7 6A2 &

Al t; .
borratives-LiK 1,126 10 1,500 12

Cash-Liguidity

Total Assots

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit actuarial method,
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions
about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

The assets and liabilities of the LGPS which is administered by Worcestershire County Council
{County Council Fund) have been assessed by Mercer Lid, an independent firm of actuaries,
estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme
as at 31 March 2019, rolled forward to 31 March 2022, The liabilities for the Police Pension
Schemes have been assessed by the Government Actuary's Depariment. The principal
assumplions used by the actuaries have been:

2020121 2021122
Police Police
Pension Pension
LGPS Schemes Schemes
T Bl Marlalily assumptions |
| | Longevity at 65 for current pensioners: | I s
22.7 years 22.0 years I"."Ir::_n ‘ 325 ;rear:: T E*I_yearz |
25,1 years 23.7 years an; - ‘ 25.0 yuar; 1 238 :-,.-Ear; i |
| Lengeawty at 65 far fulure pensicners; . o D
24.4 years 23.7 years ‘ kan L - L 241 yoaars 23 8 years
27 A years 25.3 years - ;v::n;an E'-"I]-_'g,-'r&ara _E-!-':._-d-;ars
2.7% 24% | Rate of CPIinflation | A | aow
4.2% 4.2% - Rala l::-f_in:reasem salaries (long-lerm) I d_m-:; BN 4?5%
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nfa 1.[!"::: . | Fate of increase in salares (shard-term) na ] II'I:'EI
! 2.8% W 2 -1"5. L Rale of increaze in pansions . B EI -1";‘.:_ 3.0%
I 1;1?::_j_ I 2 I’.‘I".-E _H._al-n for discounting .sr:.heme liabilitias . 2 E-‘?:-.. J 2:65“:-.5.
2. 7% 3 EE‘}B CARE Revaluation rate 3.3‘?3-:. 4. 20%
A

Life expectancy is based on the Self Administered Pensions Scheme (SAPS) year of hirth
tables adjusted for specific characteristics of the membership of tha two schemes.

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumplions set
out in the table above. The sensilivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period
and assumes for each change that the assumplion analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant.

The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or
decreases equally for men and women. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Group

Impact on the Defined Benefit
Obligation in the Schema

Increase in Decreasa in
assumption assumption
EODD
| Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 'g."E?II":I 107,872 | (107.972)
| Rate of inflation (increasa or decrease by 1%) — Police staff only 112,670 (112,670)
Hate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 1%) = 60,970 {60,970)
E,ﬂi? of increase in pansions {increase o decrease by 1%) - PFS 470.000 (470,000)
" Rate for -dust:n::-unl:ng scheme labilities [lnl:rease or decreasea by (620,520) &0 530 i
1%4) | ' .
PCC

Impact on the Defined Banafit
Obligation in the Scheme

Increasa in Dacreasa In

agsumption assumption

£000 £000

L.;:ungr:nuly {increase or decreasea in 1 'g.-EEr] J a2 |:EI.'!'2}
Rate n! |n1'|a[||::-n (increase or dE-:'rear.E by 1%) — Police staff 1:|r1|".I | 4,620 | td E?{I:l
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Rale of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 1%) 60 {860)
Rate for discounting scheme liabiliies (increase or decrease by 4,520} 4,520
1%) )
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37. Prior Period Adjustments

During the 2021/22 audit, it was identified that Wesl Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner's
valuers understated the valuation of two properties that were owned by the Police and Crime
Commissioner. The values of these assets are deemed material and so a prior period
adjustment has been applied to the accounts. The overall effect of the prior penod adjustment
is as follows:

Balance Sheet: Opening and Closing balance of Land and Buildings increase by £6.036m in

2020021,

Balance Sheel: Opening and Closing balance of Unusable Heserves has increased by
£6.036m in 2020/21.

S P g ey

Original Rastated Criginal Restated | Amount of
31 March | 31 March 31 March | 31 March | Restatemaer
2020 2020 2021 201
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
T B | =k T
56, 352 62,388 | Land and Buildings 54 284 60,222 6,03
4,483 4,483 | Vehicles 4,568 4,568
6,794 6.794 | Plant and Equipment 9,803 8,803
2075 2,075 | Surplus Assals 1,825 1,825
10,469 10,469 | Assets Under Construction 6575 B5T5
3T 370 | Invesiment Property a45 345
1,383 1,383 | Intangible assels 6,896 6,804
1] 0 | Long Term Investments 0 0
3,620 3.620 | Long Term Debtors 3,522 3,522
85,546 91,582 | Total Long Term Asscls 87,820 83,856 6,03
Current Assets
6,001 6,001 | Short Term Investmeants 8,951 8495
o 0 | Assets Hald for Sale 0 0
388 388 | Imventories 561 56 1
012 21,012 | Short Term Debtors 18,004 19 054
| 2842 2,842 | Cash and Cash Equivalents 820 820
30,243 30,243 | Total Current Assets 29,526 29,526
Current Liabilities
o 0 | Cash and Cash Equivalents i] 1]
{10,388) {10,388) | Short Term Bormowing {11,637) {11,637
(31.618) (31,618) | Short Term Creditors (31.977) (31,977)
(432) (432) | Provisions {361} (361) =
 (42,438) | (42,438) | Total Current Liabilities (43,975) | (43,975)
Long Term Liabilities
(4,500) {(4.500) | Long Term Crediors 0 0
0 0 | Provisions 0 0
{19,663) (19,663) | Long Term Barrowing (34,141) {34,141)
0 0 | Odher Long Term Liabdities 0 0
a 0 | Donated Assetls Account ] ]
(124) (124) | Capital Grants Receipis in Advance (24) (24)
(702 (702) | Revenue Grants Recaipis in Advance {1,371) (1,371}
(2,604,102} | (2,604,102) | Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension
o Schemes (2,895,991) | (2,895,991)
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Supplemantary Financial Statement
(2,629.091) | (2,629,091) | Long Term Liabllities (2,931,527) | (2,931,527)
12,555,740) | (2,549,704) | Net Assets (2,858,156) | (2,852,120) 6,03
| Usable Reserves
0 0 | General Fund Balance 0 0
[14,.990) {14,020} | Earmarked Reserves {14,252} (14.252)
] 0 | Capital Grants Unapplied o il
0 0 | Capital Receipts Unapplied 0 0
(14,990) (14,930} | Total Usable Reserves (14,252) {14,252)
Unusable Reserves
(10,084) {16,130} | Revaluation Reserve (9,437) {15473) (6,03¢
(22,852) {22,852) | Capital Adjustment Account {16,906) {16,996)
0 0 | Donated Assels Account 0 0
(1,372) (1,372) | Collection Fund Adjustment Account 512 512
2,604,102 | 2604,102 | Pansions Resarve 2805091 |  2.8595.991
4 540 4,540 | Accumulated Absences Account 5,788 5,788
{3,594) (3,584) | Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (3,450) {3,450) —
2,570,730 | 2,564,694 @ Total Unusable Resarves 2872408 | 2,866,372 (6,03¢
2,555,740 | 2,549,704 | Total Reserves 2,858,156 | 2,852,120 | (6,03
Original Total | Restated Total Amount of
Movement in Raum :tc:ir}ﬂm Group 2020/21 Unisable Wtiatis Ritalaiaat
Reserves £000 Reserves £000 £000
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (from balance sheet) {2,570,730) {2,564,694) 6,036
Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (from
I&E) 0 a i
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure {220 623 {220,629} ]
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (229,629) {229,629) 0
Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital
Adjustment Account
Raversal of lems debited or credited Lo the
m nsi wpendiiung Account
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non
Current assats {7.228) (7.228) 0
Revaluation losses an Proparty Plant and Equipment 356 356 0
Movemeants in the markel value of Investment
Procartisi (25) (25) 0
Amortisation of intangible assets (1,224) (1,224} 0
Capital grants and contributions appled 1,029 1,029 0
Income in relation to Donated Assets 0 0 0
Revenue expendiune funded from capital under o a
statute 0
Amounis of non current assets written off in disposal
or gale azs part of the gains on disposal to the (2,050) (2,050} o
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statamant
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Supplementary Financial Statemsent

Inserion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemant
Statutory Proviskon for the fimancing of capital
imeesimeant

Capital expenditure charged against the general fund
balance

Adjustments Primarily invalving tha Capital Gramls
Unapplied Account

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to
the income and expenditure Statement

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to
the capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments primarily imsolving the Capital Recaipts
Resarve

Transfer of cash sale proceads credited as part of the
gainflioss on disposal 1o the Comprehensiva Income
and Expanditure Stalement

Usa af the Capilal Receipts Resaerve to finance new
Capital Expenditura

Confributson from the Capital Heceaipts Resarva
Iowards administrative costs of non curment asset
disposals

Contribution from the Capital Receipls Reserve to
finance the payments to the Government capital
raceipts pool.

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
upan recaipt of cash

Adjustments primarily invalving the Defarred Capital
Receipts Reserve

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as par of
the gainfloss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Incama and Expenditure statemant

Adjustments Involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating o retiremeant benefits
dabited or credited 1o the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Emplovers Pansions contributions and direct
paymenis to pensioners payable in the year

Additional coniribution to the Pension Fund to balance
the deficit on the Fund Account

Adjustments Involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Armount by which council tax income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Stalement is
different from council fax income calculated for tha
year in accordance with statutory requirements

Adjustment Invabang the Accumulated Absences
Account

108

2,335
241

(144)

{132,205)

69,493

(1,884)

2,335
241

505

(144)

{132,205])

69,493

a

1]

(1,884)
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Amaunt by which officer remuneration charged lo the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
on a accruals basis is different from remuneration (1,248) {1,248} ]
chargeable in the year in accordance with stalutory
requirements

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding

basis under regulations (72,049) (72,049) 0

Met Increase/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves (301,678) {301,678) 0

Transfers tolffrom Earmarked Reserves

Increase | Decrease in 2020021 {301,678} (304,678) 1]
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried Forward (2,872.408) {2,866,372) 6,036

Police Pension Fund Account

The Chief Constable administers the Police Pension Fund Account (the Account) on behalf of
the PCC; amounts debited and credited to the Account are specified by legislation, the Police
Pension Fund Regulations 2007 [Statutory Instrument 2007 Mo 1932], (the Regulations). In
relation to the Account the use of the word ‘Fund’ should not be taken to mean the Police
Pension Scheme is a funded scheme, as there are no assets or investments associated with
the Account lo provide for fulure benefits. Instead the purpose of the Account is o provide a
basis for demonstrating the balance of cash based transactions taking place over the year and
for identifying the arrangements needed to balance the account for that year.

2021122
£000 £000 £000 £000
N | cContributions Receivable AR | I
From employer
(24,583) - Normal at 31% of pensionable pay (25,409) |
(B84} - Il Heakh Capital Sum Income {410)
(10,604) From members (serving police officers) | (10.926)
 (36,071) ' | (38,745
1?EE:| Individual Transfers In from other schemes {450)
Benefits Payabla Ii§ ]
56,218 I Pensions 57,808 [
11,185 | | Commutations and Lump Sum retirement benefits 16,605
o Lump sum death benefits | o
¢ T o

——
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Supplementary Financial Statement

I ' Payments to and on account of leavers
az | Refunds of contributions 79

o | Individual ransfers out (o other schemes 0

Sub-total for the year before transfer from the
Group of amount equal to the deficit

Additional funding payable by the Group to meet

(30,719) deficit for the year

(37,385)

Met Amount Payable | Recaivable for the year 0

Notes to the Police Pension Fund Account

The principles contained in the Regulations, which have been adopted in prepanng the
Account are as follows:

1

The Account collects the costs and income relating to retired police officers thal are in
receipt of pensions and income associaled with serving police officers that are members
of the Police Pension Scheme 1987 (OPPS), the Mew Police Pension Scheme 2006
(NPPS) or the Police Pension Scheme 2015 (PPS). There are certain exceplions to this
arrangement, such as pensions payable under the Police Injury Pension Regulations,
which are charged directly to the Cost of Services in the CIES;

The Account is prepared on an accruals basis with the exception of accounting for lump
sum transfer values to and from other pension schemes. Due to the unpredictable nature
of transfer values they have been attributed to or transferred from the Account on a
payment and receipts basis,

The annual cost of police pensions is met, in pari, by contributions from the employer and
serving police officers and other minor sources of income. Under the Police Pension Fund
Regulations 2007, if the Account is in deficit an amount equal to the deficit is transferred
from the Police Fund to meet the deficit; the cost to the Police Fund is subsequently
reimbursed by the Home Office by way of the Pensions Top Up. Conversely, if the
Account was to be in surplus, this would be transferred to the Police Fund and
subsequently paid over to the Home Office;
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Supplemnentary Financial Statement —

4,

The amounts due from the Home Office in respect of the shortfall on the Account is the
responsibility of the Chief Constable and has therefore been included in the Chief
Constable's (and the Group's) Balance Sheet;

This Account does nol lake account of long-term liabilities to pay future pension benefits
after the year end, details of the Group's pension liability can be found in Note 36;

Employers’ contributions, which are set by the Home Office subject to the Government
Actuary’s Department ftriennial valuation, are calculated at 31% of police officer
pensionable pay from 1 Apnl 2019;

Police officer contributions are deducted from officer salaries. The contribution rates weare
increased on 1 April 2012 to reflect the agreement reached between the Home Secretary
and the Police Negotiating Board. Contribution rates range between 11.00% and 15.05%
dependant on the range the police officer's salary falls into and whether the officer is a
member of the OPPS, NPPS or PPS;

There are no related parly transaclions to the Account.
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Glossary of Terms

Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 — The regulations that govern the
preparation, approval and audit of statements of accounts and other accounting statements
prepared in respect of the year ending 31 March 2016 onwards.

Accounting Policies — The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and praclices
applied by an entity in preparing and presenting the Statement of Accounis.

Accrual — The recognition, in the correct accounting period, of income and expenditure as it is
earnad and incurred, rather than as cash is received or paid.

Actuarial Gains and Losses - For a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits
or surpluses that arise because events have not coincided with the acluarnal assumptions
made for the last valuation {experience gains or losses) or the actuarial assumptions have
changed.

Accumulated Absences Account — This account holds the lability value of accumulated
accrued absences (annual leave, time owing in lieu etc) that are due o employees al the end
of the financial year.

Actuarial Valuation — A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present value of benefits
to be paid and an estimate of required future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a
pension fund.

Amortisation — The expensing of the acquisition cost minus the residual value of intangible
assets in a systematic manner over their estimated useful economic lives.

Amortised Cost — The carrying amount of some financial assets and liabilities in the Balance
Sheet will be written down or up via the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
over the term of the instrument.

Appropriations — Amounts transferred to or from revenua or capital reserves.

Asset — An item owned by the PCC, which has a value, for example, land and buildings,
vehicles, equipment and cash. These can be held over the long (non-current) or short (current)
term.,

Billing Autheority — A local autharity that, by statute, collects the council tax and manages the
Collection Fund.

Budget — A statement of the PCC's Policing Plan in financial terms for a specific financial year,
which starts on 1 April and ends on 31 March. A budget is prepared and approved by the PCC
before the start of each financial year,

Capital Adjustment Account — An account that manages the timing differences between the
amounts that have been set aside for capital expenditure, which are not aligned with the
charges made for assets such as depreciation, revaluation and impairment, along with the
amortisation of intangible assels.
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Capital Expenditure — Expendilure on new assels or on the enhancement of existing assets
so as to prolong their life or enhance value,

Capital Financing Charges — The repayment of loans and interest for capital projects.

Capital Grant — A grant from central government used to finance specific schemes in the
capital programme.

Capital Programme — The plan of capital projects and future spending on purchasing land,
buildings, vehicles, IT and equipment.

Capital Receipts — The proceeds from the sale of an asset, which may be used to finance
capital expenditure or to repay outstanding loan debt,

Cash — Cash in hand and held at the bank in on-demand deposits.

Cash Equivalents — Short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flows - Inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

Chief Constable — Chief Constable is the rank used by the chief police officer of a teritorial
police Force, who has averall responsibility for the day to day operational direction and control
of the Force. The Chief Constable has ultimate statutory responsibility for maintaining the
CQueen's peace. The Chief Constable is a Corporation Sole.

CIPFA — The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is the body that oversees
financial standards and financial reporting in public organisations. It is also the professional
body for accountants working in the public services.

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code) —
The Code is based on approved accounting standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and interpretations of the Intermational Financial Reporting Siandards
Committea, except where these are inconsistent with specific statutory requirements. The
Code specifies the principles and practices, sets out the accounting requirements for local
authorities and is based on Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Collection Fund Adjustment Account - The account that manages the differences arising
from the recognition of councll tax income as it falls due from taxpayers compared to the
statutory arrangements for receiving amounts from the billing authorities.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - The total of income less expenditure,
including other comprehensive income and expenditure items, presented in the CIES and
prepared in accordance with IFRS as set out in the Code.

Contingency - A sum of money set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure or a liability.

Corporation Sole - this a legal entity consisting of a single incorporated office, occupied by a
sole parson, This allows corporations to pass from one office holder to the next successor-in-
office, giving the positions legal continuity with subsequent office holders having identical
powers to their predecessors.
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Council Tax — The local tax levied on householders, based on the relative market values of
property, which helps to fund local services including the police.

Creditors — Individuals or organisations lo which the Police and Crime Commissioner owes
maoney.

Current Assets — These are assets which can either be converted to cash or used to pay
current liabilities within 12 months. Typical current assets include cash, cash equivalents,
shori-term investments, debtors and stock.

Current Liabilities — These are liabilities that are to be seltled within 12 months. Typical
current liabilities include creditors and loan paymenlts due within 12 months.

Current Service Costs (Pensions) — The increase in the present value of a defined benefit
scheme's liabilities expected to arise from the employees' service in the current period.

Curtailment Costs - Costs thal arise when many employees transfer out of the pension
scheme at the same time, such as when an organisation transfers its members to another
scheme. The cost represents the value of the pension rights accrued by the transferring staff.

Debtors — Individuals or organisations who owe the PCC money.

Defined Benefit Scheme — A pension scheme which defines the benefits paid to individuals
independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme,

Depreciation — An annual charge to reflect the extent to which an assel has been worn or
consumed during the financial year, which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Disclosure — Information that must be shown in the accounits under the CIPFA Code of
Practice.

Discretionary Benefits — Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or
constructive obligation to award and which are awarded under the PCC's discretionary powers,

Earmarked Reserves — Monies set aside that are intended to be used for a specific purpose
and held in the Balance Sheet.

Exit Packages — Payments such as redundancy paymenls, either voluntary or compulsory, or
early retirement payments made to employees leaving the Group before their due retirement
dates.

Fair Value — The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setlled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Financial Instruments — The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet,
consisting of loans and investmeants.

Finance Leases and Operating Leases — A Finance lease transfers all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a non-current asset to the lessee. If these leases are used, the assets
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acquired have to be included within the non-current assets in the balance sheet at the market
value of the assel involved. With an operating lease, the ownership of the asset remains with
the leasing company and an annual rent is charged to the revenue account.

Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) — Recommendations on the treatment of certain items
within the accounts.

Financing Activities — Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the
principal, received from or repaid to external providers of finance.

Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police Services of England and Wales
2012 - The Financial Management Code of Practice provides clarity around the financial
governance arrangements within the police service in England and Wales, and reflects the fact
that the police service has a key statutory duty to secure value for money in the use of public
funds,

Financial Year — The period of twelve months from 1 April to 31 March.

General Fund — The main account in to which income is received into and expenditure is paid
from.

General Reserves — Funds set aside to be usad in the future.

Government Grants — Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar
bodies, whether local, national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to the
PCC in retum for past or fulure compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of
the PCC.

Gross Spending - The costs of providing services before allowing for government grants and
other income.

Group Accounts — The financial statements that combine the accounts for the PCC and the
Chief Constable, that show the performance of the Group as if it was a single entity.

Home Office Grant (Pensions) - If there is insufficient money in the Pension Fund Account to
meel all expenditure commitments in any particular year, the Home Office will fund the deficit
by way of a grant.

Impairment — The amount by which the recoverable value of an asset falls below its carrying
{or book) value.

Intangible Asset — A non-physical non-current asset, e.g. computer software,

Interest Income - The money earned from investing activities, typically the investment of
surplus cash.

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) — This is the independent, accounting

standard-setting body, which is responsible for developing International Financial Reporting
Standards and promoting the use and application of these standards.
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International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) & International Accounting
Standards (lAS) - The accounting rules and principles, adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board, on which the Statement of Accounts is based. The Code is
prepared in accordance with the IFRS.

Inventories — Assets acquired in the form of materials or supplies to be held for consumption
in the future delivery of policing services.

Investing Activities — The buying and selling of long-term assets and invesiments that are not
cash equivalents.

Investment Properties = Property assets that are held solely to eamn rentals and/or for capilal
appraeciation.

Jointly Controlled Operations - Activities undertaken by the Chief Constable and/or the PCC
that are jointly controlled with other organisations. The jointly controlled operation does not
give rise to the creation of a separate entity.

Liabilities — Amounts that are due to be settled by the PCC in the future, which includes
Current Liabilities and Long Term Liabilities.

Major Precepting Authority — Authorities thal make a precept on the billing authontes'
eollection funds, e.g. County Councils and Police and Crime Commissioners.

Materiality — Omissions or misslalements of items are material if they could, individually or
collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of financial
statements. Materality depends on the nature or size of the item omission or misstatement
judged in the surrounding circumstances.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) — The statutory minimum amount that is required to be
set aside on an annual basis as a provision to repay debt.

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) — The national non-domestic rate in the pound is the
same for all non-domestic rate payers and is set annually by the government. Income from
non-domestic rates goes into a central government pool that is then distributed according to
resident population.

Net Book Value — The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheat,
i.e. their historical cost or current values less the cumulative amounts provided for
depreciation.

Non-Current Assets (Fixed Assets) — Tangible assets, such as buildings and equipment are
assets that yield benefits for a period of more than one year.

Notes to the Accounts — The notes contain information in addition to that presented in the
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive lncome and Expenditure Statement,
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

Operating Activities — The aclivities of the entity that are its normal activities, excluding its
investment and financing activities.

116



The Group and Police and Crime Commissioner for West Marcla Statement of Accounts 2021/22

Glossary of Tarms

Outturn — The actual amount spent in the financial year.

Past Service Cost — For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the
scheme liabilities related to employee service in prior periods but ansing in the current period
as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to retirement benefits.

Payments in Advance — These represent payments made prior to 31 March for supplies and
services received on or after 1 April.

Pension Fund -~ The fund that makes pension payments following the retirement of its
participants.

Pensions Expected Rate of Return on Assets - For a funded defined benefit scheme, the
average rate of return, including both income and changes in fair value but net of schame
expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held
by the scheme.

Pensions Interest Costs - For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the
period at the present value of the scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer
to settlement.

Pensions Reserve — A non-cashable reserve used to reconcile payments made for the year to
various statutory pension schemes and the net change in the recognised liability under [AS19
for the same period.

Police and Crime Commissioner (the PCC) - an elected representative charged with
securing efficient and effective policing of a police area in England and Wales. PCCs replaced
the now abolished Police Authorities from 2012,

Police Act 1996 — An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which defined the cumrent
police areas in England and Wales, constituted the Police Authorities for those areas (now
superseded by PCCs), and set out the relationship between the Home Secretary and the
English and Welsh territorial police Forces,

Police and Crime Panel — The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 established
Police and Crime Panels within each Force area in England and Wales. The panel is
responsible for scrutinising PCCs' decisions; they also review the Police and Crime Plan and
have a right of veto over the precept.

Police and Crime Plan - The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduces a
duty on the PCC lo prepare a Police and Crime Plan which should determine, direct and
communicate their priorities during their pariod in office.

Police Fund Balance - The Police Fund Balance is the statutory fund into which all the
receipts of the PCC are required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the PCC are to be
met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also
specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the Police Fund,
which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The Police Fund
Balance therefore summarises the resources that the PCC is statutorily empowerad to spend
on his services or on capital investment.
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Police Principal Grant — This is part of the total specific government grant support for police
services. The amount is determined annually by the Home Office on a formula basis.

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 — this is an Act of the Parliament of the
United Kingdom. It transfers the control of police Forces from Police Authorilies to elected
PCCs. The first PCC elections were held in November 2012, and will be held every four years
thereafter.

Precept — The amount of council tax thal the PCC, as a major precepting authority, has
instructed the billing authorities to collect and pay over in order to finance its net expenditure.

Provisions — The amounts set aside to provide for liabilities that are likely to be incurred, but
the exact amount and the date on which it will arise is uncertain.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) - A statutory body operating within the United Kingdom
Debt Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury, which provides long-term
loahs fo local authorties at interest rates only slightly higher than those at which the
government itself can borrow.

Receipts in Advance — These represent income received prior to 31 March for supplies and
services provided by the Autharity on or after 1 April.

Reimbursements — Payments received for the work carried out for other public organisations,
g.g. the government.

Related Parties — Bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Chief
Constable andior the PCC.

Reserves — Monies sel aside by the PCC that do not fall within the definition of provisions.
Reserves held for specific purposes are known as earmarked ressrves,

Retirement Benefits — All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for
services rendered by employees that are payable after the completion of employment.

Revaluation Reserve — The Reserve records the accumulated gains on the non-current
assets held by the PCC arising from increases in value. It is charged with the part of the
depreciation charge for the asset which relates to the revaluation. Any balance on this account
is written back to the Capital Adjustment Account upon disposal of the asset.

Revenue Expenditure and Income — Day to day expenses mainly salaries, general running
expenses and debt charges. These costs are met from the Council Tax, Government Grants,
fees and charges.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) - Expenditure
incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not
result in the creation of a non-current asset. These cosls may be charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the CIES in the year.

Scheme Liabilities (Pensions) — The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due
after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit method to
reflect the benefits that are committed to be provided for service up 1o the valuation date.
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Scheme of Delegation and Consent, Financial and Contract Regulations — The Scheme
of Delegation and Consent details the key roles of the PCC and those functions that they
designate to the Chief Executive, Treasurer, the Chief Constable and, if appointed, the Deputy
PCC. The scheme also provides a framework to ensure thal business is carried out efficiently,
ensuring that decisions are not unnecessarily delayed. The Financial and Contract Regulations
establish overarching financial responsibilities; confer duties, rights and powers upan the PCC,
the Chief Constable and their officers providing clarity about the financial accountability of
groups or individuals. They apply to every member and officer of the service and anyone
acting on their behalf.

Specific Grant — Payments from the government to cover Local Authorily spending on a
particular service or project. Specific grants are usually a fixed percentage of the cost of a
service or project and have strict rules detailing eligible expenditure.

(Strategic) Alliance — The alliance formed by Warwickshire Police and West Mercia Police to
use their combined resources to deliver all policing services to the people and communities of
Herefordshire, Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin, Warwickshire and Worcestershire: the alliance
ended on 31 March 2020.

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services — The total of income less expenditure,
excluding the components of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Presented in the
CIES in accordance with IFRS as set out in the Code.

Tangible Non-current Assets — Physical non-current assets, e.g. land, buildings, vehicles
and equipment held for a period of over one year,

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - Council Tax and all grants and contributions
recognised in the financial year.

Telling the Story — CIPFA's review of the presentation of Public Sector financial statements.
The CIES now reflects the way that organisation’s operale and manage services.

Transfer Value — A sum of money transferred between pension schemes lo provide an
individual with entittement to benefits under the pension scheme to which the transfer is made.
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